

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 
5:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION 


6:30 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 
 


August 12, 2020 
 


Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-25-20 
and N-29-20, the City Council/ Cemetery District Meeting will 
be conducted electronically via video and teleconferencing.  


 


 
 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor/Chair, District 2 
Bridgette Moore, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 4 


Ben J. Benoit, Council Member/Trustee, District 1 
Joseph Morabito, Council Member/Trustee, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 


 
 


Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


2 


  
 


 


The City Council/ Cemetery District Meeting will be conducted 
electronically via video and teleconferencing pursuant to the provisions of 


the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20  
 
The City of Wildomar encourages your participation in the meeting; however, in 
order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this meeting is being 
conducted utilizing video and teleconferencing. The City Council Chambers will not 
be open to the public. The public may view the meeting on television and/or online 
and may participate via ZOOM video conferencing.  
 
You may view the Regular Session meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s website 
at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, select the live stream link on the top 
of the front page. 
 


Instructions for Electronic Participation  
 
If you would like to make a public comment and/or a comment on a specific agenda 
item, please follow the following instructions: 
 
1. Before joining the call, please silence your other communication devices such 
as your cell or desk phone. This will prevent any feedback or interruptions during 
the meeting.  
 
2. Log in or call into ZOOM via desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. You must 
download the ZOOM app to access the link from an Apple smartphone. 
 


Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87283113169 


Meeting ID: 872 8311 3169 
 


Dial in: 
+1 669 900 6833 US 


Meeting ID: 872 8311 3169   
 
Please Note: During the meeting all participants video will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be placed on Mute by the host. You 
will not be able to mute or unmute your lines manually. The host will unmute 
your line when you are called to speak.  
 
3. During Public Comment not on the Agenda and after each Agenda Item, the 
Mayor will announce Public Comment. If you would like to speak, please raise your 
hand virtually to be placed in the queue.  



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87283113169





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


3 


  
 


 


 
When your name or the last 3 digits of your phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited to 3 minutes or such other time as 
the Council may provide.    
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• Click on the “Participants” button on the bottom of the screen. 
• A list of participants will appear on the right side of the screen. At the bottom of 
the list, please click on the grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a SMARTPHONE: 
• Click on the “Participants” button on the bottom of your screen. 
• A new screen will pop up with the list of participants. Look for the “Raise Hand” 
button on the screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you would like to comment. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office 
at 951-677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


4 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


CLOSED SESSION 
 
The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) to confer with legal counsel with 
regard to one matter of potential initiation of litigation. 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 


 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 


 
 


ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


5 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


FLAG SALUTE 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Economic Development Update 
2. Public Works Update 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- June 10, 2020 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 


1.3 Minutes- June 24, 2020 Adjourned Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


6 


  
 


 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $29,191.34; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $298,945.44; 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $197,660.93; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $122,664.43; 
5. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $84,457.44; 
6. Wire Transfer Register dated 08-04-2020 in the amount of $248,143.45; 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
7. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $197,856.61; 
8. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $1,843.84; 
9. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $29,810.18; 
10. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $166,205.10; 
11. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $80,946.43; 
12. Payroll Register dated 08-01-2020 in the amount of $141,175.99. 
 


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for June 2020. 
 


1.6 Award of Construction Contract – Guardrail Repair and Upgrades 
Project (CIP 041, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(012)) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council take the 
following actions: 
 


 1. Adopt a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 


 
 2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with Alfaro 


Communications Construction, Inc. in the amount of  $261,590.00 for 
construction of the Pedestrian Countdown Head and  Crosswalk 
Enhancement Project (CIP 041, Federal Project #HSIPL- 5484(012)). 


 
 3. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% 


of the contract amount. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


7 


  
 


 


1.7 Resolution Regarding Temporary Use Permits for Outdoor 
Commercial Activities 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, REGARDING TEMPORARY USE PERMITS FOR 
OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 


 
1.8 FY 2018-19 Audited Annual Financial Report for Measure AA 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the FY 2018-19 Audited Annual Financial Report for Measure AA 
from the Citizen’s Oversight Committee. 
 


1.9 Adopt a Resolution to declare a public nuisance and abate all weeds 
growing upon private property in the City 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution Entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA DECLARING WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT 
UPON PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 


WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND INITIATING ABATEMENT 
PROCEEDINGS 


 
1.10 House of Representatives HR 2956 (Calvert) - Letter of Support 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
authorize the Mayor to send a Letter of Support of HR 2956. 
 


1.11 Acceptance of Public Improvements of Tract 31353 (Project No. 11-
0099) by Meritage Homes of California, Inc. 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS FOR 


TRACT 31353, MERITAGE HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC. AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ENGINEER TO PROCESS A NOTICE OF 


COMPLETION WITH THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


8 


  
 


 


1.12 Homeless Services Contract-Social Work Action Group (SWAG) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Social Work 
Action Group (SWAG) to provide homeless services to the City of Wildomar 
for the fiscal year 2020-21. 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 


2.1  Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03: City Council review of an 
amendment to Chapter 17.204 regulating Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADU’s) in residential zones 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends the 
City Council Introduce and approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A STATUTORY EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 
REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 21080.17 OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOURCES CODE, AND APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 


AMENDMENT NO. 2020-03 AMENDING CHAPTER 17.204 OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO ACCESSORY 


DWELLING UNITS 
 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 


and file the COVID-19 Update and provide direction as desired. 
 
3.2 Right of Way Enhancement Program 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 


 1. Receive and comment on the Public Right of Way Enhancement 
 Program; and, 
 
 2. Direct the City Engineer to final the Public Right of Way 
 Enhancement Program and bring back to the City Council for 
 adoption. 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


9 


  
 


 


3.3 Designation League of California Cities Annual General Business 
Meeting Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council ratify 
Mayor Nigg as the Voting Delegate and Council Member Benoit as one 
alternate and consider appointing one other Council Member as another 
Alternate for the League of California Cities Annual General Business 
Meeting.  
 
 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
5. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
1. Around the Town Updates 
2. City Council Zoom Meeting Start Time 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Letter of Support- Keeping California Safe Act 2020- Benoit – September 2020 
2. Letter to Flood Control regarding canyon view park- Benoit – October 2020 
3. Fireworks Ordinance- Morabito – October 2020 
4. Juneteenth Holiday- Morabito – January 2021 
 
 


ADJOURN CITY COUNCIL  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


10 


  
 


 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar Acting City Clerk, do hereby declare 
that the Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or 
stipend for the convening of the following regular meeting of the 
Wildomar Cemetery District. 
 
 
 


 


Dustin Nigg, Chair 
Bridgette Moore, Vice Chair 


Ben J. Benoit, Trustee 
Joseph Morabito, Trustee 
Marsha Swanson, Trustee 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Gary Nordquist               Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager              District Counsel 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


11 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – July 8, 2020 Regular Meeting 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $81.97; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $1,070.16; 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $9,140.00; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $6,055.00. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
5. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $989.40; 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
August 12, 2020 


 


12 


  
 


 


6. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $109.98; 
7. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $7,749.12; 
8. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $664.68; 
9. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $255.35. 


 
4.3 Treasurer’s Report 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for June 2020. 
 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There are no items scheduled. 


 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
 There are no items scheduled. 


  
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


 
 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT   
 
 
REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
 
 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


August 12, 2020 


13 


Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751. 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar Acting City Clerk, do certify that within 72 hours of the 
meeting, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 


Janet Morales 
Acting City Clerk 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





ITEM #1.2 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


June 10, 2020 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 
The Regular meeting of June 10, 2020 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted electronically pursuant to the provisions of Governor’s Executive 
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 6:30 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, Assistant City Manager York, City 
Attorney Jex, Acting City Clerk Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative 
Services Director Riley, Finance Manager Howell, Economic Development 
Director Davidson, Intern II/Associate Engineer Luna and Parks, Community 
Services and Cemetery District Manager Torres and Senior Development Services 
Technician Abercrombie. 
 
The flag salute was led by Mayor Nigg. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Economic Development Director Davidson presented the Economic 
Development Update. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment regarding opening Council 
Chambers for in person meetings; concrete on the side of the off ramp; and the 
Murrieta/Wildomar roundtable name. 
 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment regarding uploading pictures to 
the Code Enforcement service requests; visual presentations to be included in the 
agenda packet; implementing a flag policy for flags on city property and the 
Memorial Day event. 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


2 


  
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
Mayor Nigg asked for the Approval of the agenda as presented.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Moore to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Mayor Nigg asked for Item #1.6 to be removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate discussion and action. Mayor Nigg asked for the Approval of the Consent 
Calendar for the remainder of the items.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Benoit seconded by Councilmember 
Swanson to approve the Consent Calendar, except for Item #1.6. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- May 05, 2020 Special Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- May 13, 2020 Regular Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


3 


  
 


 
1. Warrant Register dated 05-07-2020 in the amount of $173,387.81; 
2. Warrant Register dated 05-13-2020 in the amount of $1,136,101.06; 
3. Warrant Register dated 05-14-2020 in the amount of $754,304.40; 
4. Warrant Register dated 05-19-2020 in the amount of $164,777.55; 
5. Warrant Register dated 05-21-2020 in the amount of $101,211.47; 
6. Warrant Register dated 05-28-2020 in the amount of $1,419,450.95; 
7. Payroll Register dated 06-01-2020 in the amount of $114,840.45. 
 


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for April 2020. 
 


1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 187 and Ordinance No. 188 – Cannabis 
Code Amendment (ZOA 2020-04) 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Daphne Mesa, Gina Castanon (with time donated from Ruben Castanon), 
Kenny Mayes and Matthew Nathanial spoke in favor of the item. 
 
Andy Morris (with time donated by Heidi Morris), Marty Nicholson, Beth, 
Michael, Lacy Roe (with time donated by Janna), Brianna Plagemen, 
Veronica Langworthy, Greg Langworthy (with time donated by Maria 
Walker), and Brenda spoke in opposition of the item.  
 
Acting City Clerk Morales received one additional letter in support and one 
letter in opposition.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by 
Councilmember Benoit to Adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 187 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A CEQA STATUTORY 
EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO THE BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS 
CODE SECTION 26055(H), AND APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENT NO. 2020-04 AMENDING TITLE 17 (ZONING) OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO REVISE SECTIONS 17.12.040, 


17.12.050, 17.72.010, 17.76.010, 17.88.010, AND 17.92.010, AND ADD 
CHAPTER 17.315 (A NEW CHAPTER) TO ESTABLISH CANNABIS 


BUSINESS ZONING AND USE REGULATIONS 
 


MOTION carried 3-2, by the following vote: 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


4 


  
 


YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by 
Councilmember Benoit to Adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 188 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A CEQA STATUTORY 
EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO THE BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS 
CODE SECTION 26055(H), AND AMENDING TITLE 5 (BUSINESS 
LICENSE AND REGULATIONS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 


CODE TO ADD A NEW CODE SECTION (CHAPTER 5.76) TO 
ESTABLISH COMMERCIAL CANNABIS LICENSING REGULATIONS IN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


MOTION carried 3-2, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
1.7 Calling a General Municipal Election on November 3, 2020 


1.) Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 36 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CALLING FOR THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 


2020, FOR THE ELECTION OF CERTAIN OFFICERS IN DISTRICTS 2 
AND 4 AS REQUIRED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF THE 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA RELATING TO GENERAL LAW CITIES 
 
2.) Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 37 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


5 


  
 


COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE TO CONSOLODATE A GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020, WITH 


THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON THE DATE 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 10403 OF THE ELECTIONS CODE 


 
1.8 Award of Landscape and Parks Maintenance Agreement with Inland 


Empire Landscape, Inc.  
Awarded the attached Landscape and Parks Maintenance Services 
Agreement to Inland Empire Landscape, Inc. and appropriated the funds 
identified in the Fiscal Impacts section of this report.   
 


1.9 Mission Trail / Sedco Sidewalk Phase II Project Notice of Completion 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 38 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE MISSION TRAIL / SEDCO SIDEWALK 
PHASE II PROJECT, CIP 044-2 AS COMPLETE, AND AUTHORIZING 


STAFF TO PREPARE AND FILE THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH 
THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY RECORDER 


 
1.10 Award of Construction Contract – Guardrail Repair and Upgrades 


Project (CIP 041, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013)) 
1. Adopted a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301 of the 


CEQA Guidelines. 
 
2. Authorized the City Manager to execute a construction contract with 


Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. in the amount of $369,035.00 for 
construction of the Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project (CIP 041, 
Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013)). 


 
3. Authorized the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 


10% of the contract amount. 
 


1.11 Notice of Annual Rate Adjustment for Waste Management (USA Waste 
of California) 
Received and filed this report regarding the annual rate adjustment for 
Waste Management (USA Waste of California), effective July 1, 2020, 
according to an agreement dated June 12, 2019. 
 


1.12 Fourth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the City and 
CR&R 
Approved the Fourth Amendment to the Franchise Agreement between the 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


6 


  
 


City and CR&R Incorporated and authorized the City Manager to sign it. 
 
 


1.13 Police Services – 2nd Contract Amendment 
Approved the proposed Amendment to the Agreement for Law Enforcement 
Services between the City of Wildomar and the County of Riverside. 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Large Family Day Care Home Code Amendment (ZOA No. 2020-01): 


City Council review of a General Rule CEQA Exemption and a zoning 
ordinance amendment to modify the Wildomar Municipal Code to 
address new state legislation regarding large family day care homes 


  
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 Mayor Nigg opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 Planning Director Bassi presented the Staff Report. 
 
 There being no public comments or testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the Public 
 Hearing. 
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Benoit seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Moore to approve the first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 189 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND APPROVING ZONING 


ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2020-01 TO MODIFY SECTIONS 
17.16, 17.24, 17.28, 17.32, 17.40, 17.44, 17.48, 17.52, 17.56, 17.60, 
17.68 OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADDRESS NEW 
STATE LEGISLATION (SB 234) REGARDING LARGE FAMILY DAY 


CARE HOMES LOCATING IN SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONE 
DISTRICTS 


 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


7 


  
 


 
 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
2.2 Urgent Care CUP Code Amendment (ZOA No. 2020-02): City Council 


review of a General Rule CEQA Exemption and a proposed 
amendment to the Wildomar Municipal Code requiring a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) for urgent care clinics locating in commercial zones 


  
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 Mayor Nigg opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 Planning Director Bassi presented the Staff Report. 
 
 Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment. 
 
 There being no further public comments or testimony, Mayor Nigg closed 
 the Public Hearing. 
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 190 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND APPROVING ZONING 


ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2020-02 TO MODIFY SECTIONS 
17.72; 17.76; 17.80 17.84 AND 17.300 OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 


CODE TO REQUIRE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR URGENT 
CARE CLINICS LOCATING IN COMMERCIAL ZONES 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


8 


  
 


YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 


2.3 Trash Collection Services Liens 
  
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 Mayor Nigg opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 Administrative Services Director Riley presented the Staff Report. 
 
 There being no public comments or testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the Public 
 Hearing. 
 


A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 39 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, CONFIRMING THE REPORT OF DELINQUENT TRASH 
ACCOUNTS AND REQUESTING THE DELINQUENCIES BE PLACED 


ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 


2.4  VMT Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) CEQA Threshold Policy 
Guidelines: City Council action to establish VMT Threshold Policy 
Guidelines for evaluating vehicular traffic impacts as part of the City’s 
CEQA review process 


 
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 Mayor Nigg opened the Public Hearing. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


9 


  
 
 Planning Director Bassi and Planning Manager Teague presented the Staff 
 Report. 
 
 There being no public comments or testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the Public 
 Hearing. 
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 40 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE WILDOMAR 
LOCAL CEQA GUIDELINES TO ADOPT “VEHICLE MILES TRAVELED” 


(VMT) THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PURPOSES OF 
ANALYZING TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SB 743 


 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 


 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 FY19-20 4th Quarter Budget Report  
  


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 


Administrative Services Director Riley presented the staff report. 
 
Kenny Mayes, resident, and Gina Castanon, resident, provided public 
comment. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Benoit to consider approval of the Fiscal Year 2019-20 
Fourth Quarter Report and adopt a Resolution entitled: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


10 


  
 


 
 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 41 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2019-20 
BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
3.2 COVID-19 Update  
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 City Manager Nordquist, Police Lt. Kent and Fire Chief Davis presented the 


staff report. 
 
 City Council received and filed the COVID-19 Update. 
 
3.3 Public Works Maintenance Annual Report 
  


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Assistant City Manager York, Associate Engineer Luna and Senior 
Development Services Technician Abercrombie presented the staff report. 
 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment. 


 
 The City Council received and filed the Public Works Maintenance Annual 


Report and provided feedback on Proposed FY 20/21 Work Program and 
Budget. 


 
3.4 Establish Speed Zones on Various Streets: Phase III and Final City-


Wide List of Streets 
  


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 


 Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report.  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


11 


  
 
 
 Gina Castanon, resident, provided public comment. 
 


A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to establish radar-enforceable Speed Limits in 
the City of Wildomar with the certified speed zone segments included in 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report (See Attachment B); and to 
introduce and approve the first reading of an Ordinance entitled:  


 
ORDINANCE NO. 191 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 10.16 OF TITLE 10 


TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING SPEED 
LIMITS ON CERTAIN STREETS 


 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
5. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 10, 2020 


 


12 


  
 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
City Manager Nordquist presented the report.  
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Right of Way Enhancements- Benoit – August 2020 
2. Letter of Support- Keeping California Safe Act 2020- Benoit –  
3. Letter to Flood Control regarding canyon view park- Benoit - 
 
 
The Regular City Council Meeting of June 10, 2020 is adjourned 
to an adjourned regular meeting on June 24, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.  
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg declared the meeting adjourned at 
10:05 p.m. and adjourned the meeting to an adjourned regular meeting on June 
24, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 
  
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Acting City Clerk    Mayor 
 







ITEM #1.3 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


June 24, 2020 
 
CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 
The closed session of June 24, 2020 of the Wildomar City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Nigg at 5:30 p.m. at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 
Clinton Keith Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, City Attorney Jex and Acting City 
Clerk Morales. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no speakers. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Acting City Clerk Morales read the following: 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employees pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
 
Agency representative:  Gary Nordquist 
Unrepresented employees:   All non-contracted employees 
 
2.  The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and (3) to confer with legal counsel with 
regard to one matter of potential exposure to litigation. 
 
The City Council convened into closed session at 5:32 p.m. 
 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
The City Council reconvened into open session at 6:32 p.m. with all Council 
Members present. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


2 


  
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
City Attorney Jex stated that there were no reportable actions. 
 
 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg adjourned the closed session at 6:33 
p.m. 


CALL TO ORDER – ADJOURNED REGULAR SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 
The Adjourned Regular meeting of June 24, 2020 of the Wildomar City Council 
was conducted electronically pursuant to the provisions of Governor’s Executive 
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 6:34 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following:  
 
Members in attendance: Council Members Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg. 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, Assistant City Manager York, City 
Attorney Jex, Acting City Clerk Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative 
Services Director Riley, Finance Manager Howell, Economic Development 
Director Davidson and Intern II/Associate Engineer Luna  
 
The flag salute was led by Mayor Nigg. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Economic Development Director Davidson presented the Economic 
Development Update. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment regarding permits being 
available online. 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


3 


  
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
Mayor Nigg asked for the Approval of the agenda as presented.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Morabito seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Moore to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL OF THE WILDOMAR 
CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
At 6:52 p.m. Chair Nigg called the Wildomar Cemetery District to order.  All 
Members present. 


 
3.1.A FY 20-21 Budget Amendments 
 Mayor Nigg read the title.  
 
 Administrative Services Director presented the staff report.  
 
 Monty Goddard, resident, provided public comment. 


 
A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Benoit to approve the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget 
Amendments beginning July 1, 2020 except for the Police Budget which will 
go into effect July 5, 2020 and to adopt a resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 42 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2020-21 


BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND SCHEDULE OF 
AUTHORIZED POSITIONS 


 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


4 


  
 


MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
 


3.1.B FY 20-21 Budget Amendments  
 Mayor Nigg read the title.  
 
 Kenny Mayes, resident, and Monty Goddard, resident, provided public 


comment. 
 


A MOTION was made by Trustee Morabito seconded by Vice Chair Moore, 
to adopt a Resolution entitled:  


 
RESOLUTION NO. WCD2020 - 02 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WILDOMAR 
CEMETERY DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 


2020-21 BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 


 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
There being no further business, Chair Nigg adjourned the Wildomar Cemetery 
District at 8:05 p.m. 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Capital Improvement Program Status Report – 4th Quarter 
 Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
 Mayor Nigg opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 Assistant City Manager York presented the Staff Report. 
 
 There being no public comments or testimony, Mayor Nigg closed the Public 
 Hearing. 
 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Benoit seconded by 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


5 


  
 


Councilmember Morabito to Receive and file the FY19/20 4th Quarter 
Capital Improvement Program Status Report and to approve the annual 
update of the Five-Year CIP Booklet and adjusted FY 20/21 funding 
program. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 


 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Mayor Nigg asked for Approval of the Consent Calendar.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by Councilmember 
Benoit to approve the Consent Calendar with the changes to the contract word 
amount to match the contact number amount on Item #1.3 and 1.4. 
 
MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA: Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Mayor Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
RECUSE: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 191 – Amending Chapter 10.16 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code Establishing Speed Zones on Various 
Streets  
Adopted an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 191 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 10.16 OF TITLE 10 
TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING SPEED 


LIMITS ON CERTAIN STREETS 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


6 


  
 
1.3 Consulting Services Contract- Platinum Business Solutions, LLC 


Approved and authorized the City Manager to sign a contract with Platinum 
Business Solutions, LLC to provide human resources administration, fiscal 
services for the Wildomar Cemetery District and consulting services for 
special projects for the Administrative Services Department. 
 


1.4 Consulting Services Contract- FoBro Consulting, LLC 
Approved and authorized the City Manager to execute a contract with FoBro 
Consulting, LLC to provide project-based developer billing, CDBG project 
administration and Homeless program services. 
 


1.5 Consulting Services Contract- Municipal Consulting Services, LLC 
Approved and authorized the City Manager to execute a one-year contract 
with Municipal Consulting Services LLC to provide financial services to the 
City of Wildomar. 
 


1.6 Appropriations Limit for FY 2020-21 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 43 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL 


YEAR 2020-21 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
5. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2020 


 


7 


  
 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
City Manager Nordquist presented the report. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Right of Way Enhancements- Benoit – August 2020 
2. Letter of Support- Keeping California Safe Act 2020- Benoit – September 2020 
3. Letter to Flood Control regarding canyon view park- Benoit – October 2020  
 
Added: Juneteenth Holiday- Morabito 
   Firework Ordinance- Morabito 
 
 
ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL 
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg declared the meeting adjourned at 
8:31 p.m. 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Acting City Clerk    Mayor 
 


 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.4 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
 
 For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 


 
1. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $29,191.34; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $298,945.44; 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $197,660.93; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $122,664.43; 
5. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $84,457.44; 
6. Wire Transfer Register dated 08-04-2020 in the amount of $248,143.45; 


 
 For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 


7. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $197,856.61; 
8. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $1,843.84; 
9. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $29,810.18; 
10. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $166,205.10; 
11. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $80,946.43; 
12. Payroll Register dated 08-01-2020 in the amount of $141,175.99. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2019/20 and 2020/21 Budgets. 
 
 
 







  
 


 2  


Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Finance Manager                City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 07/02/2020 (2)   Voucher List 07/30/2020 (2) 
Voucher List 07/09/2020 (2)       Voucher List 08/04/2020 
Voucher List 07/16/2020 (2)   Payroll Register 08/01/2020 
Voucher List 07/23/2020 (2)     







07/02/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:45:51AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212522 7/2/2020 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 73446 BLOOD DRAW (2)  110.00


Total :  110.00


 212523 7/2/2020 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 39733 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  62.00


 871.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES39734


Total :  933.00


 212524 7/2/2020 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 113461 MAY 2020 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESSING


 411.00


 150.00MAY 2020 DAILY CITE PROCESSING113983


Total :  561.00


 212525 7/2/2020 001574  DOCUSIGN INC INV18039204 ESIGNATURE ENTERPRISE PRO EDITION / 


SUPP


 4,758.00


Total :  4,758.00


 212526 7/2/2020 000022  EDISON 61720 04/17/20-06/15/20 ELECTRIC  3,156.07


 22.6505/13/20-06/12/20 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL61820A


 7.9005/18/20-06/17/20 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


61820B


 17.0105/18/20-06/17/20 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO62020A


 61.2705/18/20-06/17/20 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO62020B


Total :  3,264.90


 212527 7/2/2020 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 87 06/13/20-06/26/20 ACCTING CONTRACTUAL 


SV


 3,410.00


Total :  3,410.00


 212528 7/2/2020 001450  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 70220 WITHHOLDING ORDER - S STANTON  175.00


Total :  175.00


 212529 7/2/2020 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 33959 MAY 2020 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE 6


 70.00


 1,129.90MAY 2020 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE 3


33960


 105.00JUNE 2020 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


MALAG


34031


Total :  1,304.90


 212530 7/2/2020 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 62420 06/13/20-06/26/20 - INTERIM FINANCE DIRE  5,602.50







07/02/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


11:45:51AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  5,602.50 212530 7/2/2020 001046 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC


 212531 7/2/2020 001543  NPPW SERVICES 9059 0000276 PRESSURE WASHING SERVICE FOR 


PARKS - 7 D


 1,218.07


Total :  1,218.07


 212532 7/2/2020 000677  OLDCASTLE PRECAST INC 500029582 ZONE 52 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


 1,950.00


 900.00ZONE 62 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


500029583


 375.00ZONE 59 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


500029584


Total :  3,225.00


 212533 7/2/2020 001244  PLATINUM BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 1054 06/13/20-06/26/20 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 4,400.00


-175.00WITHHOLDING ORDER - S STANTON70220


Total :  4,225.00


 212534 7/2/2020 000526  PRINT POSTAL 15538 BUSINESS CARDS - A JANTZ, A CORONA, K 


RO


 260.96


Total :  260.96


 212535 7/2/2020 001071  SHRED-IT USA 8129968684 CONTRACTUAL SHREDDING SVC (JUNE 


PICK-UP)


 143.01


Total :  143.01


Bank total :  29,191.34 14 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 29,191.34Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 14







07/02/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:46:57AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212536 7/2/2020 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 148165 JULY 2020 PREMIUM  2,780.00


Total :  2,780.00


 212537 7/2/2020 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X06202020 06/13/20-07/12/20 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.00


Total :  57.00


 212538 7/2/2020 000994  CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS, LLC 070120 JULY 2020 CITY HALL MTHLY LEASE 


1029-K10


 30,610.65


Total :  30,610.65


 212539 7/2/2020 000941  FRONTIER 62220 06/22/20-07/21/20 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98


Total :  175.98


 212540 7/2/2020 000024  GUARDIAN 61620 JULY 2020 DENTAL & VISION BENEFITS  2,789.98


Total :  2,789.98


 212541 7/2/2020 000005  PARSAC 21-125 ANNUAL COMMERCIAL CRIME BOND 


CONTRIBUTIO


 827.00


 76.00ANNUAL POLLUTION PROGRAM 


CONTRIBUTION FY


21-158


 54,001.00ANNUAL WORKER'S COMP CONTRIBUTION 


FY 20/


21-26


 102,539.00ANNUAL LIABILITY PROGRAM 


CONTRIBUTION FY


21-89


Total :  157,443.00


 212542 7/2/2020 000985  TRAUMA INTERVENTION PROGRAMS, (TIP)W202021 ANNUAL SERVICES 2020/2021  4,000.00


Total :  4,000.00


Bank total :  197,856.61 7 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 197,856.61Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 7







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:37:35PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212547 7/9/2020 000554  AT & T 62820 TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE P/E 06/28/20  40.50


Total :  40.50


 212548 7/9/2020 000548  CALIFORNIA STATE CONTROLLER'S FTB-00002232 2019 OFFSET PROGRAM 


(SARD/FTB/ADMIN)


 64.04


Total :  64.04


 212549 7/9/2020 001292  CRISP IMAGING 137502 MEASURE A CIP MGMT  151.82


 282.75MEASURE A CIP MGMT137504


Total :  434.57


 212550 7/9/2020 000022  EDISON 060120 05/01/20-06/01/20 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-001  41.30


 40.9304/01/20-05/01/20 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00150120


 252.1403/27/20-05/18/20 ELECTRIC - ZONE62020


 447.8004/27/20-06/22/20 ELECTRIC62520


Total :  782.17


 212551 7/9/2020 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10510038 05/08/20-06/08/20 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  131.28


 45.4205/08/20-06/08/20 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0210510093


 205.1605/08/20-06/08/20 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0110510373


 97.8605/08/20-06/08/20 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -10510569


 3,521.3205/08/20-06/08/20 WATER MARNA OBRIEN10510649


 119.3805/11/20-06/11/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 7 M110515287


 156.5205/11/20-06/11/20 WATER HERITAGE PARK 


(A


10515300


 1,263.3505/12/20-06/12/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


10518054


 1,352.8205/12/20-06/12/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


10518055


 719.1205/12/20-06/12/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


10519818


 115.9805/12/20-06/12/20 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


10521143


Total :  7,728.21


 212552 7/9/2020 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 27128612 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. #25-1249376  214.24


Total :  214.24


 212553 7/9/2020 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 33700 APRIL 2020 CLEANUP @ FS61  425.00







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 2:37:35PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212553 7/9/2020 (Continued)000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC


 718.06APRIL 2020 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE


33806


 8,160.72MAY 2020 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE33860


 8,160.72JUNE 2020 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE34061


Total :  17,464.50


 212554 7/9/2020 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 60346 MAY 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP  63,685.00


 134,387.97MAY 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC60401


Total :  198,072.97


 212555 7/9/2020 000084  MUNISERVICES, LLC INV06-009319 SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYST STARS 


SVC FO


 476.21


Total :  476.21


 212556 7/9/2020 000778  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GRP INC 2006A670 PROF. SVCS AGREEMENT #54 


04/25/20-05/29/


 6,953.67


Total :  6,953.67


 212557 7/9/2020 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-231 CITYWIDE MAINTENANE CONTRACTUAL 


SVCS - J


 38,725.01


 15,187.50AC REPAIRS @ VARIOUS LOCATIONS - 


JUNE 20


005-231A


Total :  53,912.51


 212558 7/9/2020 001167  RRM DESIGN GROUP 1064-01-0420 PROF. SVCS - 27 ACRE PARK  1,065.00


Total :  1,065.00


 212559 7/9/2020 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610224726 MAY 2020 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  1,494.50


 3,820.33MAY 2020 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL OU


5620030955


Total :  5,314.83


 212560 7/9/2020 001101  SIGNS BY TOMORROW 24944 NO TRESPASSING SIGNS  261.80


 261.80NO TRESPASSING SIGNS - REORDER25003


 636.19ACRYLIC BARRIERS - FRONT COUNTER25042


 105.56DOOR SIGN - SUITE 10325069


 424.13ACRYLIC BARRIERS25335


Total :  1,689.48







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 2:37:35PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212561 7/9/2020 000790  SPARKLETTS 62720 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


06/27/2


 264.37


 48.94CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


06/28/2


62820


Total :  313.31


 212562 7/9/2020 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 605 FY 19/20 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22,


 2,583.33


Total :  2,583.33


 212563 7/9/2020 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11389091 PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. 187, 188  330.00


 448.80PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. 187, 18811391429


 215.60PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. 19111391431


 281.60PUBLIC NOTICE - PW CONSTRUCTION RFP11391736A


 269.50PUBLIC NOTICE -NOA-NOC BAXTER 


VILLAGE


11392436


 290.40PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH #13 CFD2013 & 


LLMD


11393365


Total :  1,835.90


Bank total :  298,945.44 17 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 298,945.44Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 17







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:38:29PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212564 7/9/2020 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 34101 7/6/20 TREE TRIMMING - ZONE 71  810.00


Total :  810.00


 212565 7/9/2020 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11391736B PUBLIC NOTICE - PW CONSTRUCTION RFP  256.00


 347.60PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. 189, 19011394556


Total :  603.60


 212566 7/9/2020 000437  VERIZON WIRELESS 9857180071 06/23/20-07/22/20 DATA INTERNET 


CHARGES


 354.22


 76.0206/23/20-07/22/20 DATA INTERNET 


CHARGES


9857180072


Total :  430.24


Bank total :  1,843.84 3 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,843.84Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 3







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:37:33PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212570 7/16/2020 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 73490 BLOOD DRAW (4)  220.00


Total :  220.00


 212571 7/16/2020 000007  ANIMAL FRIENDS OF THE VALLEY,, INC. MAR,APR,MAY2020 MARCH, APRIL, MAY 2020 ANIMAL 


CONTROL SE


 21,000.00


Total :  21,000.00


 212572 7/16/2020 001002  ARCHITERRA DESIGN GROUP 27264 05/25/20-06/24/20 PLAN CHECK - 2ND PC  562.50


 591.2505/25/20-06/24/20 SITE INSPECT - 


SUMMERH


27265


Total :  1,153.75


 212573 7/16/2020 000022  EDISON 70220A 05/28/20-06/26/20 ELECTRIC - BASEBALL FI  65.11


 152.1805/28/20-06/26/20 ELECTRIC - 21400 PALOM70220B


 35.7106/01/20-07/01/20 ELECTRIC - CSA 10370220C


Total :  253.00


 212574 7/16/2020 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10521739 05/15/20-06/15/20 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 1 


M1


 1,143.12


 231.4705/15/20-06/15/20 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 3 


M3


10521994


 397.0505/15/20-06/15/20 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 2 


M2


10521995


 168.6505/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


10524647


 83.5505/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 210524855


 51.7505/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


10524895


 158.7705/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 110525149


 623.6005/18/20-06/18/20 WATER BASEBALL FIELD10525313


 961.5005/18/20-06/18/20 WATER WINDSONG PARK10525354


 431.7505/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


10525862


 333.7505/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


10525939


 220.2905/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 110525942


 264.6405/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &10526040


 157.3805/18/20-06/18/20 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


10526435


 68.7405/18/20-06/18/20 WATER 22450 CERVERA10526676







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 2:37:33PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212574 7/16/2020 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 191.6705/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293310527771


 323.0005/18/20-06/18/20 WATER ZONE 67 - 


ARNNET


10527858


 212.7305/19/20-06/19/20 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


10528427


Total :  6,023.41


 212575 7/16/2020 000941  FRONTIER 60120A 06/01/20-06/30/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


 387.01


 60.7306/01/20-06/30/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


60120B


 69.7606/07/20-07/06/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


60720


Total :  517.50


 212576 7/16/2020 001573  GRANICUS, LLC 126508 0000288 PEAK AGENDA MANAGEMENT, PEAK 


AGENDA SEND


 10,200.00


Total :  10,200.00


 212577 7/16/2020 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000037525 FY 19/20 RATE ADJUSTMENT - CONTRACT 


LAW


 133,883.26


Total :  133,883.26


 212578 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER33120 VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE  250.00


 250.00VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE43020


 250.00VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE53120


-535.96CR: LEAGUE OF CA CITIES DIV. MEETING 


JUN


K3JYOX-CREDIT


Total :  214.04


 212579 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER262547 NON-DEPT OFFICE SUPPLIES  14.00


-435.24HR- IPMA REGIONAL CONFERENCE 


5/3-5/6/20


32MQ5GZV-CREDIT


-349.00HR- IPMA REGIONAL CONFERENCE 


5/3-5/6/20


408-CREDIT


 18.22NON-DEPT OFFICE SUPPLIES460158657


 248.36ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES465123006


 43.49NON-DEPT OFFICE SUPPLIES468994690


 173.96NON-DEPT OFFICE SUPPLIES480796575


 417.11CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICE SUPPLIES52620







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 2:37:33PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212579 7/16/2020 (Continued)000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER


 30.00HR OFFICE SUPPLIES60120


 171.80ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES9815479308


 22.63NON-DEPT OFFICE SUPPLIES9815831922A


 30.75HR OFFICE SUPPLIES9815831922B


Total :  386.08


 212580 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER153331541 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE  684.00


 199.00CEMETERY SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION52720


 293.61CEMETERY COVID SUPPLIES60420


 17.68CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES61020


 10.85PE SUBSCRIPTION61720


Total :  1,205.14


 212581 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER26207158 ZOOM 4 HOST + ROOM CONNECT 


6/16/20-07/15


 108.96


 293.61COVID-19 NON DEPT SUPPLIES3228242


 130.07CITY CLERK OFFICE SUPPLIES509347789


 17.38CITY CLERK OFFICE SUPPLIES510794092


 59.95BLDG & SAFETY ONLINE PAYMENT96460484


Total :  609.97


 212582 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER60820 APA  90.00


Total :  90.00


 212583 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER6904367 BUILDING DEPT FORMS  82.27


 5.99NEWSPAPER MEMBERSHIPINV-2688


Total :  88.26


 212584 7/16/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER52320 FIRE STATION EXPENSE  27.80


 25.56FIRE STATION EXPENSE52420


 26.10FIRE STATION EXPENSE52620A


 28.80FIRE STATION EXPENSE52620B


 28.26FIRE STATION EXPENSE60720


Total :  136.52


 212585 7/16/2020 000131  WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY, RCA 71420 JUNE 2020 MSHCP MITIGATION FEES  21,680.00


Total :  21,680.00


Bank total :  197,660.93 16 Vouchers for bank code : wf







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 2:37:33PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 197,660.93Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 16







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:38:28PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212586 7/16/2020 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 5018300053 NON-DEPT FIRST AID & SAFETY - CITY 


HALL


 670.73


Total :  670.73


 212587 7/16/2020 001479  DISCOUNT HAULING AND CLEANUP, SERVICES3345 CLEAN/HAUL TRASH - 2 HOMELESS CAMPS 


ALON


 3,161.00


Total :  3,161.00


 212588 7/16/2020 000076  EDC OF SOUTHWEST CALIFORNIA 70820 EDC CITY MEMBERSHIP FY 20/21  13,000.00


Total :  13,000.00


 212589 7/16/2020 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 88 06/27/20-07/10/20 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 3,300.00


Total :  3,300.00


 212590 7/16/2020 001450  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 71620 WITHHOLDING ORDER - S STANTON  175.00


Total :  175.00


 212591 7/16/2020 000941  FRONTIER 70120A 07/01/20-07/31/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


 387.01


 60.6707/01/20-07/31/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


70120B


 60.6707/07/20-08/06/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


70720


Total :  508.35


 212592 7/16/2020 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 70920 06/27/20-07/10/20 - INTERIM FINANCE DIRE  3,602.50


Total :  3,602.50


 212593 7/16/2020 000510  OCHOA'S BACKFLOW SYSTEMS 948 FS61 - BACKFLOW TEST  50.00


Total :  50.00


 212594 7/16/2020 001244  PLATINUM BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 1055 06/27/20-07/10/20 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 4,070.00


-175.00WITHHOLDING ORDER - S STANTON71620


Total :  3,895.00


 212595 7/16/2020 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 113950358 PUBLIC NOTICE - 7-0111-FBC-R1-NOPH  277.20


 193.60PUBLIC NOTICE - PUBLIC WORKSHOP11395041


 211.20PUBLIC NOTICE - PC MTG11395044







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 2:38:28PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212595 7/16/2020 (Continued)000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE


 264.00PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. 19111395137


 233.20PUBLIC NOTICE - NOTICE OF ELECTION - 


ENG


11396297


 268.40PUBLIC NOTICE - NOTICE OF ELECTION - 


SPA


11396300


Total :  1,447.60


Bank total :  29,810.18 10 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 29,810.18Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 10







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:57:52PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212597 7/23/2020 001577  BUSINESS & COMMUNITY SVCS, LIBRARY DIVISION2020-28 MAY & JUNE 2020 DIF LIBRARY  2,674.91


Total :  2,674.91


 212598 7/23/2020 000081  CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS, COMMISSION71620 APRIL 2020-JUNE 2020 CA BLDG 


STANDARDS A


 256.50


Total :  256.50


 212599 7/23/2020 000785  CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 82031102 JUNE 2020 CODE ENFORCEMENT 


SOFTWARE


 150.00


Total :  150.00


 212600 7/23/2020 000011  CR&R INC. 2350 06/01/20-06/30/20 STREET & BIKE LANE 


SWE


 455.86


 607.6406/16/20 DUMP 40YD BOX & DISPOSAL FEE325314


Total :  1,063.50


 212601 7/23/2020 001292  CRISP IMAGING 137034 CIP 042 GUARDRAIL  40.24


 239.58CIP 041 PED HEAD137305


Total :  279.82


 212602 7/23/2020 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 114380 JUNE 2020 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESSING


 150.00


 327.88JUNE 2020 DAILY CITE PROCESSING114928


Total :  477.88


 212603 7/23/2020 000082  DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION, DIVISION OF ADMIN SERVICE71620 APRIL 2020 - JUNE 2020 SMIP FEES  924.98


Total :  924.98


 212604 7/23/2020 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 34154 JUNE 2020 LANDSCAPE REPAIR/REPLACE 


ZONE


 2,456.84


Total :  2,456.84


 212605 7/23/2020 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 220973 06/01/20-06/30/20 CONTRACT COPIER SVC 


MA


 651.62


Total :  651.62


 212606 7/23/2020 000856  MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL IN 1088497 JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  13,708.25


Total :  13,708.25







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


12:57:52PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212607 7/23/2020 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-10877 0000237 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY19/20 


AS D


 2,016.00


Total :  2,016.00


 212608 7/23/2020 001555  NBS 620000061 JUNE 2020 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  5,272.50


Total :  5,272.50


 212609 7/23/2020 001543  NPPW SERVICES 9112 0000276 PRESSURE WASHING SERVICE FOR 


PARKS - 7 D


 522.03


Total :  522.03


 212610 7/23/2020 001262  PEST OPTIONS INC 347820 0000261 PRE-POST EMERGENT SPRAYING - MARNA 


OBRIE


 1,105.00


 500.00GOPHER CONTROL - WINDSONG & MARNA 


OBRIEN


352493


Total :  1,605.00


 212611 7/23/2020 001107  PLACEWORKS 72591 JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC -CIP28-1  17,480.51


 3,930.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - MULTI 


FAMILY


72601


 7,736.60JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72624


 3,557.50JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC72625


 600.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72627


 1,178.25JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - HOUSING 


SVC


72628


 262.50JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72629


 550.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72630


 332.50JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72631


 2,110.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72632


 600.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72633


 75.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72634


 746.25JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72635







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


12:57:52PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212611 7/23/2020 (Continued)001107  PLACEWORKS


 120.00JUNE 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELA


72637


Total :  39,279.11


 212612 7/23/2020 000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE2020/07-01 ANIMAL SHELTER MISC EXPENSES P/E 


6/30/20


 1,421.20


Total :  1,421.20


 212613 7/23/2020 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2020-155 03/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  1,030.00


 99.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-191


 1,496.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-203


 260.0002/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-204


 390.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-205


 94.9303/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-206


 8,006.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-207


 3,274.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-208


 1,997.5003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-209


 520.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-210


 1,844.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-211


 856.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-212


 7,721.8604/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-251


 13,005.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-252


 3,903.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-254


 341.0003/01/20-03/31/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-255


 130.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-256


 1,641.5003/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-257


 1,633.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-258


 130.0004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-260


 1,531.5004/01/20-04/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2020-261


Total :  49,904.29


Bank total :  122,664.43 17 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 122,664.43Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 17







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


12:57:52PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:01:22PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212614 7/23/2020 000088  ACE HARDWARE 305283/3 WINDSONG DEPT SUPPLIES  10.05


Total :  10.05


 212615 7/23/2020 000031  AFLAC, REMITTANCE PROCESSING, CENTER547412 JULY 2020 MEDICAL INSURANCE BENEFIT  3,927.80


Total :  3,927.80


 212616 7/23/2020 000011  CR&R INC. 325339 07/01/20 3YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD  146.94


 146.9407/01/20 3YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61325403


Total :  293.88


 212617 7/23/2020 001292  CRISP IMAGING 137709 CIP 026 BUNDY CANYON  134.20


Total :  134.20


 212618 7/23/2020 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 703H JULY 2020 CITY HALL JANITORIAL 


SERVICES


 1,998.00


Total :  1,998.00


 212619 7/23/2020 000027  DIRECT TV 37601027591 07/12/20-08/11/20 CITY HALL CABLE SERVIC  152.99


Total :  152.99


 212620 7/23/2020 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 27366609 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST #13-1228588  214.24


 359.97CANON COLOR COPIER SYST 


#008-1472515


27393680


Total :  574.21


 212621 7/23/2020 001543  NPPW SERVICES 9127 0000289 92 DAYS - DAILY PARKS AMENITIES 


PRESSURE


 1,914.11


Total :  1,914.11


 212622 7/23/2020 000005  PARSAC 21-190 ANNUAL PROPERTY INSURANCE 


CONTRIBUTION F


 12,214.00


Total :  12,214.00


 212623 7/23/2020 000185  PITNEY BOWES 70620 POSTAGE METER REFILL 07/01/20  503.50


Total :  503.50


 212624 7/23/2020 000715  RCIT-GIS, ATTN:  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 72220 GIS ADDRESSING CIP 026  60.00


Total :  60.00







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 1:01:22PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212625 7/23/2020 000186  RIGHTWAY 265296 06/25/20-07/22/20-  PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WIND


 362.00


Total :  362.00


 212626 7/23/2020 000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE2021-01WIL JULY 2020-SEPT 2020 QTRLY ANIMAL 


SHELTER


 70,193.00


 33,041.00SCFA WILDOMAR CREDIT ENHANCEMENT 


LOAN RE


70120


Total :  103,234.00


 212627 7/23/2020 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000037711 RIVERSIDE CAL-ID FY 20/21 MEMBER 


AGENCY


 36,066.00


Total :  36,066.00


 212628 7/23/2020 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11397891 PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD. NO. 189 & 190  457.60


Total :  457.60


 212629 7/23/2020 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318070820 CABLE THROUGH 08/07/20 - FS61  5.25


Total :  5.25


 212630 7/23/2020 000055  WRCOG 561 FY 20/21 WRCOG MEMBER DUES  4,297.51


Total :  4,297.51


Bank total :  166,205.10 17 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 166,205.10Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 17







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:03:34AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212637 7/30/2020 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 73543 BLOOD DRAW (1)  55.00


Total :  55.00


 212638 7/30/2020 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 39860 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  742.00


Total :  742.00


 212639 7/30/2020 000080  BURKE, WILLIAMS AND SORENSON,, LLP TEMPLATE-B MAY 2020 LEGAL FEES  53,885.01


Total :  53,885.01


 212640 7/30/2020 001467  GOLDEN TOUCH CLEANING, SOLUTIONS, INC67294 0000238 WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY19/20 


AS PE


 4,005.00


0000238  428.02WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY19/20 


AS PE


67295


 1,800.00JUNE 2020 CITY HALL DISINFECT - 


COVID-19


67296


Total :  6,233.02


 212641 7/30/2020 000836  KOA CORPORATION JB93120-5 06/01/20-06/28/20 WILDOMAR SSAR  7,947.08


Total :  7,947.08


 212642 7/30/2020 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-11024A 0000237 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY19/20 


AS D


 1,296.00


Total :  1,296.00


 212643 7/30/2020 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5620031185 CLINTON KEITH/GEORGE - HIT POLE 


4/17/20


 2,016.00


Total :  2,016.00


 212644 7/30/2020 001306  SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 6302020 JUNE 2020 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  9,600.00


Total :  9,600.00


 212645 7/30/2020 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 634 FY 19/20 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1C/CSA 


22,


 2,583.33


Total :  2,583.33


 212646 7/30/2020 001323  THE VILLAGE NEWS 1655 MISC - ALL CITY EDC  100.00


Total :  100.00


Bank total :  84,457.44 10 Vouchers for bank code : wf







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


11:03:34AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 84,457.44Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 10







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:05:00AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212647 7/30/2020 000312  ADAME LANDSCAPE, INC. 84199 JULY 2020 MONTHLY LANDSCAPE 


MAINTENANCE


 250.00


Total :  250.00


 212648 7/30/2020 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X07202020 07/13/20-08/12/20 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.00


Total :  57.00


 212649 7/30/2020 000994  CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS, LLC 80120 AUGUST 2020 CITY HALL MTHLY LEASE 


1029-K


 30,610.65


Total :  30,610.65


 212650 7/30/2020 000700  CPRS 71620 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP - DIST 11 - B MOORE 


TH


 100.00


Total :  100.00


 212651 7/30/2020 001292  CRISP IMAGING 137855 CIP 026  217.72


Total :  217.72


 212652 7/30/2020 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC535257A PEST CONTROL (7/27/20)  50.50


Total :  50.50


 212653 7/30/2020 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 89 07/11/20-07/24/20 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 3,465.00


Total :  3,465.00


 212654 7/30/2020 000941  FRONTIER 72220 07/22/20-08/21/20 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98


Total :  175.98


 212655 7/30/2020 000122  INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF, MUNICIPAL CLERKS63020 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP THROUGH 9/30/21  210.00


Total :  210.00


 212656 7/30/2020 000070  LAKE ELSINORE AND SAN JACINTO, WATERSHEDS AUTHORITY8849 FY 20/21 TMDL TASK FORCE 


CONTRIBUTIONS


 30,945.00


Total :  30,945.00


 212657 7/30/2020 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-11024B 0000293 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY20/21 


AS D


 792.00


Total :  792.00







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


11:05:00AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212658 7/30/2020 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 72320 07/11/20-07/24/20 INTERIM FINANCE 


DIRECT


 4,097.50


Total :  4,097.50


 212659 7/30/2020 001543  NPPW SERVICES 9144 0000289 92 DAYS - DAILY PARKS AMENITIES 


PRESSURE


 1,218.07


0000289  1,218.0792 DAYS - DAILY PARKS AMENITIES 


PRESSURE


9148


Total :  2,436.14


 212660 7/30/2020 001244  PLATINUM BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 1056 07/11/20-07/24/20 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 3,960.00


Total :  3,960.00


 212661 7/30/2020 000395  POWELL'S OFFICE FURNITURE 11938 0000292 FURNITURE FOR MODIFIED FRONT 


COUNTER DUE


 3,528.94


Total :  3,528.94


 212662 7/30/2020 000283  RIVERSIDE COUNTY CLERK 72820 FILING FEE - NOE CIP 041  50.00


Total :  50.00


Bank total :  80,946.43 16 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 80,946.43Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 16







08/04/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:56:23PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 68 6/1/2020 001443  WILMINGTON TRUST NATL ASSOC 539 SEMI-ANNUAL STREETLIGHT LEASE 


PURCHASE P


 102,914.37


-16,293.39SEMI-ANNUAL STREETLIGHT LEASE 


PURCHASE P


539


Total :  86,620.98


 69 6/1/2020 001443  WILMINGTON TRUST NATL ASSOC 20200321-88271-A ANNUAL BANKING SERVICE FEE 


ASSESSMENT -


 500.00


Total :  500.00


 70 6/1/2020 001443  WILMINGTON TRUST NATL ASSOC 20200321-88288-A ANNUAL BANKING SERVICE FEE 


ASSESSMENT -


 500.00


Total :  500.00


 72 6/11/2020 000749  VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS, 30720703272020 ICMA 457 DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 03/2


 1,825.00


 1,863.89DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 04/1


04102020 ICMA 457


 1,825.00DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 04/2


042420 ICMA 457


 1,825.00DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 05/0


05082020 ICMA 457


 1,863.89DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 05/2


05222020 ICMA 457


 1,825.00DEFERRED COMP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 06/0


06052020 ICMA 457


Total :  11,027.78


 73 6/11/2020 000749  VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS, 30720703272020 ICMA RHS RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 03/27


 673.86


 673.86RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 04/10


04102020 ICMA RHS


 673.86RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 04/24


04242020 ICMA RHS


 673.86RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 05/08


05082020 ICMA RHS


 673.86RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 05/22


05222020 ICMA RHS


 673.86RHS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 


PPE 06/05


06052020 ICMA RHS







08/04/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


10:56:23PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  4,043.16 73 6/11/2020 000749 000749  VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS, 307207


 60120201 6/1/2020 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER200601 FDGL BANK EQUIPMENT LEASE  44.59


Total :  44.59


 60520201 6/5/2020 000028  CALPERS 16044322 JUNE 2020 MEDICAL INSURANCE AND 


PREMIUMS


 15,260.17


Total :  15,260.17


 60520202 6/5/2020 000028  CALPERS 04242020 CALPERS RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PPE 


04/24/2


 10,673.32


Total :  10,673.32


 60520203 6/5/2020 000028  CALPERS 16044489 JUNE 2020 CEMETERY DISTRICT RETIREE 


MEDI


 352.34


Total :  352.34


 61020201 6/10/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 06052020 NET PAYROLL NET PAYROLL FOR PPE 06/05/2020  36,297.85


Total :  36,297.85


 61020203 6/10/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 0009940187 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES FOR PPE 


06/05/20


 123.95


Total :  123.95


 61520201 6/15/2020 000028  CALPERS 05082020 CALPERS RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PPE 


05/08/2


 10,668.49


Total :  10,668.49


 61520202 6/15/2020 000028  CALPERS 05222020 CALPERS RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PPE 


05/22/2


 10,668.49


Total :  10,668.49


 61520203 6/15/2020 000028  CALPERS MAY 2020 CC CALPERS RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR MAY 


2020 CI


 374.07


Total :  374.07


 61920201 6/19/2020 001513  US BANK 05182020 HAND SANITIZER  17.36


 445.63ADDITIONAL ACCESSORIES FOR SOLAR 


POWERED


243423


 344.192018 GREENBOOK: STANDARD SPECS FOR 


PUBLI


BNI1278







08/04/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


10:56:23PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  807.18 61920201 6/19/2020 001513 001513  US BANK


 62220201 6/22/2020 001485  WEX BANK 65531963 FUEL PURCHASES FOR APRIL 24 TO MAY 


23 20


 188.34


Total :  188.34


 62420201 6/24/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 06192020 NET PAYROLL NET PAYROLL FOR PPE 06/19/2020  35,417.24


Total :  35,417.24


 62420202 6/24/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 06192020 PAYROLL TAX PAYROLL TAXES FOR 06/19/2020  11,683.84


Total :  11,683.84


 62420203 6/24/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 0009940188 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES FOR PPE 


06/19/20


 117.00


Total :  117.00


 63020201 6/30/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS JUNE 2020 CC NET PYR NET PAYROLL FOR JUNE 2020 CITY 


COUNCIL P


 1,277.42


Total :  1,277.42


 63020202 6/1/2020 000028  CALPERS APR 2020 CC CALPERS RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS FOR APRIL 


2020


 374.07


Total :  374.07


 63020203 6/30/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS JUNE 2020 CC PYR TAX PAYROLL TAXES FOR JUNE 2020 CITY 


COUNCIL


 41.46


Total :  41.46


 63020204 6/30/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 0010205229 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES FOR JUNE 


2020


 85.00


Total :  85.00


 601020202 6/10/2020 001281  HEARTLAND PAYROLL SOLUTIONS 06052020 PAYROLL TAx PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 06/05/2020  10,996.71


Total :  10,996.71


Bank total :  248,143.45 24 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 248,143.45Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 24







08/04/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


10:56:23PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


7/9/2020 Heartland Payroll 06/20/2020-07/03/2020 90,883.57$    


7/23/2020 Heartland Payroll 07/04/2020-07/17/2020 48,888.55


7/31/2020 Heartland Payroll 07/01/2020-07/31/2020 1,403.87


TOTAL 141,175.99$  


City of Wildomar


Payroll Warrant Register


8/1/2020







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.5 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: July 8, 2020 


 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  James R. Riley, Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Robert Howell, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for May 2020. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of May 2020. 
The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund and 
the California Asset Management Program for its city investments. Utilizing the two 
investment programs allows the City to potentially increase the interest earned on the 
money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
James R. Riley      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director    City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING


FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO  $ 5,792,621.72  $ 5,378,938.75 (2,915,588.09)  $ 8,255,972.38 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 5,792,621.72  $ 5,378,938.75  $ (2,915,588.09)  $ 8,255,972.38


PERCENT


OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 1,143,123.21  $ 1,143,123.21  $ 1,143,123.21 100.00% 0 1.363%


All  $ 5,081,801.46  $ 5,081,801.46  $ 5,081,801.46 100.00% 0 0.510%


TOTAL  $ 6,224,924.67  $ 6,224,924.67  $ 6,224,924.67 100.00%


CITY $ 14,480,897.05


(-)


+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED


FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 1,143,123.21  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 1,143,123.21 1.217%


All  $ 5,081,801.46  $ 2,136.89  $ 0.00  $ 5,083,938.35 0.510%


TOTAL  $ 6,224,924.67  $ 2,136.89  $ 0.00  $ 6,227,061.56


 


James R. Riley
James R, Riley


Administrative Services Director


Date


8/5/2020


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as Administrative Services Director/City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment 


liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's 


Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


CITY OF WILDOMAR


TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO


June 2020


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item 1.6  


Consent Calender 
 Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Farag, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT:  Award of Construction Contract – Guardrail Repair and Upgrades 


Project (CIP 041, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(012)) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 


 
1. Adopt a Categorical Exemption pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA 


Guidelines. 
2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with Alfaro 


Communications Construction, Inc. in the amount of $261,590.00 for construction 
of the Pedestrian Countdown Head and Crosswalk Enhancement Project (CIP 
041, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(012)). 


3. Authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders not to exceed 10% of the 
contract amount. 
 


BACKGROUND: 
The City of Wildomar was awarded Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) grant 
funds for two projects in the City. HSIP is a Federal-aid program which aims to reduce 
traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. One of the projects the City 
received funding for is a pedestrian safety and accessibility project. This project includes 
the installation of new pedestrian countdown heads and push buttons at existing 
signalized intersections and also includes the upgrade of existing pedestrian curb ramps 
to current standards, throughout the City. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
A bid package for the Pedestrian Countdown Head and Crosswalk Enhancement Project 
which included construction plans, technical specifications, and bid documents was 
prepared and advertised for construction bids. The project includes the installation of new 
pedestrian countdown heads and new pedestrian push buttons (including one Accessible 
Pedestrian Signal system) at various signalized intersections throughout the City; the 
upgrade of several existing pedestrian curb ramps at designated locations shown on the 
plans; the installation of one new pedestrian curb ramp; and signage and striping 







  
 


  
 


replacement. The plans are included as Attachment A. 
  
The project was advertised for bids online and in the Press Enterprise on June 19, 2020. 
Bids were accepted until 3:00 pm on July 13, 2020. The City Clerk received five timely 
bids as provided in the Table below. 
 


Contractor Name Total Bid Price 
Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. $261,590.00 
Onyx Paving Company, Inc. $262,000.00 
Calpromax Engineering, Inc. $264,695.00 
LC Paving and Sealing, Inc. $406,870.92 
Elecnor Belco Electric, Inc. $418,240.00 


 
The Engineer’s Opinion of Construction Costs for the project was $264,568.50. 
 
Staff reviewed the bid packages submitted by the bidders, checked the bid packages for 
compliance with the contract documents, and has determined that Alfaro 
Communications Construction, Inc. is the responsible bidder submitting the lowest 
responsive bid. The bid proposal received by Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. 
is included as Attachment B. 
 
Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. holds a valid Class A General Contractor’s 
license in the State of California, with no enforcement actions listed. Their license expires 
on May 31, 2022. The Experience/Qualifications Statement that was submitted with the 
bid documents indicate that Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. has engaged in 
contracting under the current name for 12 years and has not failed to satisfactorily 
complete a contract. A list of four similar public works projects were listed ranging in value 
from $432,000 to $2,327,000. For these projects, the Owners/Agencies for whom work 
was performed were listed as: City of Palmdale, City of Claremont, City of Rancho 
Cucamonga, and the Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 
 
The construction contract allows 45 working days to complete the required work. Based 
on a Notice to Proceed being issued to the contractor on September 1, 2020 the contract 
completion is projected to be November 3, 2020 (barring time extensions due to change 
orders or inclement weather). The contract is included as Attachment C. 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for the Pedestrian Countdown Head 
and Crosswalk Enhancement Project. Based on this evaluation, staff has determined the 
project meets the requirements for a Class 1 Categorical Exception pursuant to Section 
15301 (Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 







  
 


  
 


The proposed improvements would not expand existing pedestrian use of walkways at 
the proposed improvement locations and would be considered an alteration to pedestrian 
crossings that would not create additional automobile lanes pursuant to Section 
15301(c)(c). The proposed improvements also would improve existing safety protection 
devices pursuant to Section 15301(c)(f). Therefore, the City Council, in exercising its 
independent judgment, can find that the Pedestrian Countdown Head and Crosswalk 
Enhancement Project (CIP 041) is categorically exempt in accordance with Section 15301 
of CEQA, and hereby directs the Planning Director to file a Notice of Exemption with the 
Riverside County Clerk within 5 working days of adoption (i.e., by August 19, 2020). 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Project expenditures for Construction are primarily funded by HSIP grant funds (Fund 
506), with remaining Construction expenditures funded by Measure A. Expenditures 
related to the Design/PS&E/Administration phase as well as the Construction 
Administration and Inspection costs are funded under Measure A. 
 
The Project expenditure summary for FY 20/21 is provided in the table below. 
 


Project Expenditures Budget Expenditures to 
Date Budget Remaining 


Design/PS&E/Administration Completed in FY 19/20 


Construction $250,000 (HSIP) 
$60,000 (Meas. A) 


$0 (HSIP) 
$0 (Meas. A) 


$250,000 (HSIP) 
$60,000 (Meas. A) 


Construction Administration 
& Inspection $37,000 (Meas. A) $5,000 (Meas. A) 


(est. through July 30)  $32,000 (Meas. A) 


Total $347,000 $5,000 $342,000 
 
In addition to the $250,000 of HSIP grant funds available to the City, an additional $10,000 
in Construction grant funds not previously accounted for have been made available from 
the Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California (PARSAC). 
 
Based on the lowest bid of $261,590 and accounting for a 10% change order contingency, 
the total construction cost estimate is now $287,749. HSIP will fund 87% of the 
construction cost ($250,000), PARSAC will fund an additional 3% ($10,000), and 
Measure A funds will fund the remaining 10% of the cost ($27,749). The total project 
construction cost, including construction administration and inspection, is now estimated 
to be $324,749 and will be adequately covered by the approved FY 2020-2021 budget 
amount of $347,000. 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City’s General Fund. 
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York   Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director/  City Manager 
City Engineer 
   
 







  
 


  
 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Improvement Plans (Bid Set) 
B. Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. Bid Proposal 
C. Construction Contract 







ATTACHMENT A 







Pedestrian Countdown Head and
Crosswalk Enhancement Project


CIP 041, Federal Project #HSIP-5484(012)


Project Plans


Note: Some linework shown on the approved plans may be difficult to discern, due to print 
and scan quality. Therefore, a clearer duplicate copy of each sheet of the plan set, except 


for Sheet 1, has been included in this plan set to improve the readibility of the plans.















(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


GENERAL NOTES FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
1. ALL MATERIAL AND WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND


SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS.


2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT, (800) 227-2600, AND
ALL CONCERNED UTILITY COMPANIES AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS IN ADVANCE OF
EXCAVATION.


LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATIONS AND VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS ON THE JOB SITE PRIOR TO
COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR IS FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES
OCCURRED DUE TO FAILURE TO LOCATE AND PRESERVE ALL  UTILITIES.  HAND DIG AS
NEEDED OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER UNTIL CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS.


3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY CLEAN UP ON CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY
AFFECTED BY CONTRACTOR'S WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE CITY
RIGHT-OF-WAY CLEAN OF DEBRIS, WITH DUST AND OTHER NUISANCES BEING
CONTROLLED AT ALL TIMES.  METHOD OF STREET CLEANING SHALL BE DRY SWEEPING OF
ALL PAVED AREAS.  THERE SHALL BE NO STOCKPILING OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
WITHIN THE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF THE ENGINEER.


4. EXISTING PRIVATELY OWNED IMPROVEMENTS ON PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE
PROTECTED OR REPLACED.


5. SEE CALTRANS STANDARD PLAN ES-1A, ES-1B, AND ES-1C FOR SYMBOLS AND
ABBREVIATION LEGENDS.


6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL TRAFFIC SIGNAL EQUIPMENTS,
SIGNS, AND SIGNING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS.  ALL
SIGNS SHALL BE REFLECTORIZED AND STANDARD SIZE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


7. ALL SIGNAL HOUSINGS, VISORS, AND BACKPLATES SHALL BE METAL.  VEHICLE SIGNAL
HOUSING SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH LOUVERED BACKPLAGE.  A TUNNEL VISOR SHALL BE
PROVIDED FOR EACH SIGNAL FACE.


8. ALL EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO FINAL
PLACEMENT.


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


2


9


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


NOTES (CONT.)


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/4/2020


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


GENERAL NOTES FOR NPDES
1. CONSTRUCTION SITE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF


STORMWATER AND NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES SHALL BE DOCUMENTED ON THE
CONTRACTOR'S WATER POLLUTION CONTROL DRAWING (WPCD). ARRANGEMENTS SHALL
BE MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR TO RETAIN THE WPCD ON THE JOBSITE THROUGHOUT THE
TIME OF CONSTRUCTION. THE IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE OF SITE BMPS IS
REQUIRED TO MINIMIZE JOBSITE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION. ARRANGEMENTS SHALL
BE MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN THOSE BMPS THROUGHOUT THE TIME OF
CONSTRUCTION.


2. EROSION CONTROL BMPS SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED AND MAINTAINED TO MINIMIZE THE
ENTRAINMENT OF SOIL IN RUNOFF FROM DISTURBED SOIL AREAS ON THE CONSTRUCTION
SITES.


3. SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED AND MAINTAINED TO MINIMIZE THE
TRANSPORT OF SOIL FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.


4. GRADING SHALL BE PHASED TO LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF DISTURBED AREAS EXPOSED TO
THE EXTENT FEASIBLE.


5. AREAS THAT ARE CLEARED AND GRADED SHALL BE LIMITED TO ONLY THE PORTION OF
THE SITE THAT IS NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION. THE CONSTRUCTION SITE SHALL BE
MANAGED TO MINIMIZE THE EXPOSURE TIME OF DISTURBED SOIL AREAS THROUGH
PHASING AND SCHEDULING OF GRADING AND THE USE OF TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT
SOIL STABILIZATION..


6. ONCE DISTURBED, SLOPES (TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT) SHALL BE STABILIZED IF THEY
WILL NOT BE WORKED WITHIN 14 DAYS. ALL SLOPES SHALL BE STABILIZED PRIOR TO A
PREDICTED STORM EVENT. CONSTRUCTION SITES SHALL BE REVEGETATED AS EARLY AS
FEASIBLE AFTER SOIL DISTURBANCE.


7. STOCKPILES OF SOIL SHALL BE PROPERLY CONTAINED TO ELIMINATE OR REDUCE
SEDIMENT TRANSPORT FROM THE SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES OR ADJACENT
PROPERTIES VIA RUNOFF, VEHICLE TRACKING, OR WIND.


8. CONSTRUCTION SITES SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN SUCH A CONDITION THAT A STORM DOES
NOT CARRY WASTES OR POLLUTANTS OFF THE SITE. DISCHARGES OTHER THAN
STORMWATER (NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES) ARE PROHIBITED, EXCEPT AS
AUTHORIZED BY AN INDIVIDUAL NPDES PERMIT, THE STATEWIDE GENERAL
PERMIT-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY. POTENTIAL POLLUTANTS INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT
LIMITED TO: SOLID OR LIQUID CHEMICAL SPILLS; WASTES FROM PAINTS, STAINS,
SEALANTS, SOLVENTS, DETERGENTS, GLUES, LIME, PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES,
FERTILIZERS, WOOD PRESERVATIVES, AND ASBESTOS FIBERS, PAINT FLAKES OR STUCCO
FRAGMENTS; FUELS, OILS LUBRICANTS, AND HYDRAULIC, RADIATOR OR BATTERY FLUIDS;
CONCRETE AND RELATED CUTTING OR CURING RESIDUES; FLOATABLE WASTES; WASTES
FROM ENGINE/EQUIPMENT STEAM CLEANING OR CHEMICAL DEGREASING; WASTES FROM
STREET CLEANING; AND SUPER-CHLORINATED POTABLE WATER FROM LINE FLUSHING
AND TESTING. DURING CONSTRUCTION, DISPOSAL OF SUCH MATERIALS SHOULD OCCUR
IN A SPECIFIED AND CONTROLLED TEMPORARY AREA ON-SITE PHYSICALLY SEPARATED
FROM POTENTIAL STORMWATER RUNOFF, WITH ULTIMATE DISPOSAL IN ACCORDANCE
WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.


9. RUNOFF FROM EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE WASHING SHALL BE CONTAINED AT THE
CONSTRUCTION SITE AND MUST NOT BE DISCHARGED TO RECEIVING WATERS OR THE
LOCAL STORM DRAIN SYSTEM.


10. APPROPRIATE BMPS FOR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED MATERIALS, WASTES, SPILLS OR
RESIDUES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO ELIMINATE OR REDUCE TRANSPORT FROM THE
SITE TO STREETS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES, OR ADJOINING PROPERTIES BY WIND OR
RUNOFF.


11. ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTOR PERSONNEL ARE TO BE MADE
AWARE OF THE REQUIRED BMPS AND GOOD HOUSEKEEPING MEASURES FOR THE
PROJECT SITE AND ANY ASSOCIATED CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREAS.


12. DISCHARGING CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
GROUNDWATER THAT HAS INFILTRATED INTO THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IS PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING OF CONTAMINATED SOILS VIA SURFACE EROSION IS ALSO PROHIBITED.
DISCHARGING NON-CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED BY DEWATERING
ACTIVITIES MAY REQUIRE A NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES) PERMIT FROM THE REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD..


13. BMPS SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. IN ADDITION, BMPS SHALL BE INSPECTED
PRIOR TO PREDICTED STORM EVENTS AND FOLLOWING STORM EVENTS.


14. AT THE END OF EACH DAY OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND
WASTE MATERIALS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND PROPERLY DISPOSED OF IN TRASH OR
RECYCLE BINS.


GENERAL NOTES FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SATISFACTORY COMPLIANCE WITH ALL


CURRENT ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS DURING THE LIFE OF CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES FOR THIS PROJECT.  ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND/OR PERMITS MAY BE
REQUIRED.


2. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND SUBSEQUENT
AMENDMENTS.


3. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL AND MAINTAIN ALL
CONSTRUCTION, REGULATORY, GUIDE AND WARNING SIGNS WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS
AND ITS SURROUNDINGS TO PROVIDE SAFE PASSAGE FOR THE TRAVELING PUBLIC AND
WORKERS UNTIL THE FINAL COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT BY THE
CITY.


A TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH APPROVED STREET PLAN FOR
REVIEW TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.


NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR(S)
1. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL UTILITY CONDUITS


AND SUBSTRUCTURES SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
BEAR THE TOTAL EXPENSE OF REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF SAID UTILITY CONDUITS
AND SUBSTRUCTURES DAMAGED BY HIS OPERATION IN CONNECTION WITH THE LIMITS OF
THIS PROJECT.


2. EXISTING UTILITIES SHALL BE PROTECTED AND MAINTAINED IN-PLACE BY THE CONTRACTOR,
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  RELOCATION OR REMOVAL OF ANY EXISTING UTILITIES NOT
COVERED BY THESE PLANS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY OR UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE
RESPECTIVE UTILITY OWNERS AT THE EXPENSE OF THE CONTRACTOR.


3. THE CITY WILL IDENTIFY AND INVENTORY ALL MONUMENTS/TIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION
AND PROVIDE A LIST TO THE CONTRACTOR. SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR IDENTIFY ANY
ADDITIONAL MONUMENTS OR TIES THAT WILL BE IMPACTED BY THE PROJECT, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK AT THE LOCATION SO
THAT THE CITY CAN ADD THEM TO THE INVENTORY AND RESET THEM AFTER CONSTRUCTION,
IF NEEDED.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PRESERVATION OF ALL, IF
ANY, EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENTS AND TIES.


4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS A VALID STATE CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE AND SHALL BE
REQUIRED TO POSSESS A VALID CITY BUSINESS REGISTRATION WHILE PERFORMING WORK
ON THIS PROJECT.


5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL REQUIRED PERMITS PRIOR
TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK COVERED BY THESE PLANS.


6. THE ENGINEER SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR, OR LIABLE FOR UNAUTHORIZED CHANGES
TO OR USES OF THESE PLANS.  ALL CHANGES TO THE PLANS MUST BE IN WRITING AND MUST
BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.


GENERAL NOTES FOR SIGNING AND STRIPING
1. ALL WORK AND MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND


SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS.


2. ALL TRAFFIC STRIPES, PAVEMENT MARKINGS, AND SIGNS SHALL BE REFLECTORIZED AND
IN STANDARD SIZE.  ALL STRIPING AND MARKING DETAILS SHALL MATCH CALTRANS
STANDARD PLANS DETAILS.  STENCILS FOR PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL MATCH
CALTRANS STANDARD PLANS.


3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL CONFLICTING STRIPES, PAVEMENT MARKINGS,
AND RAISED PAVEMENT MARKERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND AS DIRECTED
BY THE ENGINEER.  WORD OR SYMBOL PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE REMOVED BY
SANDBLASTING OR GRINDING A RECTANGULAR AREA COVERING THE WHOLE MARKING.


4. ALL BASIC TYPE CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE 10 FEET IN BETWEEN THE 12-INCH WHITE OR
YELLOW STRIPES. ALL CONTINENTAL TYPE CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE A CROSSING WIDTH
SPANNING 10 FEET.


5. ALL DOUBLE YELLOW STRIPES SHALL HAVE 3-INCH PAINTED BLACK LINE SEPARATING THE
YELLOW STRIPES.


6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL TRAFFIC STRIPES, RAISED
PAVEMENT MARKERS (RPMS), PAVEMENT MARKINGS, AND SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PLANS AND AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.


7. ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS INCLUDING CROSSWALKS, LIMIT LINES, AND STOP BARS SHALL
BE APPLIED WITH THERMOPLASTIC MATERIAL.  ALL OTHER TRAFFIC STRIPES SHALL BE
PAINTED IN TWO COATS.


8. ALL RPMS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN SEVEN WORKING DAYS OF ROADWAY STRIPING.
ALL EXISTING RPMS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND OR
REMOVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.


9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL STANDARD SIZE SIGN PANEL ON 2" SQUARE
PERFORATED STEEL TUBE POST WITH TWO PIECE ANCHOR AND SLEEVE, FASTENED WITH
3/8" RIVETS WITH STAINLESS STEEL WASHERS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  THE EXACT
LOCATION OF ALL SIGNS SHALL BE DETERMINED IN THE FIELD BY THE ENGINEER.


10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DELIVER REMOVED SIGNS TO
THE CITY OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.


11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A TRAFFIC SIGNAL TIMING SHEET TO THE CITY FOR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF CONSTRUCTION OF ANY NEW OR
MODIFIED TRAFFIC SIGNAL.  THE TIMING SHEET WILL MEET ALL REQUIREMENTS PER THE
LATEST CALIFORNIA MUTCD, PART 4 "HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SIGNALS".


12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE ALL SIGNING AND STRIPING WITHIN PROJECT LIMITS
DAMAGED OR ALTERED BY THE PROJECT, AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


3


9DETAILS


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/6/2020


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


4


9DETAILS (CONT.)


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/4/2020


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


TYPICAL SLOT PATCH DETAIL
NTS


(MODIFIED)


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


5


9STREET IMPROVEMENT PLANAs Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/26/2020


BUNDY CANYON RD


M
IS


SI
O


N
TR


A
IL


BUNDY
CANYON


RD


BUNDY
CANYON


RD


O
R


A
N


G
E


ST


BUNDY


CANYON


RD


THE FARM


RD


CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1 REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PED HEAD WITH NEW


COUNTDOWN HEAD.


1


1


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, BASIC TYPE, 10'
CROSSING WIDTH IN BETWEEN 12" WHITE OR YELLOW STRIPES.
SEE NOTE 3.


1


1


1


1


3A


3A 3A


3A


1


1


3C


1


1


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


WHITE


YELLOW


YELLOW
YELLOW


YELLOW


4A


4B


4B
4B


4B


4A


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, CONTINENTAL TYPE, 2'
WIDE STRIPES, 2' WIDE SPACES, 10' CROSSING WIDTH.


4B


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


SEE
DETAIL "A"


BELOW


REMOVE EXIST.
AC BERM AT
LIMITS OF NEW
PCC CURB RAMP


9'


18'
CENTER BETWEEN


CROSSWALK


ADJUST EXIST.
PULLBOX TO
GRADE


DETAIL "A"
NTS


PROTECT IN PLACE EXIST.
TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND


FOUNDATION ALIGN NEW FL
WITH EXIST. FL
OF AC BERM


LOCATION #1 - BUNDY CANYON RD AT MISSION TRAIL LOCATION #2 - BUNDY CANYON RD AT ORANGE ST LOCATION #3 - BUNDY CANYON RD AT THE FARM RD


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


6" WIDE AND
6" HIGH (MIN.)
RETAINING
CURB CURB AND GUTTER


PER COUNTY OF
RIVERSIDE STD NO.
201 ON SHEET 3


ADJACENT
SURFACE/GRADE
SHALL BE FLUSH
WITH NEW RAMP


2' WIDE AC SLOT PATCH
PER DETAIL ON SHEET 4


CONSTRUCT NEW ADA CURB RAMP TO FIT EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND COMPLY WITH CURRENT ADA CURB RAMP STANDARDS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, CASE C (MODIFIED) ON SHEET 4 AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CASE IN
THE FIELD.


3C


RECONSTRUCT EXISTING CURB RAMP TO FIT EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND COMPLY WITH CURRENT ADA CURB RAMP STANDARDS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, CASE A (MODIFIED) ON SHEET 4 AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CASE IN
THE FIELD.


3A


NOTES:
1. ACTUAL DIMENSIONS OF CURB RAMPS REQUIRED FOR ADA


COMPLIANCE SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
THE CITY INSPECTOR IN THE FIELD. A 2' AC SLOT PATCH SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WHERE CURB AND GUTTER WILL BE REPLACED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.


2. AT CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION LOCATIONS,
A LEVEL (2.0% MAX.) ALL-WEATHER SURFACE (3'X4' MIN.) SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO PEDESTRIAN PUSH BUTTONS TO
PROVIDE ACCESS FROM A WHEELCHAIR.


3. ALL PULL BOXES DISTURBED BY CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND
RECONSTRUCTION SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO GRADE. DAMAGED PULL
BOXES SHALL BE REPLACED.


4. NEW CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE CORNER CUTBACKS PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A, DETAIL B, SHEET 4.


CONSTRUCT 3' SLOT PATCH TO TRANSITION EXISTING AC TO NEW
LIP OF GUTTER PER DETAIL ON SHEET 4.


7


7
7


7 7


PROTECT IN PLACE.8


EXIST. POWER
POLE


8


8


EXIST. TS
CONTROLLER
CABINET


EXIST.
ELEC.
SVC.


8


EXIST. PARKWAY
DRAIN


8
8


8


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PUSH BUTTON WITH NEW AUDIBLE
ACCESSIBLE PUSH BUTTON AND INSTALL NEW R10-3E SIGN PANEL.


2A


2A


2A
2A


2A


2A 2A


2A


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN WITH NEW TRAFFIC
SIGN AS SPECIFIED.


9


9 R9-3, R9-3a


NOTE: SPECIAL ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE PRESENCE OF
HIGH-PRESSURE GAS LINES WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER CURB RAMP. USE EXTREME CAUTION.


8 EXIST. TS
PULLBOX


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


6


9
As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/26/2020


W
ILD


OMAR
TR


AIL
(C


EN
TR


AL S
T)


PALOMARST


CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1 REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PED HEAD WITH NEW


COUNTDOWN HEAD.


W
ILD


OMAR
TR


AIL
(C


EN
TR


AL S
T)


GRANDAVE


1


3B


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


WHITE


WHITE4A


4A


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


LOCATION #6 - WILDOMAR TRAIL (CENTRAL ST) AT
GRAND AVE


LOCATION #5 - WILDOMAR TRAIL (CENTRAL ST) AT
PALOMAR ST


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


YELLOW
4B


YELLOW
4B


STREET IMPROVEMENT PLAN
WILDOMAR TRAIL (CENTRAL ST)


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


RECONSTRUCT EXISTING CURB RAMP TO FIT EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND COMPLY WITH CURRENT ADA CURB RAMP STANDARDS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, CASE C (MODIFIED) ON SHEET 4 AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CASE IN
THE FIELD.


3B


LOWER
EXIST.
PPBs TO
MAX
HEIGHT
OF 46"
MEASURED
FROM
BACK OF
CURB
RAMP
LANDING.


8
EXIST.
AIR/VAC
ASSEMBLY


EXIST. TS CONTROLLER
CABINET AND SERVICE


8


NOTES:
1. ACTUAL DIMENSIONS OF CURB RAMPS REQUIRED FOR ADA


COMPLIANCE SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
THE CITY INSPECTOR IN THE FIELD. A 2' AC SLOT PATCH SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WHERE CURB AND GUTTER WILL BE REPLACED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.


2. AT CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION LOCATIONS,
A LEVEL (2.0% MAX.) ALL-WEATHER SURFACE (3'X4' MIN.) SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO PEDESTRIAN PUSH BUTTONS TO
PROVIDE ACCESS FROM A WHEELCHAIR.


3. ALL PULL BOXES DISTURBED BY CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND
RECONSTRUCTION SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO GRADE. DAMAGED PULL
BOXES SHALL BE REPLACED.


4. NEW CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE CORNER CUTBACKS PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A, DETAIL B, SHEET 4.


EXIST. FENCE


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, BASIC TYPE, 10'
CROSSING WIDTH IN BETWEEN 12" WHITE OR YELLOW STRIPES.
SEE NOTE 3.


4A


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, CONTINENTAL TYPE, 2'
WIDE STRIPES, 2' WIDE SPACES, 10' CROSSING WIDTH.


4B


CONSTRUCT 3' SLOT PATCH TO TRANSITION EXISTING AC TO NEW
LIP OF GUTTER PER DETAIL ON SHEET 4.


7


PROTECT IN PLACE.8


7


GRIND LIP AT CURB RAMP TO MAKE CURB RAMP FLUSH WITH FLOW
LINE AND TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM 4' WIDE APPROACH PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


6


6


6


6


6


6
CERVERARD


W
ILD


STALLION


LN


1


1


1


1


1


1


YELLOW


YELLOW


4B


4B


EXIST. FH


8


5A


5A


5A


5A


INSTALL SURFACE MOUNT TRUNCATED DOME PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


5A


LOCATION #4 - WILDOMAR TRAIL (CENTRAL ST) AT
CERVERA RD


W
ILD


OMAR
TR


AIL
(C


EN
TR


AL S
T)


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


7


9
As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/4/2020


CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1 REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PED HEAD WITH NEW


COUNTDOWN HEAD.


INSTALL SURFACE MOUNT TRUNCATED DOME PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


C
L
IN


T
O


N


K
E
IT


H
 R


DG
RANDAVE


CLIN
TON


KEITH R
D


A
R


Y
A


D
R


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


CLINTON


KEITH RD


IN
L


A
N


D
V


A
L


L
E


Y
 D


R


1


1


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


LOCATION #8 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT ARYA DRLOCATION #7 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT GRAND AVE LOCATION #9 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT INLAND VALLEY DR


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


CONSTRUCT 14" HIGH
RETAINING CURB
BEHIND ENTIRE
LENGTH OF EXIST.
CURB RAMP.
APPROX. 13'.  SEE
DETAIL "C" BELOW.


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


CITY O
F M


URRIETA


CITY O
F W


ILDO
M


AR


STREET IMPROVEMENT PLAN
CLINTON KEITH RD


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


GRIND LIP AT CURB RAMP TO MAKE CURB RAMP FLUSH WITH FLOW
LINE AND TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM 4' WIDE APPROACH PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


6


6


NOTES:
1. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO


IDENTIFY AND PROTECT-IN-PLACE OR REPLACE ALL EXISTING
SURVEY MONUMENTS WITHIN THE LIMITS OF WORK PER NOTICE TO
CONTRACTOR(S) NOTE #3, SHEET 1.


2. NEW CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE CORNER CUTBACKS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, DETAIL B, SHEET 4.


PROTECT IN PLACE.8


8


EXIST. RET. WALL


NOTE: EXCESS MATERIAL RESULTING FROM THE EXCAVATION OF THE
SUBGRADE SHALL BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND
SHALL BE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF.  THE AREA BEHIND AND/OR
ADJACENT TO THE CURB SHALL BE FILLED AND COMPACTED WITH
NATIVE OR SELECT MATERIAL AND GRADED TO MATCH AND PROVIDE A
SMOOTH TRANSITION FROM THE CURB TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE
ENGINEER.


RESET/ADJUST
EXIST. PPB
POSITIONING TO BE
PARALLEL WITH
CROSSING, AS
NEEDED.


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN WITH NEW TRAFFIC
SIGN AS SPECIFIED.


9


9


9


R9-3, R9-3a


R9-3, R9-3a


EXIST. RETAINING WALL


DETAIL "C"
NTS


8


8EXIST. CURB RAMP


14" FROM EXIST.
TOP OF SIDEWALK


SCARIFY EXISTING AREA THEN BACKFILL WITH
NATIVE OR SELECT MATERIAL COMPACTED TO 90%
RELATIVE COMPACTION AND GRADED (2:1 MAX) TO
PROVIDE A SMOOTH TRANSITION.


10" MIN.
MATCH WIDTH OF


EXIST. RETAINING WALL


CONSTRUCT NEW 14" HIGH
PCC RETAINING CURB


EXIST. NATIVE MATERIAL COMPACTED
TO 95% RELATIVE COMPACTION


SAWCUT AND REMOVE
EXIST. RETAINING CURB


5A


5A


NOTE: IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO OBTAIN AN
ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FROM THE CITY OF MURRIETA FOR ALL WORK
IN THE CITY OF MURRIETA'S RIGHT-OF-WAY.


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, BASIC TYPE, 10'
CROSSING WIDTH IN BETWEEN 12" WHITE OR YELLOW STRIPES.
SEE NOTE 2.


4A


FINISHED SURFACE OF
EXIST. CURB RAMP


EXIST. TOP OF SIDEWALK


5B REMOVE EXISTING TRUNCATED DOME AND PLACE NEW TRUNCATED
DOME TO BE FLUSH WITH FLOW LINE PER CALTRANS STD PLAN
A88A ON SHEET 4.


5B


9 R9-3a


6 6


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


8


9
As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/26/2020


CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1 REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PED HEAD WITH NEW


COUNTDOWN HEAD.


CL
IN


TO
N


KE
IT


H 
RD


PALOMARST


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


1


2


1


1


CL
IN


TO
N


KE
IT


H 
RD


RENAISSANCE
PLAZA


CLINTON
KEITH RD


SM
IT


H
R


A
N


C
H


 R
D


RECONSTRUCT EXISTING CURB RAMP TO FIT EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND COMPLY WITH CURRENT ADA CURB RAMP STANDARDS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, CASE A (MODIFIED) ON SHEET 4 AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CASE IN
THE FIELD.


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PUSH BUTTON WITH NEW 2-INCH
DIAMETER PUSH BUTTON AND INSTALL NEW R10-3E SIGN PANEL.


2


3A


3A


3A


3A


2


2


2


2


1


1


1


1


11


1


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


LOCATION #10 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT PALOMAR ST
LOCATION #11 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT RENAISSANCE 


PLAZA LOCATION #12 - CLINTON KEITH RD AT SMITH RANCH RD


INSTALL SURFACE MOUNT TRUNCATED DOME PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


4A


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


STREET IMPROVEMENT PLAN
CLINTON KEITH RD (CONT.)


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


GRIND LIP AT CURB RAMP TO MAKE CURB RAMP FLUSH WITH FLOW
LINE AND TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM 4' WIDE APPROACH PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


6


6


CONSTRUCT 3' SLOT PATCH TO TRANSITION EXISTING AC TO NEW
LIP OF GUTTER PER DETAIL ON SHEET 4.


7


7


7


7


PROTECT IN PLACE.8


8


EXIST.
ELEC.
UTILITY


8


8


EXIST. POWER
POLE


EXIST. TS CONTROLLER
CABINET AND SERVICE


8


EXIST. UTILITY POLE


8


EXIST. FH


EXIST. RET. WALL
AND ELEC. UTILITY


EXIST.
ELEC.
SVC.


EXIST.
SIGN


8


NOTES:
1. ACTUAL DIMENSIONS OF CURB RAMPS REQUIRED FOR ADA


COMPLIANCE SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
THE CITY INSPECTOR IN THE FIELD. A 2' AC SLOT PATCH SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WHERE CURB AND GUTTER WILL BE REPLACED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.


2. AT CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION LOCATIONS,
A LEVEL (2.0% MAX.) ALL-WEATHER SURFACE (3'X4' MIN.) SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO PEDESTRIAN PUSH BUTTONS TO
PROVIDE ACCESS FROM A WHEELCHAIR.


3. ALL PULL BOXES DISTURBED BY CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND
RECONSTRUCTION SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO GRADE. DAMAGED PULL
BOXES SHALL BE REPLACED.


4. NEW CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE CORNER CUTBACKS PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A, DETAIL B, SHEET 4.


8
EXIST. UTILITY POLE


8


WHITE
4A


REMOVE EXISTING BIKE PUSH BUTTON.10


5A


5A


5A


REMOVE EXISTING TRUNCATED DOME AND PLACE NEW TRUNCATED
DOME TO BE FLUSH WITH FLOW LINE PER CALTRANS STD PLAN
A88A ON SHEET 4.


5B


5B


2


2
10


10


10


2 10


NOTE: SPECIAL ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE PRESENCE OF
MEDIUM-PRESSURE GAS LINES WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE
NORTHWEST CORNER CURB RAMP AND SPANDREL AND SOUTHEAST
CORNER CURB RAMP. USE EXTREME CAUTION.


EXIST. FH


8


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, BASIC TYPE, 10'
CROSSING WIDTH IN BETWEEN 12" WHITE OR YELLOW STRIPES.
SEE NOTE 3.


EXIST.
STREET NAME
SIGNS


EXIST.
AT&T
CONDUIT


5A


5A


5A


5A


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules











(714) 899-0930
15140 TRANSISTOR LANE
HUNTINGTON BEACH, CA 92649
WWW.INTERWESTGRP.COM


MARK BY DATE
ENGINEER REVISIONS CITY


APPR. DATE


SEAL-ENGINEER:


R.C.E. No.


BENCHMARK:


SCALE:
H: V:


SHEET  No.


1-800-227-2600
YOU DIG


DIAL
BEFORE


TOLL FREE


TWO WORKING
DAYS BEFORE


YOU DIG


A PUBLIC SERVICE BY
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT


OF             SHTS


The private engineer signing these plans is responsible for assuring the
accuracy and acceptability of the design hereon.  In the event of
discrepancies arising after City acceptance or during construction, the
private engineer shall be responsible for determining an acceptable
solution and revising the plans for acceptance by the City.


WORK CONTAINED WITHIN THESE PLANS SHALL NOT
COMMENCE UNTIL AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
AND/OR A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED.


EXP.65984 06/30/20


9


9
As Noted As Noted


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Daniel A. York,   Director of Public Works/
Date:


ACCEPTANCE AS TO CONFORMANCE
WITH APPLICABLE CITY STANDARDS AND
PRACTICES


ACCEPTED BY:


City Engineer, PE 43212
PREPARED BY:


Nicole Jules


Plans Prepared On: 5/26/2020


CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1 REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PED HEAD WITH NEW


COUNTDOWN HEAD.


GRU
W


EL
L


ST


PALOMARST


Elevation = N/A
Datum = N/A
BENCHMARK # N/A


THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
ON N/A BY N/A
L.S. N/A, EXP. N/A


1


1


M
IS


SI
O


N
TR


A
IL


CANYON
DR


HOSPITAL
MID-BLOCK
CROSSING


IN
LA


N
D


VA
LL


EY
 D


R


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING PUSH BUTTON WITH NEW 2-INCH
DIAMETER PUSH BUTTON AND INSTALL NEW R10-3E SIGN PANEL.


2


3A


WHITE
4A


3A


1


1


1


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


1


1


1


1


3A


3A


WHITE
4A


2


FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) CIP 041


WHITE
4A


WHITE
4A


LOCATION #13 - MISSION TRAIL AT CANYON DR LOCATION #14 - GRUWELL ST AT PALOMAR ST
LOCATION #15 - INLAND VALLEY DR AT HOSPITAL  


MID-BLOCK CROSSING


STREET IMPROVEMENT PLAN
VARIOUS LOCATIONS


CITY  OF  WILDOMAR
PED HEAD AND X-WALK ENHANCEMENT


RECONSTRUCT EXISTING CURB RAMP TO FIT EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND COMPLY WITH CURRENT ADA CURB RAMP STANDARDS PER
CALTRANS STD PLAN A88A, CASE A (MODIFIED) ON SHEET 4 AND AS
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY CASE IN
THE FIELD.


3A


NOTES:
1. ACTUAL DIMENSIONS OF CURB RAMPS REQUIRED FOR ADA


COMPLIANCE SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
THE CITY INSPECTOR IN THE FIELD. A 2' AC SLOT PATCH SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WHERE CURB AND GUTTER WILL BE REPLACED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.


2. AT CURB RAMP CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION LOCATIONS,
A LEVEL (2.0% MAX.) ALL-WEATHER SURFACE (3'X4' MIN.) SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO PEDESTRIAN PUSH BUTTONS TO
PROVIDE ACCESS FROM A WHEELCHAIR.


3. NEW CROSSWALKS SHALL HAVE CORNER CUTBACKS PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A, DETAIL B, SHEET 4.


CONSTRUCT 3' SLOT PATCH TO TRANSITION EXISTING AC TO NEW
LIP OF GUTTER PER DETAIL ON SHEET 4.


7


7


7


EXIST. TS
CONTROLLER
CABINET


EXIST.
ELEC.
SVC.


EXIST.
ELEC.
SVC.


EXIST.
POWER
POLE


PROTECT IN PLACE.8


8


8


EXIST. WATER
UTILITY


EXIST. FH


8


8


EXIST. MH AND
PARKWAY DRAIN
STRUCTURE


8


8


INSTALL SURFACE MOUNT TRUNCATED DOME PER CALTRANS
STD PLAN A88A ON SHEET 4.


5A


5A


5A


REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN WITH NEW TRAFFIC
SIGN AS SPECIFIED.


9


NOTE: SPECIAL ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE PRESENCE OF GAS LINES
WITHIN THE VICINITY OF ALL CURB RAMPS. USE EXTREME CAUTION.


9


9


R9-3, R9-3a


R9-3, R9-3a


3A 7


3A 7


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSWALK AND RESTRIPE (THERMOPLASTIC)
PER CALTRANS STD PLAN A24F ON SHEET 4, BASIC TYPE, 10'
CROSSING WIDTH IN BETWEEN 12" WHITE OR YELLOW STRIPES.
SEE NOTE 2.


4A


EXP65984 06/30/20


BY:
Nicole Jules







ATTACHMENT B 















































































































































ATTACHMENT C 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 


This contract (“Contract”) is effective as of August 12, 2020, and is between the CITY 
OF WILDOMAR, a California municipal corporation (“Owner”), and Alfaro Communications 
Construction, Inc., a California corporation (“Contractor”), collectively referred to as the 
“Parties” and individually a “Party.” 


Section 1. Recitals.  This Contract is entered into with respect to the following facts: 


1.1 Owner received Contractor’s Proposal for the Work involved in the Pedestrian 
Countdown Head and Crosswalk Enhancement Project (“Project”), which is 
more fully described in the Contract Documents. 


1.2 Contractor represents and warrants that it is fully qualified to perform all of the 
Work required to complete the Project. 


1.3 Contractor agrees to perform all such Work in the time and manner set forth in the 
Contract Documents. 


1.4 The City Council has awarded the Contract to Contractor. 


Section 2. Contract Documents.  This Contract consists of the following documents 
(“Contract Documents”), all of which are made a part of this Contract: 


2.1 Contractor’s Proposal (for reference purposes only) 


2.2 Notice to Proceed 


2.3 This Contract 


2.4 Verification of California Contractor’s License 


2.5 Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation 


2.6 Security for payment (labor and materials) 


2.7 Security for performance 


2.8 Certificate(s) of Insurance 


2.9 Technical Specifications (including attached plans and drawings) 


2.10 Other documents (list here) 


Exhibit A – Compensation   


Exhibit B – Insurance    


Exhibit C – Federal Contract Terms, Conditions, and  Requirements  







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 2 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


Section 3. The Work. 


3.1 The Work (“Work”) to be performed by Contractor is described in the Contract 
Documents. 


3.2 In completing the Work, Contractor must employ, at a minimum, the applicable 
generally accepted professional standards of its industry in existence at the time 
of performance as utilized by persons engaging in similar Work. 


3.3 Except as specifically provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor must 
furnish, at its sole expense, all of the labor, materials, tools, equipment, services 
and transportation necessary to perform all of the Work, including any incidental 
Work that is not expressly shown or described in the Contract Document but is 
required for the successful completion of the Work. 


3.4 Contractor must perform all of the Work in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 


3.5 Warranty.  Contractor warrants all Work under the Contract (which for purposes 
of this provision shall be deemed to include unauthorized work which has not 
been removed and any non-conforming materials incorporated into the Work) to 
be of good quality and free from any defective or faulty material and 
workmanship.  Contractor agrees that for a period of one year (or the period of 
time specified elsewhere in the Contract or in any guarantee or warranty 
provided by any manufacturer or supplier of equipment or materials incorporated 
into the Work, whichever is later) after the date of final acceptance, Contractor 
shall within ten (10) Days after being notified in writing by the City of any defect in 
the Work or non-conformance of the Work to the Contract, commence and 
prosecute with due diligence all Work necessary to fulfill the terms of the 
warranty at his sole cost and expense.  Contractor shall act sooner as requested 
by the City in response to an emergency.  In addition, Contractor shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, repair and replace any portions of the Work (or work of other 
contractors) damaged by its defective Work or which becomes damaged in the 
course of repairing or replacing defective Work.  For any Work so corrected, 
Contractor's obligation hereunder to correct defective Work shall be reinstated for 
an additional one year period, commencing with the date of acceptance of such 
corrected Work.  Contractor shall perform such tests as the City may require 
verifying that any corrective actions, including, without limitation, redesign, 
repairs, and replacements comply with the requirements of the Contract.  All 
costs associated with such corrective actions and testing, including the removal, 
replacement, and reinstitution of equipment and materials necessary to gain 
access, shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.  All warranties and 
guarantees of subcontractors, suppliers and manufacturers with respect to any 
portion of the Work, whether express or implied, are deemed to be obtained by 
Contractor for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether or not such 
warranties and guarantees have been transferred or assigned to the City by 
separate agreement and Contractor agrees to enforce such warranties and 
guarantees, if necessary, on behalf of the City.  In the event that Contractor fails 
to perform its obligations under this Section, or under any other warranty or 
guaranty under this Contract, to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, the City 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 3 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


shall have the right to correct and replace any defective or non-conforming Work 
and any work damaged by such work or the replacement or correction thereof at 
Contractor's sole expense.  Contractor shall be obligated to fully reimburse the 
City for any expenses incurred hereunder upon demand. 


3.6 Standard of Performance.  Contractor shall perform all Work under this Contract 
in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 
professional calling necessary to perform the Work.  Contractor warrants that all 
employees and subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to 
perform the Work assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor represents that it, its 
employees and its subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Work, and 
that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 
Contract.  Any employee who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, 
incompetent, a threat to the safety of persons or the Work, or any employee who 
fails or refuses to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be 
re-employed on the Work. 


3.7 Inspection and Acceptance of Work.  Owner may inspect and accept or reject any 
of Contractor’s work under this Agreement, either during performance or when 
completed.  Owner shall reject or finally accept Contractor’s work within forty-five 
(45) days after submitted to Owner.  Owner shall accept work by a timely written 
acceptance, otherwise work shall be deemed to have been rejected.  Owner’s 
acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent 
defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as to amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any 
work by Owner shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, provisions pertaining to warranty, 
indemnification and insurance. 


Section 4. Time to Perform the Work. 


4.1 Commencement Date will be on the date established in the Notice to Proceed.  
Owner reserves the right to modify or alter the Commencement Date of the Work. 


4.2 Final Completion Date: Within forty-five (45) days of date of Notice to Proceed. 


4.3 Time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s Work.  Contractor agrees to 
diligently pursue performance of the Work within the time specified by the Contract 
Documents. 


4.4 Contractor will be excused from any delay in performance or failure to perform due 
to causes beyond the control of Contractor and not reasonably anticipated by the 
parties.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of terrorism, 
acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of Owner, court orders, fires, 
floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 4 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


4.5 If Contractor is delayed by any cause beyond Contractor’s control, Owner may, but 
is not required to, grant a time extension for the completion of the Work.  If delay 
occurs, Contractor must notify Owner in writing within 48 hours of the cause and 
identify the extent of the delay, how such delay interferes with Contractor’s 
performance of the Work, and the impact of the delay on the Project’s schedule’s 
critical path through the submission of a “Time Impact Evaluation” (TIE). 


4.6 TIE Format and Contents.  Each TIE must include a written narrative and a 
schedule diagram depicting how the delay or other impact affects other schedule 
activities.  The schedule diagram must show how Contractor proposes to 
incorporate and mitigate the delay or other impact in the schedule and how it 
impacts the current schedule update critical path or otherwise.  Contractor is also 
responsible for establishing time extensions based on the TIE’s impact on the 
critical path.  The diagram must be tied to the main sequence of scheduled 
activities to enable Owner to evaluate the impact of the delay, including any 
impacted Work activities, to the scheduled critical path. 


4.7 Contractor is responsible for all costs associated with preparing TIE’s, and the 
process of incorporating TIE’s into the current schedule update. 


4.8 Liquidated Damage Amounts. 


4.8.1 As liquidated damages for delay Contractor must pay Owner one-
thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each calendar day that expires after 
the time specified for Contractor to achieve Final Completion of the 
entire Work, until achieved. 


4.9 Scope of Liquidated Damages. 


4.9.1 Contractor and Owner agree that because of the nature of the Project, 
it would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix the amount of such 
actual damages incurred by Owner because of a delay in completion of 
all or any part of the Work.  Contractor and Owner agree that specified 
measures of liquidated damages will be presumed to be the amount of 
such damages actually sustained by Owner, and that because of the 
nature of the Project, it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to 
fix the actual damages. 


4.9.2 Liquidated damages for delay will cover administrative, overhead, 
interest on bonds, and general loss of public use damages suffered by 
Owner as a result of delay.  Liquidated damages will not cover the cost 
of completion of the Work, damages resulting from Defective Work, lost 
revenues or costs of substitute facilities, or damages suffered by others 
who then seek to recover their damages from Owner (for example, 
delay claims of other contractors, subcontractors, tenants, or other 
third-parties), and defense costs thereof. Owner may deduct from any 
money due or to become due to Contractor subsequent to time for 
completion of entire Work and extensions of time allowed pursuant to 
this Contract, a sum representing then-accrued liquidated damages. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 5 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


 


Section 5. Compensation and Payment. 


5.1 Subject to any limitations provided in the Contract Documents, Owner agrees to 
pay Contractor, as full consideration for the faithful performance and successful 
completion of all Work under the Contract Documents, including all labor, 
materials, equipment furnished in connection therewith, the compensation set forth 
in Exhibit A (“Compensation”), which is made a part of this Contract. 


5.2 Contractor must furnish to Owner a Pay Estimate for the Work performed in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  Contractor may not submit a Pay 
Estimate more often than once every 30 days. 


5.3 Owner will review each Pay Estimate and determine whether the Work performed 
is in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Owner may require Contractor to 
provide a release of all undisputed Contract amounts contained in the Pay 
Estimate. 


5.4 If Owner disputes any item on a Pay Estimate, Owner will give Contractor notice 
stating the reasons for the dispute.  The Parties will meet and confer in good faith 
to attempt to resolve the dispute. 


5.5 Except as to any charges for the Work performed that Owner disputes and 
excluding the Owner’s standard ten-percent (10%) retention on all approved 
progress payments, Owner will cause Contractor to be paid within 30 days of the 
date of the Pay Estimate or the date that Contractor furnishes Owner with a release 
of all undisputed Contract amounts, whichever occurs later.  If the Project is paid 
for in whole or in part with federal funds, progress payments made to Contractor 
will not be subject to the five-percent retention noted above. 


5.6 In the event there is any claim specifically excluded by Contractor from the 
operation of any release, Owner may retain an amount not to exceed the amount 
of the excluded claim. 


Section 6. Labor Code and Prevailing Wage Requirements. 


6.1 Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of California Labor Code 
sections 1810 through 1815.  Eight hours of labor constitutes a legal day’s Work 
per Labor Code section 1810.  Contractor will forfeit the statutory penalty to Owner 
for each Worker employed in the execution of this Contract by Contractor or any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such Worker is required or 
permitted to Work more than eight hours in any one calendar day and 40 hours in 
any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of Labor Code sections 1810 
through 1815.   


6.2 Copies of the determination of the Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations of the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification or 
type of Worker needed to execute this Contract are available for download from 
the State website: http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/dprewagedetermination.htm. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 6 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


6.3 Contractor must post at the Work site, or if there is no regular Work site then at its 
principal office, for the duration of the Contract, a copy of the determination by the 
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations of the specified prevailing rate of 
per diem wages.  (Labor Code § 1773.2.)  When applicable, copies of the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages will be on file at Owner’s main office and available to 
Contractor and any other interested party upon request. 


6.4 Contractor, and any subcontractor engaged by Contractor, must pay not less than 
the specified prevailing rate of per diem wages to all Workers employed in the 
execution of the contract.  (Labor Code § 1774.)  Contractor is responsible for 
compliance with Labor Code section 1776 relative to the retention and inspection 
of payroll records. 


6.5 Contractor must comply with all provisions of Labor Code section 1775.  Under 
Section 1775, Contractor will forfeit the statutory penalty to Owner for each Worker 
employed in the execution of the Contract by Contractor or any subcontractor for 
each calendar day, or portion thereof, in which the Worker is paid less than the 
prevailing rates.  Contractor may also be liable to pay the difference between the 
prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each Worker for each calendar day, 
or portion thereof, for which each Worker was paid less than the prevailing wage 
rate. 


6.6 Nothing in this Contract prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from employing 
properly registered apprentices in the execution of the Contract.  Contractor is 
responsible for compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable 
occupations.  This statute requires that contractors and subcontractors must 
submit contract award information to the applicable joint apprenticeship 
committee, must employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of 
not less than one hour of apprentice’s Work for every five hours of labor performed 
by a journeyman (unless an exception is granted under § 1777.5), must contribute 
to the fund or funds in each craft or trade or a like amount to the California 
Apprenticeship Council, and that contractors and subcontractors must not 
discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as apprentices solely on the 
ground of sex, race, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only 
apprentices defined in Labor Code section 3077, who are in training under 
apprenticeship standards and who have written apprentice contracts, may be 
employed on public Works in apprenticeable occupations. 


6.7 Contractor has reviewed and agrees to comply with any applicable provisions for 
any public Work subject to Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) Monitoring and 
Enforcement of prevailing wages, including the registration requirements of Labor 
Code Section 1771.1(a).  Owner hereby notifies Contractor that Contractor is 
responsible for submitting certified payroll records directly to the State Compliance 
Monitoring Unit (CMU).  For further information concerning compliance monitoring 
please visit the website location at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/cmu/cmu.html.   


6.8 Contractor must comply with Labor Code section 1771.1(a), which provides that 
Contractor may award any contracts and subcontracts for Work that qualifies as a 
“public Work” only to subcontractors which are at that time registered and qualified 
to perform public Work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5.  Contractor must 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 7 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


obtain proof of such registration from all such subcontractors.  Where the prime 
contract is less than $15,000 for maintenance Work or less than $25,000 for 
construction, alternation, demolition or repair Work, such registration is not 
required. 


6.9 In addition to submitting the certified payrolls and related documentation to the 
City, the contractor and all subcontractors are required to submit certified payroll 
and related documents electronically to the California Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR). Failure to submit payrolls to the DIR when mandated by the 
Project parameters will also result in the withholding of progress, retention and final 
payment. Certified payroll information for this project must be submitted 
electronically through LCPtracker. No hard copy payrolls will be accepted. 


6.10 If the Compensation exceeds $25,000 and if the Work governed by this Contract 
entails excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Labor Code, including 
Section 6705.  To this end, Contractor shall submit for Owner’s review and 
approval a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other 
provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground 
during the excavation of such trench or trenches.  If such plan varies from the 
shoring system standards, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or 
structural engineer.  As required by Public Contract Code Section 7104, if this 
Contract involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than 
four (4) feet below the surface, Contractor shall promptly, and prior to disturbance 
of any conditions, notify Owner of:  (1) any material discovered in excavation that 
Contractor believes to be a hazardous waste that is required to be removed to a 
Class I, Class II or Class III disposal site; (2) subsurface or latent physical 
conditions at the site differing from those indicated by Owner; and (3) unknown 
physical conditions of an unusual nature at the site, significantly different from 
those ordinarily encountered in such contract work.  Upon notification, Owner shall 
promptly investigate the conditions to determine whether a change order is 
appropriate.  In the event of a dispute, Contractor shall not be excused from any 
scheduled completion date and shall proceed with all Work to be performed under 
the Contract, but shall retain all rights provided by the Contract or by law for making 
protests and resolving the dispute. 


6.11 No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public Works 
project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to 
Labor Code section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this requirement for bid 
purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. 


Section 7. Non-Discrimination. Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, and 
subcontractors may not discriminate in the employment of persons to perform the 
Work in violation of any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination in 
employment, including based on the race, religious creed, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic 
information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, 
sexual orientation, of any person, except as provided under California Government 
Code section 12940.  Contractor is responsible for compliance with this section, 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 8 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


and must include these non-discrimination provisions in all subcontracts for 
performance of the Work. 


Section 8. General Legal Compliance. 


8.1 In performing the Work, Contractor must comply with all applicable federal, state, 
and local statutes, laws, regulations, and ordinances including, but not limited to, 
OSHA requirements. In addition to the terms, conditions, and performance 
obligations for the Work set forth in this Contract, Contractor must also comply with 
the federal contract terms, conditions, rules, and regulations set forth in the 
attached Exhibit C (“Federal Contract Terms, Conditions, and Regulations”). 


8.2 Contractor must, at Contractor’s sole expense, obtain all necessary permits and 
licenses required for the Work, and give all necessary notices and pay all fees and 
taxes required by law. 


8.3 Contractor must maintain a valid California Contractor’s License throughout the 
term of this Contract. 


Section 9. Clayton and Cartwright Act Assignments.  In entering into this Contract or a 
contract with a subcontractor to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to 
this Contract for the Project, Contractor and any subcontractor will be deemed to 
have offered and agreed to assign to Owner all rights, title, and interest in and to 
all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 
15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700 of 
Part 2 of Division 7 of the California Business and Professions Code), arising from 
purchases of goods, services, or materials for the Project.  This assignment will be 
deemed made and will become effective at the time Owner tenders final payment 
to Contractor, without further acknowledgement by the Parties. 


Section 10. Independent Contractor.  Contractor is and will at all times remain as to Owner 
a wholly independent contractor.  Neither Owner nor any of its officers, employees, 
or agents will have control over the conduct of Contractor or any of Contractor’s 
officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, except as expressly set forth in the 
Contract Documents.  Contractor may not at any time or in any manner represent 
that it or any of its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors are in any manner 
officers, employees, agents or subcontractors of Owner. 


Section 11. Indemnification. 


11.1 Contractor agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law (including, without 
limitation, California Civil Code section 2782) to (1) immediately defend, (2) 
indemnify, and (3) hold harmless Owner and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, contractors, consultants, and other parties Working on Owner’s behalf 
(collectively, “Owner indemnified parties”) from and against, any and all claims 
and liabilities, regardless of the nature or type, that directly or indirectly arise out 
of, pertain to, or relate to performance of the Work under this Contract by 
Contractor, or its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors committed in 
performing any Work under this Contract or the failure to comply with any of the 
obligations of this Contract, resulting from any cause whatsoever except for the 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 9 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


sole negligence, active negligence, of willful misconduct of Owner (collectively, 
“Claims”). The Claims subject to Contractor’s duties to defend and indemnify 
include, without limitation, all claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, 
losses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments, liens, levies, and associated 
investigation and administrative expenses.  Such Claims also include defense 
costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, expert fees, court 
costs, and costs of alternative dispute resolution.  


11.2 Contractor’s duty to defend is a separate and distinct obligation from Contractor’s 
duty to indemnify.  Contractor is obligated to defend Owner in all legal, equitable, 
administrative, or special proceedings, with counsel approved by Owner, 
immediately upon tender to Contractor of the Claim in any form or at any stage of 
an action or proceeding, whether or not liability is established. An allegation or 
determination that persons other than Contractor are responsible for the Claim 
does not relieve Contractor from its separate and distinct obligation to defend 
under this section. The obligation to defend extends through final judgment, 
including exhaustion of any appeals. The defense obligation includes an obligation 
to provide independent defense counsel if Contractor asserts that liability is caused 
in whole or in part by the negligence or willful misconduct of any Owner indemnified 
party.  If it is finally adjudicated that liability was caused by the sole negligence, 
active negligence, or willful misconduct of any Owner indemnified party, then 
Contractor may submit a claim to Owner for reimbursement of reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and defense costs in proportion to the established comparative 
liability of the Owner indemnified party. 


11.3 Contractor agrees that its defense and indemnification obligation under this 
section, includes the reasonable costs of attorneys’ fees incurred by the Owner’s 
legal counsel to monitor and consult with Contractor regarding the defense of any 
Claims, including providing direction with regard to strategy, preparation of 
pleadings, settlement discussions, and attendance at court hearings, mediations, 
or other litigation related appearances. Owner will use its best efforts to avoid 
duplicative attorney Work or appearances in order to keep defense costs to a 
reasonable minimum.   


11.4 Contractor agrees that settlement of any Claim will require the consent of Owner.  
Owner agrees that its consent will not be unreasonably withheld provided that 
Contractor is financially able (based on demonstrated assets) to fulfill its obligation 
to indemnify Owner for the costs of any such settlement as required under this 
Contract. 


11.5 Contractor’s obligation to indemnify Owner applies unless it is finally adjudicated 
that the liability was caused by the sole, negligence, active negligence, or willful 
misconduct of a Owner indemnified party.  If a Claim is finally adjudicated and a 
determination made that liability was caused by the sole negligence, active 
negligence, or willful misconduct of an Owner indemnified party, then Contractor’s 
indemnification obligation will be reduced in proportion to the established 
comparative liability. 


11.6 For the purposes of this section, “Owner” includes the City of Wildomar’s officers, 
officials, board members, employees and agents. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 10 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


11.7 The provisions of this section will survive the expiration or earlier termination of 
this Contract. 


Section 12. Insurance.  Contractor agrees to have and maintain in full force and effect during 
the term of this Contract the insurance coverages listed in Exhibit B (“Insurance”), 
which is made a part of this Contract.  


Section 13. Notice. 


13.1 All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Contract will be 
deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective address as 
follows: 


To Owner:   City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 210 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
Attention: Dan York, City Engineer 
Phone: (951) 677-7751 ext. 216 
Fax: (951) 698-1463 
Email: dyork@cityofwildomar.org 


 
To Contractor: Alfaro Communications Construction, Inc. 
 15614 S. Atlantic Avenue 
 Compton, CA 90221 
 Haidi Daaifi, Contract Admin 
 Phone: (310) 669-8949 
 haidi.acci@gmail.com 


13.2 Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by 
facsimile, or such other electronic means as may be agreed to by the parties.  If 
the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given three days after deposit of the 
same in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first 
class delivery, or upon delivery if using a major courier service with tracking 
capabilities. 


13.3 Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other Party in 
compliance with this section, before the change in notice information becomes 
effective. 


Section 14. Owner Rights of Termination and to Complete the Work. 


14.1 Termination for Cause (Default).  The occurrence of any of the following is a default 
by Contractor under this Contract: 


14.1.1 Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the Work or any part thereof 
with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 
specified or any permitted extension. 


14.1.2 Contractor fails to complete the Work on time. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 11 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


14.1.3 Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of 
Contractor’s insolvency. 


14.1.4 Contractor fails to supply enough properly skilled Workers or proper 
materials to complete the Work in the time specified. 


14.1.5 Contractor fails to make prompt payment to any subcontractor or for 
material or labor. 


14.1.6 Contractor fails to abide by any applicable laws, ordinances or 
instructions of Owner in performing the Work, including the Federal 
Contract Terms, Conditions, and Regulations set forth in Exhibit C. 


14.1.7 Contractor breaches or fails to perform any obligation or duty under the 
Contract and such breach or failure remains uncorrected following 
Owner’s notice to Contractor of the breach. 


14.2 Upon the occurrence of a default by Contractor, Owner will serve a written notice 
of default on Contractor specifying the nature of the default and the steps needed 
to correct the default.  Unless Contractor cures the default within 10 days after the 
service of such notice of default, or makes satisfactory arrangements acceptable 
to Owner for the correction or elimination of such default, as determined by Owner, 
Owner may thereafter terminate this Contract by serving written notice termination 
on Contractor.  In such case, Contractor will not be entitled to receive any further 
payment, except for Work actually completed prior to such termination in 
accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents. 


14.3 In event of any such termination, Owner will also immediately serve written notice 
of the termination upon Contractor’s surety.  The surety will have the right to take 
over and perform pursuant to this Contract; provided, however, that if the surety 
does not give Owner written notice of its intention to take over and perform this 
Contract within five days after service of the notice of termination or does not 
commence performance within 10 days from the date of such notice, Owner may 
take over the Work and prosecute the same to completion by separate contract or 
by any other method Owner may deem advisable, at the sole cost and expense of 
Contractor.  Contractor and the surety will be liable to Owner for any and all excess 
costs or other damages incurred by Owner in completing the Work. 


14.4 If Owner takes over the Work as provided in this Section, Owner may, without 
liability for so doing, take possession of, and utilize in completing the Work, such 
materials, appliances, plant, and other property belonging to Contractor as may be 
on the site of the Work and necessary for the completion of the Work.  


14.5 If Owner takes over the Work, Owner may also take possession of outstanding 
materials on order for the completion of the project, upon payment to the vendor.  
All excess costs incurred by Owner in obtaining such materials, will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor.   







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 12 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


14.6 Termination for Convenience.  Owner may terminate performance of the Work 
under the Contract in accordance with this clause in whole, or from time to time in 
part, if Owner determines that termination is in Owner’s best interest.  Termination 
will be effected by Owner delivering to Contractor notice of termination specifying 
the extent to which performance of the Work under the Contract is terminated, and 
the effective date of the termination. 


14.7 Contractor must comply with Owner’s direction regarding the effective date of the 
termination, the extent of the termination, and must stop Work on the date and to 
the extent specified. 


14.8 Contractor will be entitled to a total payment on account of the Contract Work so 
terminated, measured by (i.) the actual cost to Contractor for Work actually 
performed, up to the date of the termination, with profit and overhead limited to 
twelve percent (12%) of actual cost of Work performed, and (ii.) offset by payments 
made and other Contract credits.  In connection with any such calculation; 
provided, however, Owner retains all rights and remedies under the Contract 
including, without limitation, claims, indemnities, setoffs/offsets, or back charges. 


14.9 Under no circumstances may Contractor recover legal costs of any nature, nor 
may Contractor recover costs incurred after the date of the termination. 


Section 15. Project Documents.  All product/material data sheets, shop drawings, submittals, 
submittal logs, samples, invoices, purchase orders, operation and maintenance 
manuals and instructions, RFIs, RFI logs,  maps, models, notes, photographs, 
reports, studies and other documents (collectively, “Project Documents”) 
prepared, developed or discovered by Contractor in the course of performing any 
of the Work under this Contract will become the sole property of Owner.  Upon the 
expiration or termination of this Contract, Contractor must turn over all original 
Project Documents to Owner in its possession, but may retain copies of any of the 
Project Documents it may desire. 


Section 16. Change Orders and Claims 


16.1 The Public Contract Code including, without limitation, Section 7105(d)(2), and 
Government Code section 930.2 and following, apply to all procedures for 
changes, time extensions, change orders (time or compensation) and claims.  


16.2 Any change, waiver, or omission to implement the contract change order and claim 
procedures will have no legal effect unless expressly permitted in a fully executed 
change order approved by Contractor and Owner. 


Section 17. Resolution of Construction Claims (PCC § 20104 and following) 


17.1 Public Contract Code section 20104 and following, specifies required provisions 
on resolving contract claims less than $375,000, which are set forth below, and 
constitute a part of this Contract. 


17.2 For the purposes of this section, “claim” means a separate demand by Contractor 
of $375,000 or less for (1) a time extension, (2) payment or money or damages 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 13 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


arising from Work done by or on behalf of Contractor arising under the Contract 
Documents and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or the 
Contractor is not otherwise entitled to, or (3) an amount the payment of which is 
disputed by Owner.  In order to qualify as a claim, the written demand must state 
that it is a claim submitted under Section 17 of the Contract and be submitted in 
compliance with all requirements of this Section. Separate Contractor claims that 
together total more than $375,000 do not qualify as a “separate demand of 
$375,000 or less,” as referenced above, and are not subject to this Section. 


17.3 A voucher, invoice, payment application, or other routine or authorized form of 
request for payment is not a claim for purposes of this section.  If such request is 
disputed as to liability or amount, then the disputed portion of the submission may 
be converted to a claim under this section by submitting a separate claim in 
compliance with Contract Documents claim submission requirements. 


17.4 This section does not apply to tort claims, and nothing in this section is intended 
nor may it be construed to change the time periods for filing tort claims or actions 
specified by Chapter 1 and Chapter 2 of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code. 


17.5 Claims Procedure under Public Contract Code § 20104 and following: 


17.5.1 The claim must be in writing, submitted in compliance with all 
requirements of the Contract including, without limitation, the time 
prescribed by and including the documents necessary to substantiate 
the claim.  Claims must be filed on or before the day of final payment.  
Nothing in this section is intended to extend the time limit or supersede 
notice requirements for the filing of claims under the Contract. 


17.5.2 For claims of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or less, Owner will 
respond in writing within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or Owner may 
request in writing within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional 
documentation supporting the claim or relating to any defenses or 
claims Owner may have against Contractor. If additional information is 
thereafter required, it must be requested and provided in accordance 
with this section upon mutual agreement of Owner and Contractor. 
Owner’s written response to the claim, as further documented, must be 
submitted to Contractor within 15 days after receipt of further 
documentation or within a period of time no greater than taken by 
Contractor in producing the additional information, whichever is greater. 


17.5.3 For claims over Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) and less than or equal 
to $375,000: Owner will respond in writing within 60 days of receipt of 
the claim, or Owner may request in writing within 30 days of receipt of 
the claim, any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating 
to any defenses or claims Owner may have against Contractor. If 
additional information is thereafter required, it must be requested and 
provided in accordance with this section, upon mutual agreement of 
Owner and Contractor; Owner’s written response to the claim, as 
further documented, must be submitted to Contractor within 30 days 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 14 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


after receipt of further documentation or within a period of time no 
greater than taken by Contractor in producing the additional 
information, whichever is greater. 


17.5.4 Meet and Confer: If Contractor disputes Owner’s written response, or 
Owner fails to respond within the time prescribed above, Contractor 
must notify Owner, in writing, either within 15 days of receipt of Owner’s 
response or within 15 days of Owner’s failure to timely respond, and 
demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of 
the issues in dispute.  Upon demand Owner will schedule a meet and 
confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 
Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion 
remains in dispute, Contractor may file a claim as provided in Chapter 
1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code.  
For purposes of those provisions, the running of the period of time 
within which a claim must be filed will be tolled from the time Contractor 
submits its written claim as set forth in this section, until the time that 
claim is denied as a result of the meet and confer process, including 
any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 


17.6 Claims Process under Public Contract Code § 9204: 


17.6.1 Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, Owner must conduct a 
reasonable review of the  and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, 
must provide the Contractor a written statement identifying what portion 
of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of 
a claim, Owner and Contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the 
time period provided in this subsection. 


17.6.2 The Contractor must furnish reasonable documentation to support the 
claim. 


17.6.3 If Owner needs approval from its governing body to provide the 
Contractor a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the 
undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet 
within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time 
following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, Owner will have up to three days following the 
next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-
day period, or extension, expires to provide the Contractor a written 
statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 


17.6.4 Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim will be 
processed and made within 60 days after Owner issues its written 
statement. If Owner fails to issue a written statement, subsection 17.6.3 
above will apply. 


17.6.5 If the Contractor disputes Owner's written response, or if Owner fails to 
respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 15 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


prescribed, the Contractor may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. 
Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, Owner will schedule a meet and confer 
conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 


17.6.6 Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and 
confer conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in 
dispute, Owner must provide the Contractor a written statement 
identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the 
portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion 
of the claim will be processed and made within 60 days after Owner 
issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as 
identified by the Contractor in writing, will be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, with Owner and the Contractor sharing the associated costs 
equally. Owner and Contractor must mutually agree to a mediator 
within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the claim has been 
identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each 
party will select a mediator and those mediators will select a qualified 
neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the 
claim. Each party will bear the fees and costs charged by its respective 
mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If 
mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute 
will be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 


17.6.7 For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding 
process, including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute 
review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the 
parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an 
evaluation. Any mediation utilized must conform to the timeframes in 
this section. 


17.6.8 This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration 
of disputes under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract 
Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve 
the parties' dispute. 


17.6.9 Failure by Owner to respond to a claim from contractor within the time 
periods described in this section or to otherwise meet the time 
requirements of this section will result in the claim being deemed 
rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of Owner's 
failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet the 
time requirements of this section, will not constitute an adverse finding 
with regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or 
qualifications of the Contractor. 


17.6.10 Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section will 
bear interest at seven percent per annum. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 16 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


17.6.11 If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 
assert a claim against Owner because privity of contract does not exist, 
the contractor may present to Owner a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request 
in writing, either on its own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier 
subcontractor, that the Contractor present a claim for Work which was 
performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on 
behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the claim 
be presented to Owner must furnish reasonable documentation to 
support the claim. Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the 
Contractor must notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether the 
Contractor presented the claim to Owner and, if the Contractor did not 
present the claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the 
reasons for not having done so. 


 


Section 18. General Provisions. 


18.1 Authority to Execute.  Each Party represents and warrants that all necessary action 
has been taken by such Party to authorize the undersigned to execute this 
Contract and to bind it to the performance of its obligations. 


18.2 Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract without the prior written 
consent of Owner, which consent may be withheld in Owner’s sole discretion since 
the experience and qualifications of Contractor were material considerations for 
this Contract. 


18.3 Third Party Beneficiaries.  Contractor’s subcontractor must agree to be bound to 
the terms of the Contract Documents to the extent of their scope of Work, including 
but not limited to, terms regarding indemnity and dispute resolution, and must 
agree that Owner is deemed an express third party beneficiary of their 
subcontracts.  Nothing in this Contract, however, shall operate to confer such or 
similar rights or benefits on persons or entities not party to this Contract. 


18.4 Binding Effect. This Contract is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and permitted assigns of the Parties. 


18.5 Integrated Contract.  This Contract, including the Contract Documents, is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
Work to be performed under this Contract and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, between Contractor and Owner prior to 
the execution of this Contract. 


18.6 Modification of Contract.  No amendment to or modification of this Contract will be 
valid unless made in writing and approved by Contractor and by the Board of 
Directors of Owner or Owner Manager, as applicable.  The Parties agree that this 
requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted 
waiver will be void. 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 17 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


18.7 Audit/Inspection Of Records.  Contractor shall maintain all documents and records 
prepared by or furnished to Contractor during the course of performing the Work 
for at least three (3) years following completion of the Work.  Such records include, 
but are not limited to, correspondence, internal memoranda, calculations, books 
and accounts, accounting records and job cost reports/data documenting all labor, 
materials, equipment and Work furnished under this Contract, and invoices, 
payrolls, records and all other data related to matters covered by this Contract.  
Contractor shall permit Owner to audit, examine and make copies, excerpts and 
transcripts from any such records, and Contractor shall in no event dispose of, 
destroy, alter, or mutilate said books, records, accounts, and data in any matter 
whatsoever for three (3) years after Owner makes the final or last payment or within 
three (3) years after any pending issues and disputes between Owner and 
Contractor regarding this Contract Agreement are resolved, whichever is later. 


18.8 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If either party commences an action against the other 
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 
this Contract, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing party reasonable attorneys' fees and all other costs of such 
action. 


18.9 Risk of Loss.  Contractor shall be responsible for all loss and damage which may 
arise out of the nature of the Work agreed to herein, or from the action of the 
elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered 
in the prosecution of the Work until the same is fully completed and accepted by 
City.   


18.10 Counterparts, Electronic Signatures.  This Contract may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which, when 
taken together, constitute one and the same instrument.  This Contract and any 
amendments will be considered executed when the signature of a party is 
delivered by electronic transmission.  Such electronic signature will have the same 
effect as an original signature. 


18.11 Waiver.  Waiver by any Party of any term, condition, or covenant of this Contract 
will not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver by 
any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Contract will not constitute a waiver 
of any other provision, or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Contract.  Acceptance by Owner of any Work performed by 
Contractor will not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Contract. 


18.12 Interpretation.  This Contract will be interpreted, construed and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  Each party has had the opportunity 
to review this Contract with legal counsel.  The Contract will be construed simply, 
as a whole, and in accordance with its fair meaning.  It will not be interpreted strictly 
for or against either party. 


18.13 Severability.  If any term, condition or covenant of this Contract is declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Contract will not be affected and 







(12-2019)   


 
PEDESTRIAN COUNTDOWN HEAD AND CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT PROJECT CONTRACT 


PROJECT NO. CIP 041, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(012) 
 Page 18 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


the Contract will be read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable 
provision. 


18.14 Governing Law and Venue.  This Contract shall be deemed to have been executed 
in the City where the Project is located.  Enforcement of this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State where the Project is located, excluding its conflict 
of laws rules.  In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state trial 
courts will be in the County of Riverside.   


The Parties have caused this Contract to be executed by their undersigned authorized 
agents as follows: 


OWNER: CITY OF WILDOMAR 


  
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


ATTEST: 


  
Janet Morales, Acting City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


  
Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 


CONTRACTOR: ALFARO COMMUNICATIONS CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
 
(If not an individual, two signatures are required) 
 


  
Hugo Alfaro, President, Treasurer, Manager 
 


   
Mayra Martinez, Vice President, Secretary 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 A-1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


EXHIBIT A 


COMPENSATION 


The total compensation under this Contract may not exceed: 
 


 The sum of Two Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Five Hundred Ninety and 00/100 
Dollars ($261,590.00). 


 


 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


EXHIBIT B 


INSURANCE 


Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, and for 2 years thereafter, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or 
in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, 
representatives, employees, or subcontractors. 
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 
1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 covering 


CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property 
damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 


2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any auto), 
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 


3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury or disease. 


4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils) 
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance 
penalty provisions. 


5. Surety Bonds. Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds:  


1. Bid bond 


2. Performance bond 


3. Payment bond 


4. Maintenance bond 


The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If 
the Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not 
necessary. If the warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a 
Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed 
by a responsible corporate surety, authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California and 
secured through an authorized agent with an office in California. 
 
6. Professional Liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or 


claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  The retroactive date must be shown, and this date 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-2 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


must be before the execution date of the contract or the beginning of contract work. Insurance 
must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 
after completion of contract work. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced 
with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or 
start of work date, the Contractor must purchase extended reporting period coverage for a 
minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work. A copy of the claims reporting 
requirements must be submitted to the City of Wildomar for review. 


7. Contractors’ Pollution Legal Liability and/or Asbestos Legal Liability and/or Errors and 
Omissions (if project involves environmental hazards) with limits no less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate. If the services involve lead-based paint 
or asbestos identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not 
contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold 
identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold 
exclusion, and the definition of Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold.  


If the contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above for all policies, the City of Wildomar requires and shall be entitled to the broader 
coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the 
City of Wildomar. 


Self-Insured Retentions 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City of Wildomar. At the option 
of the City of Wildomar, either: the contractor shall cause the insurer shall to reduce or eliminate 
such self-insured retentions as respects the City of Wildomar, its officers, officials, employees, 
and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the City of 
Wildomar guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and 
defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-
insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or City of Wildomar. 
 
Other Insurance Provisions: 
 
Additional Insured 
The City of Wildomar, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work or operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by 
or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an 
endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 
 
Primary Insurance 
For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the City of Wildomar, 
its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the City of Wildomar, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
  







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 B-3 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


Notice of Cancellation 
Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance policies is 
terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-
insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits 
of any insurance, Contractor shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance.   
 
Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance 
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of Construction 
coverage. Such coverage shall name the City of Wildomar as a loss payee as their interest may 
appear. 
 
If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of the City of Wildomar, 
an Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall 
be obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or 
adjustment to existing buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The Property 
Installation Floater shall provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery 
or equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of the Work, 
including during transit, installation, and testing at the City of Wildomar’s site. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current 
A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City of Wildomar. 
 
Waiver of Subrogation 
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may 
acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ 
Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of 
Wildomar for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors. 
 
Verification of Coverage 
Contractor shall furnish the City of Wildomar with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to City of Wildomar before work begins. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them. The City of Wildomar reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements, required by 
these specifications, at any time. 
 
Subcontractors 
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that City of Wildomar is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage subcontractors shall 
provide coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances 
City of Wildomar reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


EXHIBIT C 


FEDERAL CONTRACT TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND REGULATIONS 


In performing its Work under the Contract, Contractor must conform to all applicable federal, state, 
and local codes, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, which will have full force and effect as 
though printed in full in the Contract.  In addition to the terms, conditions, performance obligations, 
and other requirements set forth in the Contract, Contractor must comply with the following federal 
contract terms, conditions, and regulations, which are incorporated by reference in the Contract:  


1. Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 
60–1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60–1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964–1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
“Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and 
implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.”    


41 CFR 60–1.4(b) provides: 


The applicant hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any 
contract for construction Work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the 
Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds 
obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal 
Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken 
pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or 
guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause: 


During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 


(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action will include, but not be 
limited to the following: 


Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, 
available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth 
the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 


(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
or national origin. 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-2 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired 
about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another 
employee or applicant. This provision will not apply to instances in which an employee 
who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a 
part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such 
information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in 
furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation 
conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish 
information. 


(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of Workers with which 
he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to 
be provided advising the said labor union or Workers' representatives of the contractor's 
commitments under this section, and must post copies of the notice in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment. 


(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 


(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of 
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by 
the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to 
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 


(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of 
this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be 
canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared 
ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of 
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 


(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding 
paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or 
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor 
issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that 
such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will 
take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance: 


Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened 
with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the 
administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-3 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause 
with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted 
construction Work: Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local 
government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, 
instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in Work on 
or under the contract. 


The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering 
agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and 
subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such 
compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of 
the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. 


The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract 
modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor 
debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and 
federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry 
out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 
imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the 
Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the 
applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the 
administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or 
suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from 
extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which 
the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been 
received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for 
appropriate legal proceedings. 


2. Davis–Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141–3148). When required by Federal program 
legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non– Federal 
entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis–Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141–
3144, and 3146–3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and 
Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay 
wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a 
wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required 
to pay wages not less than once a week. The non–Federal entity must place a copy of the 
current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. 
The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of 
the wage determination. The non–Federal entity must report all suspected or reported 
violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for 
compliance with the Copeland “Anti–Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145),  as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public 
Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United 
States”). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from 
inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of 
public Work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. 
The non–Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal 
awarding agency. 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-4 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


3. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701–3708). Where applicable, 
all contracts awarded by the non–Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 
3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 
40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every 
mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard Work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of 
the standard Work week is permissible provided that the Worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours Worked in excess of 40 
hours in the Work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C.  3704 are applicable to construction 
Work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to Work in surroundings or 
under Working conditions which are unsanitary,  hazardous or dangerous. These 
requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily 
available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 


4. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets 
the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research Work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by 
Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and 
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 


5. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401–7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. 1251–1387), as amended.  Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of 
$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non–Federal award to agree to comply 
with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 
U.S.C. 7401–7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 
1251–1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional 
Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 


6. Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689).  A contract award (see 
2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the 
System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 
that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR 
part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties 
declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 


7. Byrd Anti–Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352).  Contractors that apply or bid for an 
award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier 
above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 
a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of 
Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered 
by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non–Federal funds that 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-5 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non–Federal award. 


8. 2 CFR § 200.322 Procurement of Recovered Materials. .A non–Federal entity that is a state 
agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with 
section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated 
in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain 
the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines. 


9. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements.  The parties to 
this Contract agree to comply with the provisions of 43 CFR 18, New Restrictions on Lobbying, 
including the following certification requirements: 


In accordance with 43 C.F.R. § Part. 18, Appendix A, each of the parties to this Contract 
certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 


(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
parties, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 


(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the parties must complete and submit Standard Form–LLL, “Disclosure Form 
to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 


(3) The parties must require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients must certify 
and disclose accordingly. 


This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. 
Any person who fails to file the required certification must be subject to a civil penalty of 
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 C-6 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


10. Executive Order 13513 of October 1, 2009, Federal Leadership On Reducing Text 
Messaging While Driving.  Text Messaging While Driving by Government Contractors, 
Subcontractors, and Recipients and Subrecipients. Each Federal agency, in procurement 
contracts, grants, and cooperative agreements, and other grants to the extent authorized by 
applicable statutory authority, entered into after the date of this order, must encourage 
contractors, subcontractors, and recipients and subrecipients to adopt and enforce policies 
that ban text messaging while driving company-owned or -rented vehicles or GOV, or while 
driving POV when on official Government business or when performing any Work for or on 
behalf of the Government. Agencies should also encourage Federal contractors, 
subcontractors, and grant recipients and subrecipients as described in this section to conduct 
initiatives of the type described in section 3(a) of this order. 


11. Drug-Free Workplace (2 CFR §182 and §1401).  The Department of the Interior regulations 
at 2 CFR 1401—Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial 
Assistance), which adopt the portion of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 701 
et seq., as amended) are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Contract.  
By entering into this Contract, the Contractor agrees to comply with 2 CFR 182. 


12. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874).  Contractor agrees to comply with the 
Copeland Anti-Kickback Act as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR 
part 5). 


 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


VERIFICATION OF CALIFORNIA 


CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE 
 
 


I certify, under penalty of perjury, that I have a valid California Contractor’s license 


issued pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7000 and following, and was so 


licensed at the time that the bid was awarded: 


 
 


California Contractor’s License: 
 
 
 
 
License Number Class Expiration Date 
 
 
 
  
 CONTRACTOR (PRINT OR TYPE) 
 
 
   
Date Signature  
 
 


(Public Contract Code § 6100) 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


CERTIFICATE REGARDING 


WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 
 
 


I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 


every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ compensation or to undertake self-


insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions 


before commencing the performance of the Work of this contract. 


 
 
  
 Name (print or type) 
 
 
 
   
Date Signature







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


PERFORMANCE BOND 


On _____________________________, the City of Wildomar, a California 
municipal corporation (“OWNER”), awarded a contract (“Contract”) to 
__________________________________________________________ (“CONTRACTOR” or 
“PRINCIPAL”), for the Work (“Work”) identified as 
____________________________________________________________________________  


The Contract and related documents (“Contract Documents”) are incorporated 
and made a part of this performance bond. 


Under the Contract, CONTRACTOR is required to furnish this bond providing for 
the faithful performance of the Work 


NOW, THEREFORE, we, CONTRACTOR, as PRINCIPAL, and 
____________________________________________________________________________, 
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ________________________ 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, as SURETY, 
are held and firmly bound unto OWNER, in the sum of 
_______________________________________________________________________dollars 
($_________________________), lawful money of the United States of America, this sum being 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the estimated amount payable by OWNER under 
the terms of the Contract , PRINCIPAL and SURETY, bind ourselves and our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by this instrument. 


BOND CONDITIONS 


1. PRINCIPAL will perform the Work the identified in the Contract.  OWNER has estimated 
the required amount of the bond as shown above. 


2. PRINCIPAL’s performance of the Work will be done in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  Should PRINCIPAL fail to satisfactorily complete all required Work within the 
time allowed, OWNER may, at its sole discretion, either (1) cause all required Work to be 
done and the parties executing this bond will be firmly bound for the payment of all 
necessary costs for the performance of this Work or (2) make demand upon the SURETY 
to complete the required Work in which event the SURETY will commence completion of 
the Work within 30 days of the OWNER’S demand unless otherwise agreed in a writing 
signed by the parties. 


3. PRINCIPAL will guarantee the Work against any defective Work, labor or materials for a 
period of one year following the completion and acceptance of the Work by OWNER. 


4. This bond is conditioned upon and guarantees due compliance with all applicable law. 


5. SURETY agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alteration or modification of the 
Contract or of the obligations to be performed thereunder will in any way affect its 
obligation on this bond, and waives notice of any such change, extension of time, 
alteration or modification of the Contract or of the obligations to be performed.  







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 2 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


Furthermore, SURETY expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code sections 
2845 and 2849. 


6. This bond consists of this instrument, the Contract and Contract Documents referenced 
above, and the following two attached exhibits, all of which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 


A. A certified copy of the appointment, power of attorney, bylaws or other instrument 
entitling or authorizing the persons executing this bond to do so; and 


B. A certificate issued by the county clerk for the county in which SURETY’s 
representative is located conforming with California Code of Civil Procedure 
§ 995.640 and stating that SURETY’s certificate of authority has not been 
surrendered, revoked, cancelled, annulled, or suspended, or in the event that it 
has, that renewed authority has been granted. 


7. In case suit is brought upon this bond, the court will award and SURETY must pay, in 
addition to the face amount of this bond, all costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred 
by OWNER in successfully enforcing any obligation under this bond. 


IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ 
day of ____________________, 20____. 


PRINCIPAL 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 







(12-2019)   


  CONTRACT 
 3 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


SURETY 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 
 
 
 
* ALL SIGNATURES ON THIS PERFORMANCE BOND MUST BE NOTARIZED USING 


APPROPRIATE 8½” x 11” NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM. 
 
** Appropriate modifications will be made to this form if the bond is being furnished 


for the performance of an act not provided for by agreement. 
 
*** Corporations must affix corporate seal. 
 







(12-2019)   


Page 1 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


PAYMENT BOND 


On _____________________________, the City of Wildomar, a California 
municipal corporation (“OWNER”), awarded a contract (“Contract”) to 
__________________________________________________________ (“CONTRACTOR” or 
“PRINCIPAL”), for the Work (“Work”) identified as 
____________________________________________________________________________  


 
 PRINCIPAL is required to furnish a bond under the Contract to secure the payment 
of claims of laborers, mechanics, material persons, and other persons as provided by law. 


 PRINCIPAL and __________________________________________________ 
___________________________________, a corporation incorporated under the laws of the 
State of _______________________________ and licensed by the State of California to execute 
bonds and undertakings as sole surety (“SURETY”), are held and firmly bound unto OWNER in 
the sum of ___________________________________________________  
______________________________________ dollars ($_________________________), 
lawful money of the United States, which may be increased or decreased by a rider hereto 
executed in the same manner as this bond, for the payment of which sum PRINCIPAL and 
SURETY bind themselves, their successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, by this instrument. 


BOND CONDITIONS 


1. PRINCIPAL will construct the Work identified in the Contract.  Such performance will be 
in accordance with the Contract Documents identified in the Contract, which are hereby 
incorporated and made a part of this bond.  OWNER has estimated the required amount 
of the bond as shown above. 


2. If PRINCIPAL, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns or subcontractors 
fail to pay any of the persons named in California Civil Code section 3181, or any amounts 
due under the California Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to Work or labor 
performed under the Contract, or any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid 
over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the 
Contractor and its subcontractors under Unemployment Insurance Code section 13020, 
with respect to Work or labor performed under the Contract, SURETY will pay for the same 
in an amount not exceeding the penal sum specified in this bond. 


3. This bond inures to the benefit of any of the persons named in Civil Code section 3181 so 
as to give a right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this 
bond.  In case suit is successfully brought upon this bond, SURETY further agrees to pay 
all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in an amount fixed by the court. 


4. This bond is conditioned upon and guarantees due compliance with all applicable law. 


5. SURETY agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alteration or modification of the 
Contract or of the obligations to be performed thereunder will in any way affect its 
obligation on this bond, and waives notice of any such change, extension of time, 
alteration or modification of the Contract or of the obligations to be performed.  







(12-2019)   


Page 2 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


Furthermore, SURETY expressly waives the provisions of California Civil Code sections 
2845 and 2849. 


6. This bond consists of this instrument, the Contract and Contract Documents referenced 
above, and the following two attached exhibits, all of which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 


A. A certified copy of the appointment, power of attorney, bylaws or other instrument 
entitling or authorizing the persons executing this bond to do so; and 


B. A certificate issued by the county clerk for the county in which SURETY’s 
representative is located conforming with California Code of Civil Procedure 
§ 995.640 and stating that SURETY’s certificate of authority has not been 
surrendered, revoked, cancelled, annulled, or suspended, or in the event that it 
has, that renewed authority has been granted. 


IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ 
day of ____________________, 20____. 


PRINCIPAL 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 







(12-2019)   


Page 3 
RIV #4852-0986-0270 v1  


SURETY 


By   


Title   


Address   


  


  
Telephone Number 


  
Signature 
 
 
 
* ALL SIGNATURES ON THIS PAYMENT BOND MUST BE NOTARIZED USING 


APPROPRIATE 8½” x 11” NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM. 
 
** Appropriate modifications will be made to this form if the bond is being furnished 


for the performance of an act not provided for by agreement. 
 
*** Corporations must affix corporate seal. 
 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.7 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Kimberly Davidson, Economic Development 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution regarding temporary use permits for outdoor commercial 


activities 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, REGARDING TEMPORARY USE PERMITS FOR OUTDOOR 
COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 


 
BACKGROUND: 
On July 12, 2020 the California Department of Public Health ordered the closure of indoor 
operations at certain businesses in an effort to curb the COVID-19 infection rates.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
This indoor closure might be detrimental to the small businesses in Wildomar and it is 
suggested that we implement a temporary use permit process for outdoor commercial 
activities so that these businesses can continue to service customers outdoors. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Kimberly Davidson      Gary Nordquist 
Economic Development Director    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Council Resolution No. 2020-___ 
  







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Council Resolution No. 2020-___ 
 
 
  







RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
REGARDING TEMPORARY USE PERMITS FOR OUTDOOR 


COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 


WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom of the State of California 
declared a State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 (Corona Virus Disease 19); 
and 


WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Riverside proclaimed the existence of a local emergency for all of Riverside County in 
response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 in California and in Riverside County; and, 


WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization (WHO) publicly 
characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic; and 


WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a 
National Emergency due to the continued spread and the effects of COVID-19; and 


WHEREAS, Government code section 8630, et seq., and Chapter 2.32 [Disaster 
Relief]  of the Wildomar Municipal Code (“WMC”) empower the City Council to declare 
and proclaim a local emergency within the City; and, 


WHEREAS, On March 17, 2020, the City Council of the City of Wildomar adopted 
a Resolution declaring a local state of emergency (“Local Emergency”) which now exists in 
the City of Wildomar due to COVID-19; and, 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 8634, during a local emergency 
the governing body of a political subdivision, or officials designated thereby, may promulgate 
orders and regulations necessary to provide for the protection of life and property; and 


WHEREAS, on July 12, 2020 the California Department of Public Health ordered 
the closure of indoor operations at certain businesses, including but not limited to dine-in 
restaurants, in an effort to curb the COVID-19 infection rates; and 


WHEREAS, to protect life and property impacted by State orders shutting down 
certain indoor commercial operations, as those orders exist now or may exist in the future, 
the City Council desires to implement a temporary use permit process for outdoor 
commercial activities pursuant to the authority granted by all applicable laws including, 
but not limited to, Government Code Section 8634 and Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 
2.32.  
  







NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 


SECTION 1.   Applicable Code Section 


The temporary use permit process contained in Section 17.172.220 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code may be utilized by the City to approve temporary outdoor 
commercial operations for businesses required by the California Department of Public 
Health to cease or reduce their indoor operations due to COVID-19.  The requirement of 
Section 17.172.220(A)(2) that a temporary use be “in conjunction with the repair or 
construction of streets, highways, or public utilities, for a period of time not to exceed six 
months” is hereby waived with respect to temporary uses proposed by businesses under 
this Resolution. 


SECTION 2.  Effective Date. 


This Resolution shall take effect immediately and remain in effect until repealed, 
rescinded or superseded by action of the City Council.  


SECTION 3.  Certification. 


The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this Resolution and shall cause a 
certified Resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 


Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      Acting City Clerk 
 
 







 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR-CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.8 


CONSENT CALENDAR  
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members  
 
FROM: James R. Riley, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: FY 2018-19 Audited Annual Financial Report for Measure AA 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the FY 2018-19 Audited Annual 
Financial Report for Measure AA from the Citizen’s Oversight Committee 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Measure AA Ordinance No. 161, Section 3.22.170.2 require the Citizen’s Oversight 
Committee to annually review and report on: (i) the City’s proposed and actual 
expenditures of proceeds generated by the transaction and use tax; and (ii) the 
independent annual audit required under this ordinance. The Committee’s report shall be 
submitted to the City Council for review and discussion at a public meeting of the City 
Council. This report was presented and reviewed by the Measure AA Oversight 
Committee at their meeting on February 27, 2020. 
 
The actual revenues received from the sales and use tax for FY 2018-19 was $634,302. 
This was for the period of April 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019. The actual expenditures for the 
fiscal year 2018-19 were $50,536. Fund balance at June 30, 2019 is $583,766. 
 
The audit was performed by Teaman, Ramirez & Smith, Inc. Their opinion regarding the 
Measure AA Fund is as follows: 
 
“In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above (for the Measure AA Fund) 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Measure AA 
Fund, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.” 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
Submitted by        Approved by: 
James R. Riley       Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director     City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
FY 2018-19 Audited Annual Financial Report at June 30, 2019  







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


       WILDOMAR MEASURE AA FUND 
        CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 


 
        FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
        For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


        Prepared By: 
 


        The City of Wildomar 
       Finance Department 


 







Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Fund Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 


 


 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 PAGE 
  
Independent Auditors’ Report 1 - 2 
  
Basic Financial Statements:  
 Fund Financial Statements  
  Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund 3 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -  
   Governmental Fund 


 
4 


  
  Notes to Financial Statements 5 - 8 
  
Required Supplementary Information:  
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information 9 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule 10 
  
 
 







 


 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members 
 of the City Council 
City of Wildomar, California 
 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Measure AA Fund, a special revenue fund of the City of 
Wildomar, California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Measure AA Fund’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to an express opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Measure AA Fund, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 


     


      Richard A. Teaman, CPA  David M. Ramirez, CPA  Javier H. Carrillo, CPA  Bryan P. Daugherty, CPA      Joshua J. Calhoun, CPA 


 4201 Brockton Avenue  Suite 100  Riverside CA 92501  951.274.9500 TEL     951.274.7828 FAX     www.trscpas.com 


 


 







 


2 


Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the Measure AA Special 
Revenue Fund, do not purport to, and do not present the financial position of the City of Wildomar, California, as of 
June 30, 2019, the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary Comparison 
Schedule on pages 9-10 be presented to supplement the financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who consider it to be an essential part 
of the financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements.  We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not 
affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2019, on our 
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 


 
Riverside, California 
January 8, 2020 
 







 


 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS







ASSETS
Due from Other Governments 512,414$           
Due from Other City Funds 71,352               


Total Assets 583,766$           


LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable -$                      


Total Liabilities -                        


FUND BALANCES
Committed for:


Public Safety Projects 583,766             


Total Fund Balances 583,766             


Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 583,766$           


Wildomar Measure AA Fund
Balance Sheet


June 30, 2019
Governmental Fund


The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
3







REVENUES
Taxes 634,302$           


Total Revenues 634,302             


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Community Development 8,300                 
Capital Outlay 42,236               


Total Expenditures 50,536               


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 583,766             


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year -                        


Fund Balances - End of Year 583,766$           


Wildomar Measure AA Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Governmental Fund


The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
4







Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2019 
 


5 


 
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 a. Description of the Reporting Entity 
 
 The Wildomar Measure AA Fund was established on November 6, 2018 (Ordinance No. 161), pursuant to 


voter-approved local transactions (sales) and use tax that are intended to be used for the enhancement of 
police and fire services, road maintenance and homelessness solutions within the City of Wildomar (the 
City). 


 
 The Measure AA Fund is included as a special revenue fund of the City and, accordingly, the accompanying 


fund financial statements are included as a special revenue fund of the basic financial statements prepared 
by the City.  The accompanying financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position of 
operations for the Measure AA Fund only and do not purport to, and do not, present the financial position of 
the City of Wildomar, California.  Separate financial statements are prepared for the City of Wildomar, and 
may be obtained from the City. 


 
 b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 


 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to available when they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Fund’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 


 c. Assets, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  For financial 
statement presentation purposes, cash and investments are shown as both restricted and unrestricted cash 
and investments in the governmental funds. 
 
Investments are reported at fair value.  The City’s policy is to hold investments until maturity or until 
market values equal or exceed cost.  The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with 
appropriate state laws and regulations.  The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the 
pool shares. Currently, there are no cash and investments as of June 30, 2019.  







Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2019 
 


6 


 
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 c. Assets, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued 


 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  Currently, the Fund does not report any deferred outflows. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition 
of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time.  Currently, the Fund does not report any deferred inflows. 
 
Fund Equity 
 
In the fund financial statements, government funds report the following fund balance classification: 
 
Nonspendable include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted include amounts that are constrained on the use of resources by either, (a) external creditors, 
grantors, contributions, or laws of regulations of other governments or (b) by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by 
formal action of the government’s highest authority, the City Council.  The formal action that is required to 
be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a resolution or ordinance. 
 
Assigned include amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, 
but are neither restricted nor committed.  The City Manager is authorized to assign amounts to a specific 
purpose, which was established by the governing body in Resolution No. 2011-32 approved on June 21, 
2011. 
 
Unassigned include the residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific 
purposes. 
 


  







Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2019 
 


7 


 
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 c. Assets, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued 


 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets 
 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Functional Classifications 
 
Expenditures of the governmental funds are classified by function.  Functional classifications are defined as 
General Government which includes legislative activities, City Clerk, City Attorney, City Manager as well 
as management, community development or supportive services across more than one functional area. 
 
Encumbrances 
 
Encumbrances are estimations of costs related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.  These 
commitments are recorded for budgetary control purposes in the fund.  Encumbrances represent the 
estimated amount of the expenditure ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are 
completed.  They do not constitute expenditures or estimated liabilities. 
 
Budget Basis of Accounting 
 
Budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).  


 
  







Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2019 
 


8 


 
2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 


 
As of June 30, 2019, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 


Governmental Fund $ - 
 
The Measure AA Fund is pooled with the City of Wildomar’s cash and investments in order to generate 
optimum interest earnings.  The information required by GASB Statement No. 40 related to authorized 
investments, credit risk, etc. is available in the comprehensive annual financial report of the City. Currently, 
there are no cash and investments as of June 30, 2019. 


 
 
3) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
 Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and 


Application, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  The framework provides a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value with Level 1 given the highest 
priority and Level 3 the lowest priority.  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 


 
 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 


organization has the ability to access at the measurement date. 
 
 Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 


liability, either directly or indirectly.  Level 2 inputs include the following: 
 


a. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 
 


b. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.  
 


a. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates 
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss 
severities, credit risks, and default rates).  


 
b. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or 


other means (market-corroborated inputs). 
 


 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
 As explained in Note 2, the Measure AA Fund has its investments pooled with the City.  The cash and 


investments reflected is a portion of the City’s overall cash and investments. Refer to the City’s financial 
statements for additional information relating to categorization of investment types. 


 
 







 


 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 







 


9 


Wildomar Measure AA Fund 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 


June 30, 2019 
 
 
Budgetary Comparison Information 
 
General Budget Policies 
 
The City Council approves each year’s budget prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year.  Public hearings are 
conducted prior to its adoption by the Council.  Supplemental appropriations, where required during the period, are 
also approved by the Council.  In most cases, expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the function level.  At 
fiscal year-end, all operating budget appropriations lapse. 
 
Encumbrances 
 
Encumbrances are estimations of costs related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.  These commitments 
are recorded for budgetary control purposes in the fund.  Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of the 
expenditure ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are completed.  They do not 
constitute expenditures or estimated liabilities. 
 
Budget Basis of Accounting 
 
Budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 







Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
Resources (Inflows):


Taxes -                    475,000        634,302        159,302        


Amounts Available for 
Appropriations -                    475,000        634,302 159,302


Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Community Development -                    25,000 8,300 16,700
Capital Outlay -                    275,000        42,236          232,764


Total Charges to Appropriations -                    300,000        50,536          249,464        


Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 -$                  175,000$      583,766$      408,766$      


Wildomar Measure AA Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule


Year Ended June 30, 2019


Budgeted Amounts


10







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.9 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020  


________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Gil Petris, CBO, Building Official 
 
SUBJECT:  Adopt a Resolution to declare a public nuisance and abate all 


 weeds growing upon private property in the City. 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution Entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -  ____ 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA DECLARING 
WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT UPON 
PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC 
RIGHTS OF WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND 
INITIATING ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Wildomar Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 8.48 addresses Hazardous Vegetation. 
On March 11, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance 183 regarding Hazardous 
Vegetation Notice to Abate Appeal.  The Ordinance amended the WMC to 
streamline the appeal process from a Board of Appeals to the City Manager as the 
Hearing Officer. 
A Weed Abatement Procedures Manual (Attached) was prepared as a guide to 
comply with the California Government Code.  According to the City’s internal 
procedures, there are four steps required by fire inspection prior to commencing 
the Abatement Process.  Six steps are prescribed for the Abatement Process 
under the provisions of the Government code.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
In May 2020, Code Enforcement completed Step 1 of the Manual and submitted a 
list of vacant properties to Fire Prevention. Fire completed Step 2 and visited each 
property and identified the properties that have Hazardous Vegetation and 
reported back to Code Enforcement staff.   Staff then prepared and mailed notices 
to the properties of concern.  After 30 days from sending the notice, Fire conducted 







 2 


Step 4 and reinspected the properties of concern during the first week of July.  
Following the process outlined in the Government code, the Agenda Item and 
Resolution considered today address Steps 1-3 of the Abatement Procedures 
Manual and sets a Public Hearing for August 26, 2020.  A notice will be either 
posted or sent to the property owners after this meeting.  A sample notice is 
included in the Weed Abatement Procedures Manual. 
 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The fiscal impacts have been appropriated in the Operating Budget and include 


staff and fire inspection time associated with the Abatement process. 


 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Daniel York                         Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Weed Abatement Procedures 
 
  







 3 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020- ____ 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA DECLARING 
WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT UPON 
PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC 
RIGHTS OF WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND 
INITIATING ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 


WHEREAS, the City Council elects to proceed under Government Code 
Sections 39501 and 39502, and Section 39560 et. seq., to declare a public 
nuisance and abate all weeds growing upon streets, sidewalks, and private 
property in the City and all rubbish refuse and dirt upon parkways, sidewalks and 
private property in the City.  


WHEREAS, in this resolution and in all subsequent proceedings, the term 
"weeds” means “mature, bear wingy or downy seeds that will attain such large 
growth so as to become a fire menace when dry, or that are otherwise noxious or 
dangerous, and includes sagebrush, chaparral, poison oaks and poison ivy, when 
the conditions of growth are such to constitute a menace to the public health, dry 
grass, stubble, brush, litter and all other flammable material that endangers the 
public safety by creating a fire hazard.”  


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby 
resolve that: 


SECTION 1. PUBLIC NUISANCE. 


In accordance with Government Code section 39561, the City Council 
declares as a public nuisance all weeds growing upon vacant private property in 
the City, and all rubbish, refuse and dirt upon vacant private property in the City.  


SECTION 2. SPECIFIC PROPERTIES. 


The properties upon which, or in front of which the nuisance is declared in 
Section 1 are described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made part hereof by 
this reference.  







 4 


SECTION 3. FIRE CHIEF. 


The Fire Chief, or his authorized designee, is the person designated to 
perform the duties imposed by Government Code Sections 39560 through 39588 
upon the responsible employee, and all reference in these proceedings to 
responsible employee means that person.  


SECTION 4. HEARING. 


August 26, 2020, at 6:30 p.m., at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, 
California, is fixed as the time and place for hearing all objections to the proposed 
removal of weeds. 


SECTION 5. NOTICES. 


The responsible employee shall prepare notices as follows: the heading of 
the notice shall be "Notice to destroy weeds and remove rubbish, refuse and dirt" 
in letters not less than one inch in height. Notice shall be posted on each separate 
property at least five (5) days before the time set for hearing in the manner 
prescribed by law.  


SECTION 6. NOTICE BY MAIL. 


As an alternative to posting, the City Clerk shall mail written notice of the 
proposed abatement to all persons owning property described in Section 2 of this 
resolution. Then notice shall be mailed to each person to whom the property is 
assessed as shown on the last equalized assessment roll. The City Clerk shall mail 
the notice at least five (5) days before the time set for hearing.  


 


PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ___________, 20__. 


 


__________________________ 
Dustin Nigg, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 
____________________________ __________________________ 
Janet Morales, Acting City Clerk Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
 







Parcel Number Address Homeowner's Mailing Address Homeowner's Name 1st Letter sent Reispection date
361151007 1646 BRONZE KNOLL RD DAIMOND BAR CA 91765 STEIGER PATRICIA M LIVING TRUST DATED 11/6/2010; KATHLEEN M STEIGER; SUSAN M PIANALTO 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361151017 33415 HAYFIELD CIRCLE WILDOMAR CA 92595 CHRISTINA M BUSCH 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361151018 33415 HAYFIELD CIRCLE WILDOMAR CA 92595 CHRISTINA M BUSCH 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361151019 1855 E RIVERSIDE NO 431 ONTARIO CA 91761 LEONEL GARCIA 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361151020 1855 E RIVERSIDE NO 431 ONTARIO CA 91761 LEONEL GARCIA 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361152001 429 LEXINGTON CIRCLE OCEANSIDE CA 92057 MATIENZO FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST; RL DOCENA CONSULTING GROUP INC; MAGDALENA R MATIENZO 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361152013 21131 GRAND AVE WILDOMAR CA 92595 MARIO M ARRIAGA 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361153005 21261 STEEL PEAK DR PERRIS CA 92570 FLORENCIO SOTO; MARISA SOTO 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
361171018 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171019 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171020 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171021 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171022 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171023 900 FORT ST MALL STE 1100 HONOLULU, 96813 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361171024 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361172001 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361172002 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361172003 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361175005 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361175006 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176001 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176002 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176003 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176004 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176005 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361176006 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361182002 446 SCHOOL RD NOVATO, 94945 SHU HUA HSIEH 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361182014 P O BOX 606 FREELAND, 48623 ANDREW HEYN; HEYN DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361191004 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361191006 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361195001 1502 GOLDEN RAIN NO 46G SEAL BEACH, 90740 ALMA CAROL OLSEN 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361195002 1222A W WASHINGTON ST # 10 MILWAUKEE, 53204 JUAN R. BELTRAN; ESTELA BELTRAN 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361196003 28475 OLD TOWN FRONT NO D TEMECULA, 92590 BUNDY CANYON LAND DEV 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361202001 P O BOX 372 BURLINGTON, 05402 MARY ANNETTE COX 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361203003 3401 WEST LINE ST BISHOP, 93514 ROGER MAURER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361203004 3401 WEST LINE ST BISHOP, 93514 ROGER MAURER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361204010 26310 OLSEN HOMELAND, 92548 MARINA ROMERO 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361211015 1254 CROWN CT DE PERE, 54115 HENDRIK JACOB BRUIN; CYNTHIA RAYLENE BUTCHER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361221007 25351 NOELLE CT LOMITA, 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361221008 25351 NOELLE CT LOMITA, 90717 MICHELLE L FALCON HUBER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361223005 30060 LOUIS RD SUN CITY, 92585 GARY C. BROWN; MICHELLE L. BROWN; MICHAEL D. BROWN; LETTY L. BROWN 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361223033 30060 LOUIS RD ROMOLAND, 92585 LETTY L. BROWN 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
361237001 27851 BRADLEY RD ATE 145 MENIFEE, 92586 JEREMIAH RAXTER 6/3/2020 7/6/2020
380040004 601 S ARAPAHO DR SANTA ANA CA 92704 CHUAN VIET CAO; CUCTHI NGUYEN 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380050007 1995 MARKET ST RIVERSIDE CA 92501 RIVERSIDE COUNTY FLOOD CONT 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380060007 PO BOX 300 LAKE ELSINORE CA 92531 BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS CORP 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380060008 PO BOX 300 LAKE ELSINORE CA 92531 BEAZER HOMES HOLDINGS CORP 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380070021 22410 GRAND AVE WILDOMAR CA 92595 CONRAD SOLIS GONZALEZ; MARY LOUISE GONZALEZ 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380080019 5171 CALIFORNIA STE 120 IRVINE CA 92617 RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES OF MARYLAND INC 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380110001 3020 WINDMILL DR DIAMOND BAR 91765 ESW 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380110002 3020 WINDMILL DR DIAMOND BAR 91765 ESW 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380120005 2001 VIA CORONEL PALOS VERDES PENINSULA CA 902LE ZU CHANG; FUKUO TONO; SAE CHI CHEN; WU FENG CHANG; CHANGS FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 5/21/2020 7/6/2020


Exhibit "A"







380120006 1243 CLAYTON ST AUBURNDALE FL 33823 JAMES CHAN; YA PING CHAN 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380120012 43180 CORONA CALA CAMINO MURRIETA CA 92562 CRAZY EIGHTS 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380120005 2001 VIA CORONEL PALOS VERDES PENINSULA CA 902LE ZU CHANG; FUKUO TONO; SAE CHI CHEN; WU FENG CHANG; CHANGS FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST                                   5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380120006 1243 CLAYTON ST AUBURNDALE FL 33823 JAMES CHAN; YA PING CHAN 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380120012 43180 CORONA CALA CAMINO MURRIETA CA 92562 CRAZY EIGHTS 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380140004 22177 EAGLES NEST CT MURRIETA CA 92562 IRA SERVICES TRUST COMPANY CFBO BRENDA DIANNE 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380140009 1370 JET STREAM DR NO 100 HENDERSON NV 89052 TFA 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380140013 2201 WORMWOOD DR HACIENDA HEIGHTS CA 91745 DAVID DONG IK LEE; ANNE PARK LEE; JANG BU PARK; YOUNG SOO PARK 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380160003 350 S FIGUEROA ST NO 115 LOS ANGELES CA 90071 P E HOLDINGS INC 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380160007 350 S FIGUEROA ST NO 115 LOS ANGELES CA 90071 P E HOLDINGS INC 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380160009 350 S FIGUEROA ST NO 115 LOS ANGELES CA 90071 P E HOLDINGS INC 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380160018 26111 SALLY DR LAKE FOREST CA 92630 R & H WILDOMAR 1 5/28/2020 7/6/2020
380170006 2008 W THELBORT ST WEST COVINA CA 91790 DE L. HALBERT; MARCIA ANTOINETTE CARVER; BONNIE LOU 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380170007 32690 WATKINS CIR MURRIETA CA 92562 WONG KAR MING & ALICEN DIANE WONG REVOCABLE TRUST 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380210006 4952 WARNER AVE STE 223 HUNTINGTON BEACH CA 9S&C OIL INC 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380220003 27127 CALLE ARROYO 1910 SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO 92CAMELIA COMMUNITIES 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380280006 PO BOX 56867 SHERMAN OAKS CA 91413 VELUR HOLDINGS 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380280007 PO BOX 56867 SHERMAN OAKS CA 91413 VELUR HOLDINGS 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380290002 1526 ZARA STREET GLENDORA CA 91741 SHIBA YAMAMOTO & PARTNERS 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380470041 5171 CALIFORNIA STE 120 IRVINE CA 92617 RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES OF MARYLAND INC 5/21/2020 7/6/2020
380470042 5171 CALIFORNIA STE 120 IRVINE CA 92617 RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES OF MARYLAND INC 5/21/2020 7/6/2020







 
  


2020 


City of Wildomar 


Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP 


Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney  


Weed and Rubbish Abatement 
Procedures 







1 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR ABATEMENT PROCEDURES  


The following steps are to be completed by Wildomar staff before initiating the abatement process 
outlined in the California Government Code and referenced herein on page 2. 


 


 
  


• Confirm maps of parcels in the City considered 
as a property with hazardous vegetation.Step 1


• Conduct First Inspection of Property.
• Confirm need for weed abatement based on 


health, fire, and/or saftey dependent on 
weather and predicted hazards. 


• Take photos of the property. Step 2
• Provide 30 day notice of hazard(s) to property 


owners by certified mail. Notice shall include:
• Weed abatement standards;
• FAQ; and
• Associated deadlines and penalties.


Step 3
• Conduct Second Inspection of Property.


• Case shall be resolved if the property abated 
the nuisance and is in complaince


• If the property is not compliant, collect 
infromation on property in preparation of 
weed abatement procedures pursuant to the 
California Government Code. 


Step 4







2 
 


ABATEMENT PROCEDURES PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE 


 


•Declare by resolution weeds growing on private 
property, streets or sidewalks in the City to be public 
nuisances. 


•Private property means any land that is not owned by 
the government or dedicated to public use.


•Resolution must specifically identify the property that is 
subject to weed abatement.


STEP 1
Gov. Code § 39561


•The responsible City employee must post notices on or 
in front of the property identfied in the resolution.


•OR notice may be mailed to all persons owning property 
described in the resolution.


STEP 2
Gov. Code § 39564


Gov. Code § 39567.1


•At the time stated in the notice, the legislative body must 
hold a hearing to consider all objections to the proposed 
removal of weeds.


•The hearing may be continued from time to time.  
STEP 3


Gov. Code § 39568


•By motion or resolution at the conclusion of the hearing, 
the legislative body must allow or overrule any 
objections.


•This is when the City aquires jurisdiction to proceed and 
perform the work of removal.


STEP 4
Gov. Code § 39569


•The responsible City employee may enter upon private 
property to abate the nuisance.


•The responsible City employee will keep an account of 
cost of abatement and submit to City Council for 
confirmation. 


STEP 5
Gov. Code § 39572


•A copy of the report shall be posted for at least 3 days 
prior to its submission to the City Council on or near the 
chamber door with a notice of the time of submission. 


•After the assessment is made and confirmed by the City 
Council, a lien attaches on the property upon 
recordation of the confirmation with the County recorder.


STEP 6 
Gov. Code § 39577 







3 
 


By ordinance, a city council may require and provide for the removal of grass, weeds, or other 
obstructions from sidewalks, parking areas, or streets, and for the removal from property of all weeds, 
rubbish, or other material dangerous or injurious to neighboring property or to the health and welfare 
of residents of the vicinity.1  


A city's legislative body may, under general law, compel the owner, lessee, or occupant of 
property in the city to remove from the property and adjacent sidewalks all dirt, rubbish, weeds and 
“rank growths.” In the event the owner, lessee or occupant does not comply, the legislative body may 
authorize the removal of that matter by a city officer at the owner's expense, and may make the 
expense a lien on the property.2  


STEP 1: RESOLUTION       See Exhibit A 


The City Council may declare by resolution as public nuisances and abate all weeds growing 
upon the private property, streets, or sidewalks in the city. The resolution may also declare as public 
nuisances and abate all rubbish, refuse, and dirt upon parkways, sidewalks and private property in 
the city.3   


The resolution shall refer to the street by its commonly known name and describe the property 
upon which or in front of which the nuisance exists by giving its lot and block number according to the 
official city assessment map.4 Any number of streets, sidewalks, or parcels of private property may be 
included in one resolution.5  


STEP 2: NOTICE 


Posting Notice          See Exhibit B 


After the passage of the resolution, the responsible employee6 shall post notices on or in front of the 
property where the nuisance exists.7 Postings shall include: 


 
• One posted notice for parcels with no more than 50 feet of frontage 
• One or two posted notices for parcels with no more than 100 feet of frontage 
• Notices no more than one hundred feet apart if the frontage of such parcel is greater than 100 


feet.  
 
The heading of the notices shall be "Notice to destroy weeds and remove rubbish, refuse, and 
dirt" in letters one inch in height or more8.  
 
We have provided a form notice in Exhibit B based on the statutory requirements. 
 
 


 
1 Gov. Code Section 39502 
2 Gov. Code Section 39501 
3 Gov. Code Section 39561 
4 Gov. Code Section 39562 
5 Gov. Code Section 39563 
6 Gov. Code Section 39564 states a City's "Street Superintendent" shall post notices. This authority may be delegated to 
any officer or employee the City Council sees fit.   
7 Gov. Code Section 39564 
8 Gov. Code Section 39565 







4 
 


NOTICE TO DESTROY WEEDS AND REMOVE 
RUBBISH, REFUSE, AND DIRT 
 


Notice is hereby given that on the ____ day of ____, 19__, the (name of the legislative body) passed a resolution 
declaring that noxious or dangerous weeds were growing upon or in front of the property on this street, and that rubbish, 
refuse, and dirt were upon or in front of property on this street, in ____, and more particularly described in the resolution, 
and that they constitute a public nuisance which must be abated by the removal of the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt. 
Otherwise they will be removed and the nuisance abated by the city and the cost of removal assessed upon the land from 
or in front of which the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt are removed and will constitute a lien upon such land until paid. 
Reference is hereby made to the resolution for further particulars. A copy of said resolution is on file in the office of the city 
clerk. 
All property owners having any objections to the proposed removal of the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt are hereby 
notified to attend a meeting of the (name of the legislative body) of (city or town) to be held (give date), when their 
objections will be heard and given due consideration. 


 
Dated this   _______day of  _______, 19__. 


  


Responsible Employee 


(City of ______) 


 
The notices need to be posted at least 5 days prior to the time set for hearing objections by the 


city council.9  
 


Notice by Mail          See Exhibit C 
 


As an alternative to posting notice, the city council may direct the city clerk to mail written 
notice of the proposed abatement to all persons owning property described in the resolution.  


 
The city clerk shall cause such written notice to be mailed to each person to whom such 


described property is assessed in the last equalized assessment roll available on the date the 
resolution was adopted by the legislative body.  The address of the owners shown on the assessment 
roll shall be conclusively deemed to be the proper address for the purpose of mailing such notice.10 


 
A county's local roll is a record of all assessable property discovered and valued by the county 


assessor. The assessment roll is designated by a fiscal year (e.g., 2015-16). Riverside County 
Assessor's office contact information is available on the website at 
http://www.asrclkrec.com/Home.aspx.  


 
If this method is used, the notices should be mailed at least 5 days prior to the time for hearing 


objections by the legislative body. Exhibit C includes a form mailed notice that complies with statutory 
requirements.  
 


Please note that published notice of the hearing is not required by law.  Providing either 
the posted or mailed notice satisfies the notice requirements for the hearing.   


 
9 Gov. Code Section 39567 
10 Gov. Code Section 39567.1 



http://www.asrclkrec.com/Home.aspx





5 
 


 
STEP 3: HEARING 


At the time stated in the notices, the legislative body shall hold a public hearing and hear and 
consider all objections to the proposed removal of weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt. It may continue 
the hearing from time to time.11  


At the conclusion of the hearing the legislative body shall allow or overrule any objections and 
vote to approve, approve with modifications, or reject the resolution ordering abatement.  


STEP 4: LEGAL AUTHORITY TO ABATE    See Exhibit D 


At the conclusion of the hearing, the City Council obtains the legal authority to abate and 
perform the work of removal.12 The decision of the legislative body is final.13 


The legislative body shall order the responsible employee to abate the nuisance by having the 
weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt removed.14 Exhibit D is a form resolution that complies with the legal 
requirements for ordering abatement. 


STEP 5: ABATEMENT 


The responsible employee may enter upon private property to abate the nuisance.15 Before the 
responsible employee arrives, any property owner may remove the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt at 
his or her own expense.  


Abatement of the nuisance may be performed by contract awarded by the legislative body on 
the basis of competitive bids let to the lowest responsible bidder pursuant to Government Code 
Sections 37903, 37904, 37905 and 37931 to 37935. In such event the contractor shall keep the 
account and submit the itemized written report for each separate parcel of land.16 


STEP 6: REPORT ASSESSMENT AND LIEN     See Exhibit E 


In any case in which an order to abate is issued, the legislative body may further order that a 
special assessment and lien be imposed pursuant to Government Code Section 39577 to recover the 
costs of abatement. The assessment and lien shall be limited to the costs incurred by the responsible 
agency in enforcing abatement upon the parcels, including investigation, boundary determination, 
measurement, clerical and other related costs.17 


The responsible employee shall keep an account of the cost of abatement in front of or on 
each separate parcel of land where the abatement work is done. The employee shall submit to the 


 
11 Gov. Code Section 39568 
12 Gov. Code Section 39569 
13 Gov. Code Section 39570 
14 Gov. Code Section 39571 
15 Gov. Code Section 39572 
16 Gov. Code Section 39577 
17 Gov. Code Section 39573 







6 
 


legislative body for confirmation an itemized written report showing such costs.18 A copy of the report 
shall be posted for at least three days prior to its submission to the legislative body on or near the 
chamber door of the legislative body, with a notice of the time of submission.19 


At the time fixed for receiving and considering the report, the legislative body shall hear it with 
any objections of the property owners liable to be assessed for the abatement. It may modify the 
report if it is deemed necessary. The legislative body shall then confirm the report by motion or 
resolution.20 
   


 
18 Gov. Code Section 39574 
19 Gov. Code Section 39575 
20 Gov. Code Section 39576 







EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 


NOTICE TO DESTROY WEEDS AND REMOVE RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT 
 


PLEASE READ THIS NOTICE 
CAREFULLY 


 
Notice is hereby given that on the ____ day of ____, 20__, the City Council passed a 
resolution declaring that noxious or dangerous weeds were growing upon or in front of 
the property on this street, and/or that rubbish, refuse, and dirt were upon or in front of 
property on this street, in Wildomar, and more particularly described in the resolution, 
and that they constitute a public nuisance which must be abated by the removal of the 
weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt. Otherwise they will be removed and the nuisance 
abated by the city and the cost of removal assessed upon the land from or in front of 
which the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt are removed and will constitute a lien upon 
such land until paid. Reference is hereby made to the resolution for further particulars. A 
copy of said resolution is on file in the office of the City Clerk. 


All persons having any objections to the proposed removal of the weeds, rubbish, 
refuse, and dirt are hereby notified to attend a meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Wildomar to be held [DATE], when their objections will be heard and given due 
consideration. 
 
At ______ A.M. / P.M. on __________ ___, 20__ at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, 
Wildomar, California, 92595, the City Council will hold a hearing in Council Chambers to 
hear all objections and confirm proceedings. All persons having any objections may 
attend the meeting. 
 
 It is not necessary to attend the hearing, however, if you wish to object to the 
required removal, you should be present at the hearing.  
 
YOUR PROPERTY MUST BE CLEANED PRIOR TO CONFIRMATION OF THE 
RESOLUTION; THEREAFTER, IT MUST REMAIN CLEAR FOR THE ENTIRE YEAR. 
IF IT MUST BE CLEANED BY CITY CREWS, IT WILL BE AT YOUR EXPENSE AND 
WILL BE A LIEN ON YOUR PROPERTY SIMILAR TO TAXES. ANY CHARGE 
INCURRED BY THE CITY IN CLEANING YOUR PROPERTY WILL BE PRESENTED 
TO THE CITY COUNCIL FOR CONFIRMATION AND PLACEMENT ON THE TAX 
ROLLS.  
 
// 
//  







1 
 


 
 
City of Wildomar      By: _________________ 
 
THIS NOTICE DATED 
 
 
 


PARCEL NO.  


 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  







2 
 


EXHIBIT C 
 
 


[DATE] 
Property Owner 
Address 
Wildomar, CA ______ 
 


Subject: Important Notice to Abate Weeds, Rubbish, Refuse and Dirt 


 


Dear Property Owner:  


You are receiving this letter, because your property is currently listed on a 
pending Resolution declaring your property as one that may contain fire hazards from 
weeds or other debris.  


Notice is hereby given that on [DATE] the City Council of the City of Wildomar 
will be asked to pass a Resolution declaring that noxious or dangerous weeds are 
growing upon or in front of, and/or rubbish, refuse, dirt or other debris is accumulated 
on, property owned by you and more particularly described in the Resolution, and that 
these weeds and other debris constitute a public nuisance which must be abated by the 
removal of the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt. If you choose not to remove the weeds 
or other debris, they will be removed by the City, and the cost of removal billed to you. If 
not paid, the amount will be assessed upon the land from or in front of which the weeds 
and other debris are removed and will constitute a lien upon such land until paid. The 
City's administrative costs will also be added. A copy of said Resolution is on file in the 
Office of the City Clerk at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar California 92595.  


If you disagree with the proposed removal of the weeds, rubbish, refuse, and dirt, 
you are encouraged to attend the City Council meeting to be held on  [DATE] at [TIME] 
at the City Council Chambers located at 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar California 
92595, when objections will be heard and given due consideration.  


If you are no longer the owner of the property identified in this mailing, please 
notify the City immediately. If you sell your property after the date of this letter, it is your 
responsibility to notify the new owner and to include the obligation to pay any abatement 
costs in your agreement of sale. Without taking this action, you will be responsible for all 
abatement charges assessed to the property.  







3 
 


PROPERTY MUST BE CLEANED BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO 
CONFIRMATION OF THE RESOLUTION; THEREAFTER, IT MUST REMAIN CLEAR 
FOR THE ENTIRE YEAR. 


 


 
       Sincerely,  
 
 
 
       [employee name] 
       [employee title] 


City of Wildomar 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.10 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: House of Representatives HR 2956 (Calvert) 
 Letter of Support 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to send a Letter of Support 
of HR 2956. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Councilmember Morabito serves the city as Commissioner to the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Agency (RCA) .  On behalf of the RCA, Councilmember 
Morabito requests the City provide a Letter of Support for HR 2956. 
 
DISCUSSION SUMMARY: 
The guiding document for the RCA is the Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan 
(MSHCP).  A requirement in the MSHCP if for the Federal Government to acquire land 
with the MSHCP boundaries.  According to Congressman Calvert’s Legislative Affairs 
Representative, HR 2956 establishes the framework for the Secretary of the Interior to 
establish a Wildlife Refuge within the MSHCP boundaries.  Attached is a preliminary 
location being considered. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact with the Mayor to send a Letter of Support of HR 2956. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Letter of Support for HR 2956 
B. HR 2956 (Calvert, Aguilar, Takano) Western Riverside County Wildlife Refuge 
C. Map of Proposed Refuge Area 







ATTACHMENT A 







 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor, Dist. 2                                                                                       23873 Clinton Keith Rd, Ste 201  
Bridgette Moore, Mayor Pro Tem, Dist. 4                                                                                                       Wildomar, CA 92595     
Ben J. Benoit, Council Member, Dist. 1                                                                                               951.677.7751 Phone 
Joseph Morabito Council Member, Dist. 3                                                                                                             951.698.1463 Fax 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member, Dist. 5                                                                                                        www.CityofWildomar.org           


 


 


 
 
 


August 12, 2020 
 
The Honorable Ken Calvert 
U.S. House of Representatives 
2205 Rayburn HOB 
Washington, DC  20515 
 
Dear Rep. Calvert: 
 
The City of Wildomar is writing in support to endorse your bill, H.R 2956, federal legislation 
which would establish the Western Riverside County National Wildlife Refuge.  This 
important piece of legislation will be a welcome and critical addition to our efforts in western 
Riverside to preserve habitat, enhance quality of life and enable needed infrastructure.   
 
The City of Wildomar was encouraged to see HR. 2956 advance out of the House Natural 
Resources Committee on January 29.  With the bill now heading to the House floor for 
consideration by the U.S. House, the City would like to add our voice to those calling for its 
passage. 
 
The City of Wildomar concur in your statement that “Riverside County is now one step closer 
to being home to a new wildlife refuge that would help it balance its commitment to conserving 
animal habitat with its need for future growth.  As we move forward, it’s critical that all 
stakeholders, including the federal government, meet their conservation responsibilities to 
ensure the successful implementation of our planning efforts, including vital transportation 
improvement projects.” 
 
As members/stakeholders of the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan (MSHCP), the City of Wildomar support(s) the consolidation of the current 
checkerboard conservation lands into a National Wildlife Refuge creating a framework for the 
federal government to meet its obligations under the MSHCP Implementing Agreement.  
Upon enactment, the City of Wildomar look forward to the many benefits that H.R. 2956 
would provide:  
 
• Establish the boundary for a new wildlife refuge; 
• Allow for the immediate inclusion of non-federal conservation lands that have already 


been acquired to meet the terms of the MSHCP; 
• Provide certainty for development of the transportation infrastructure required to meet 


the future needs of southern California; 
• Create new public access and enhance recreation for the entire region; and 







 
 
 
   


• Create a mechanism for federal agencies to inventory lands within the Refuge boundary 
established by this legislation to determine their suitability for inclusion. 


 
Establishing this land as a wildlife refuge will ensure public access and enhanced recreation 
opportunities for the entire region.  The City of Wildomar thank you for sponsoring this 
legislation and look forward to its passage and implementation. 
 
 
Thank you for your service, 
City of Wildomar 
 
 
 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 
 







ATTACHMENT B 



































ATTACHMENT C 







Clu
ste


r D
r


I 215 N


Ethanac Rd


S K
irb


y S
t


Sta
nfo


rd 
StE Stetson Ave


Mccall Blvd


Seta St


Garbani Rd


Bu
ck 


Rd


Thompson Rd


So
bo


ba
 St


Newport Rd


Mayberry Ave


Olive Ave


Santiago Rd
Redhawk Pkwy


Nicolas Rd


Scott Rd


Benton Rd


Ynez Rd


Jefferson Ave


Margarita Rd


Diaz Rd


Da
te


St


Fa
irv


iew
 Av


e


Me
nif


ee
 R


d


S S
tat


e S
t


North Loop Rd


Wa
rre


n R
d


Los Alamos Rd


An
za


 R
d


Pa
la 


Rd


Sta
te 


St


Stetson Ave W


Pauba Rd


Wa
sh


ing
ton


 St


Br
igg


s R
d


Borel Rd


De Portola Rd


E Benton Rd


Palm
Ave


Simpson Rd


Red Mountain Rd


Sa
ge


Rd


Domenigoni Pkwy


Sta
nley


Rd


Diamond
Valley
Lake


Lake Hemet


Lake Skinner


Lake
Riverside


Little
Lake


Vail Lake


San
Jacinto
River San


Jacinto
River


City of
Palm


Springs


City of
Murrieta


City of
Menifee


City of
Temecula


City of Hemet


§̈¦215


ÄÄ243


ÄÄ371


§̈¦15


ÄÄ79


ÄÄ74


BOUNDARY OF THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY NATIONAL WILDLIFE REFUGE - SEPTEMBER 11, 2018
Approximate Boundary Limits of Refuge
Criteria Cell
RCA MSHCP Conserved Land
Public/Quasi-Public Conserved Land
RCA Conservation Easement
WRC Non RCA Conservation Easement
City Boundary
Waterbody
Highway


I0 2 4
Miles


Western Riverside County


NOTE: REFUGE IS FORMED WITHIN CRITERIA CELLS.


HURKEY
CREEK


MC CALL
PARK


SAN BERNARDINO
NATIONAL FOREST


ANZA-BORREGO 
DESERT


STATE PARK


CLEVELAND
NATIONAL FOREST


BAUTISTA 
CREEK


CHANNEL


SW RIVERSIDE
MULTI-SPECIES


RESERVE


SALT CREEK
CHANNEL


SANTA MARGARITA
ECOLOGICAL


RESERVE







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.11 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Kamran Saber, Senior Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of Public Improvements of Tract 31353  


(Project No. 11-0099) by Meritage Homes of California, Inc. 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 
31353, MERITAGE HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC. AND AUTHORIZING THE 


CITY ENGINEER TO PROCESS A NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH THE 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The County Board of Supervisors approved the final map for Tract 31353 and 
executed a Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA) with the original owner, 
Rancho Vista II, LLC, on April 4, 2006. On March 12, 2012 the County Board of 
Supervisors approved new owner agreements for Tract 31353 with Meritage 
Homes of California, Inc. The County of Riverside is currently holding bonds as a 
security for the completion of the public improvements for TR 31353. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 


The Developer has completed the required public improvements and the City’s 
Public Works Department has completed the inspections of the public 
improvements. Staff is recommending that the improvements be accepted at this 
time. 
 
Typically, the City is the holder of bonds and securities and would normally release 
the bonds upon acceptance of the improvements. The City would also typically file 
a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder. However, because the County 
of Riverside is the holder of bonds for this project, upon acceptance, the City will 
process a Notice of Completion (NOC) with the County of Riverside and inform the 
County that it is acceptable to the City to release the bonds held for the public 







improvements. The City will request that the County maintain 10% of the bonds for 
a period of one year, as a warranty security. After a period of 365 from Council 
Acceptance, staff will notify the County that the remaining 10% warranty may be 
released, provided that all warranty issues have been satisfied. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The City will be responsible to maintain the public improvements built by Tract 
31353. Costs associated with maintenance will be paid from the Highway User Tax 
(Gas Tax). 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution Accepting Public Improvement for Tract 31353 


A. Site Location Map for Tract 31353 
 
 
  







RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS FOR 


TRACT 31353, MERITAGE HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC. AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ENGINEER TO PROCESS A NOTICE OF 


COMPLETION WITH THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 


WHEREAS, Rancho Vista II Ventures, LLC proposed development of Tract 
31353 which included, in part, the construction of public improvements; and 


WHEREAS, on April 4, 2006, the Riverside County Board of Supervisors 
approved the final map for Tract 31353 and accepted offers of dedication made on 
the final map for public road and public utility purposes, and as part of the County 
maintained road system, subject to improvements in accordance with County 
standards; and 


WHEREAS, on March 12, 2012, the Riverside County Board of Supervisors 
approved new owner agreements for Tract 31353 with Meritage Homes of 
California, Inc.; and 


WHEREAS, on July 1, 2008, the City of Wildomar incorporated and Tract 
31353 and the aforementioned dedications and public improvements are now 
located in the City of Wildomar; and 


WHEREAS, Meritage Homes of California, Inc. completed the public 
improvements and the City is ready to accept the improvements into the City 
maintained road system; and 


WHEREAS, the County of Riverside is still holding securities for the public 
improvements of Tract 31353; 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED 
by the Wildomar City Council, in regular session assembled on August 12, 2020, 
the following: 


 
1. The City Council accepts the completed required public improvements 


within Tract 31353 and as part of the City maintained road system; and 
2. The City Engineer is authorized to sign the County of Riverside’s Notice 


of Completion for Tract 31353 which will indicate to the County that the City has 
accepted the project as complete and that it is acceptable to the City if the County 
releases the securities held for the public improvements, provided that 10% of the 
bond is held for one year as a warranty. 


 
 







PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 12th August, 2020  
       
 
       ________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 


APPROVED AS TO FORM:      
 
 


_______________________      
Tom D. Jex       
City Attorney  
 
ATTEST: 


 
_______________________  
Janet Morales 
Acting City Clerk 


  







 
ATTACHMENT A 


(Site Location Map for Tract 31353) 
 
 


   
 


Aerial Image of Tract 31353 (highlighted) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Tract 31353 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.12 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: James R. Riley, Administrative Services Director  
 
SUBJECT: Homeless Services Contract-Social Work Action Group (SWAG) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to execute a 
contract with Social Work Action Group (SWAG) to provide homeless services to the City 
of Wildomar for the fiscal year 2020-21. 
. 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
In October 2018, the City contracted with SWAG to facilitate and lead the overall scope 
of homeless services for the City of Wildomar.  They have provided much needed services 
to the City and have worked successfully with the City’s Law Enforcement staff and other 
departments within the City.  
 
After the passage of the sales tax measure, Measure AA, funding was made available for 
additional homeless services.  The approval of this new contract agreement with SWAG 
will provide for thirty-two hours (32) per week of homeless services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The contract is for $102,000 for fiscal year 2020-21. The funds for fiscal year 2020-21 are 
included in the amended 2020-2021 budget for the Measure AA fund. 
 
Submitted by:       Approved by: 
James R. Riley       Gary Nordquist    
Administrative Services Director     City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


1. Agreement for Homeless Services Between City and SWAG. 


 







RIV #4813-4347-4199 v1  
 
 -1- 


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation 


 


and 


SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 


 
a    California Non-Profit







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 1 -  


 


 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 


AND 
SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 


 
 


This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ day of 
August, 2020 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
Social Work Action Group, a California Non-Profit (“Service Provider”).  City and Service 
Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. City has sought, by direct negotiations and proposal, the performance of the 


services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Service Provider, following submission of a proposal for the performance of 
the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement, was 
selected by the City to perform those services. 


C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to 
enter into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 


D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for one-year commencing on July 1, 2020.  


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 2 -  


 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The 
City, in its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this 
Agreement and may instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay 
Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed one hundred two thousand dollars ($102,000), unless 
additional compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 
“Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. In 
accordance with California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the Not to Exceed 
Amount exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), this Agreement and the 
Service Provider's books and records related to this Agreement shall be subject to the 
examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit 
of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 


(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all 
work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall 
detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Service Provider contracts.  Sub-Service Provider charges 
shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and 
supplies.   If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment 
of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a lump sum), 
the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task performed 
and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  City shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to determine whether the work 
performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be 
approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City 
to Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 3 -  


 


Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and 
undisputed invoice. 


(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  City shall reject or finally 
accept Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City.  City shall 
reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be 
deemed to have been accepted.  City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work 
except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  
Acceptance of any of Service Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, Section 16 
“Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by City without the permission of the Service Provider.  Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all 
such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement 
any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, 
notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Service Provider’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of 
this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Service Provider in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may 
be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Service 
Provider.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider 
shall turn over to City all such Final Work Product if paid for by the City.  This provision 
specifically excludes Service Providers’ work notes and drafts, which are owned by 
Service Provider, not City. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 4 -  


 


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service 
Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 
years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copies of 
such documents or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and 
copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed 
upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Service Provider shall have no 
authority to bind City in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any 
kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority 
is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing 
by City. 


(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees 
or agents of City, shall have control over the conduct of Service Provider or any of Service 
Provider’s officers, employees, or agents except as set forth in this Agreement.  Service 
Provider shall not at any time or in any manner represent that Service Provider or any of 
Service Provider’s officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officials, officers, 
employees or agents of City. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 5 -  


 


(c) Neither Service Provider , nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees 
or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which 
may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly waives any claim 
Service Provider may have to any such rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 
and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement 
in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Service Provider shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, 
at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged 
in providing services similar to the Services required of Service Provider under this 
Agreement.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Service Provider’s work under 
this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific standard of 
performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall prevail over the 
general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 
of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to 
comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage 
laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the 
following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code 
or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, 
or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under 
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, “construction" 
includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction 
including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 6 -  


 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, 
and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  
Should Service Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the 
Services, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use 
of unauthorized aliens, Service Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the 
cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 
firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s 
performance of the Services.  Service Provider further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an 
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City 
Manager. Service Provider agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the 
appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date 
of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is 
unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future position of City 
on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the 
completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be 
considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall not 
release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than 
City without prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required 
by law. 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the 
City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 
depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 
performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 7 -  


 


considered "voluntary" provided Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena.  


(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, 
then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 
any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result 
of Service Provider’s conduct. 


Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding 
this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Service Provider or be present at any deposition, hearing or 
similar proceeding.  Service Provider agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide 
City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Service Provider.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. Service Provider shall 
not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the 
disclosure of a trade secret that is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local 
government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a 
suspected violation of law or for the disclosure of a trade secret that is made in a complaint 
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless 
City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against any and all liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and 
costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees) arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any negligent or 
wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which 
Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees 
or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services under 
this Agreement.  


(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service 
Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its 
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, 
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 8 -  


 


expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any 
way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Service 
Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including 
but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to 
obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this 
section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming 
the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event Service Provider fails to 
obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees 
to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section.  Failure of City to monitor 
compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in 
no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend 
City as set forth herein is binding on the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 
occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City 
or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.   


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 
term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made 
a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to 
form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of 
required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under 
this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Service Provider’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 20 
“Termination of Agreement.”  City acknowledges, however, that Service Provider, in the 
performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 
continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 9 -  


 


Services.  Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and 
sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such 
performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such 
notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 
returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed 
and expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 
“Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, 
the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider 
for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the City may give notice to 
Service Provider of the default and the reasons for the default.  The notice shall include 
the timeframe in which Service Provider may cure the default.  This timeframe is 
presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 
circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Service Provider is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on 
the invoices.  In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or 
all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Service Provider does not 
cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under 
Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 
any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Service Provider.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 10 -  


 


fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term 
and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services 
shall be furnished to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue 
delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To City:   City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


 


To Service Provider: Social Work Action Group (SWAG) 
 23497 Hwy 74 102 
 Lake Elsinore, CA 92532 


 
 


Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 
by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement.  


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or 
her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue 
interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 11 -  


 


commit additional funds, consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s 
contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Service Provider and by the City.  The City Manager shall 
have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation 
under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting 
authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  The Parties agree that the requirement for 
written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The 
City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this 
Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other 
amendments shall be approved by the City Council. 


SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service 
Provider shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 
shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 12 -  


 


complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
Acting City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 







RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  - 13 -  


 


___________________________________ 


By:   By:   
 _________________________________   
 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ________________________ 


NOTE: SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


Social Work Action Group (SWAG) will work in conjunction with the City of 
Wildomar to facilitate and lead the overall scope of homeless services for the City of 
Wildomar. Up to 32 hours per week services will be provided with flexibility of schedule to 
meet the needs of the community with a term of services from July 1, 2020- June 30, 2021. 
SWAG will provide the following activities and services: 


• Assist with the organization and facilitation of the Point-in-Time Count for January 2021. 
• Respond to homeless service requests made to and by the City of Wildomar in a timely manner. 
• Homeless Street Outreach will be conducted in partnership with law enforcement to address 


specific “hot spot” areas as identified by SWAG, City of Wildomar staff and the Riverside 
Sherriff’s Department. 


• All individuals encountered will be included in the by-name specifically for the City of 
Wildomar. 


• Individuals found living on the streets will be assessed and provided assistance to exit life on the 
streets, obtaining admittance and transportation to emergency shelter options, alcohol and drug 
treatment, connection to mental and physical health providers, etc. 


• Conduct Riverside County housing assessments (VI-SPDAT) to unsheltered homeless 
individuals and families and provide navigation services. 


• Provide strategic outreach services in partnership with City of Wildomar and Wildomar school 
district to identify individuals and families, who are homeless and at-risk of becoming homeless, 
and connect them to applicable services. 


• Facilitate community asset mapping for strategic coordination and alignment of community 
resources that serve at-risk/homeless population. 


• Assist with coordination and facilitation of the Homeless Outreach Community Coalition 
meetings. 


• Participate in city sponsored community events. 
• Participate in weekly Coordinated Entry Housing Navigation meetings to advocate and ensure 


clients are being linked to Riverside County Continuum of Care housing resources. 
• Connect unsheltered homeless population to appropriate housing solutions throughout 


Riverside County. 
• SWAG will assist in developing informational content, which will include material for the 


regional anti-panhandling campaign and disseminate it throughout the community. The 
campaign will encourage stakeholders, faith-based groups, community groups, businesses, and 
concerned residents to discourage well-intended activities that enable the chronically homeless 
to remain on the streets and focus their efforts on long-term solutions. 


• SWAG will coordinate a series of lectures open and available to the public. 
• Provide support to the City of Wildomar through trainings, presentations and sharing updates 


related to trends in regional homeless efforts. 
• A SWAG Report Card will be provided to community members to provide feedback and input. 
• Data collection of key activities and results, community partners/businesses engaged will be 


reported to the City of Wildomar on a monthly and quarterly basis. 
• Attend and participate in City Council meetings, as requested. 


 
 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
 


 


Measurable Outcomes 


Unsheltered Homeless Individuals/Families  
• Reduce the homeless population by a minimum of 35% of the approximate 13 individuals 


counted (based on 2018 Point-In-Time Count) which equals 5 individuals. 
 


At-risk of becoming Homeless Individuals/Families  
• 100% of at-risk individuals and families who are contacted/ located by SWAG will be tracked 


and connected to mainstream benefits and housing prevention resources. 
 


Community Outreach  
• Outreach to businesses with an emphasis on educated them on homeless services. SWAG will 


generate a tracking log of all businesses encountered and provide information to the City of 
Wildomar. 


• Outreach to 100% of faith-based organizations as identified by the City of Wildomar and 
community asset strategic mapping activities. 


 


* SWAG is actively and concurrently working to secure a partnership with a local 
university to serve as an intermediary to ensure program success as in a “Pay for 
Success” program. 


 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
  


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
Task Cost Estimate 


1. Outreach Activities  
1.1 Staff time, mileage, etc. $99,400 


2. Direct Client Costs  
2.1 Greyhound Bus Ticket, RTA bus pass, Basic Needs $2,600 


(water, food, socks, deodorant, tooth brush/ paste, etc.) 
Total $102,000 


  







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
  


 
EXHIBIT "C" 
INSURANCE 


 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  Service Provider shall provide and maintain 
insurance, acceptable to the City, in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Agreement, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the Services by Service Provider, its agents, 
representatives or employees.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 
Best's rating of no less than A:VII.   
 
 Service Provider shall provide the following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad 
as: 
 
   (1) Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office form 
Commercial General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0001). 
 
   (2) Automobile.  Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 
(Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile Liability, including code 1 "any auto" and endorsement 
CA 0025, or equivalent forms subject to the written approval of the City. 
 
   (3) Workers’ Compensation.  Workers' Compensation insurance 
as required by the Labor Code of State of California covering all persons providing 
Services on behalf of the Service Provider and all risks to such persons under this 
Agreement. 
 
   (4) Professional Liability.  Professional liability insurance 
appropriate to the Service Provider’s profession.  This coverage may be written on a 
“claims made” basis, and must include coverage for contractual liability.  The professional 
liability insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims 
based upon, arising out of or related to Services performed under this Agreement.  The 
insurance must be maintained for at least three (3) consecutive years following the 
completion of Service Provider’s services or the termination of this Agreement.  During 
this additional three (3) year period, Service Provider shall annually and upon request of 
the City submit written evidence of this continuous coverage. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Service Provider shall maintain limits 
of insurance no less than: 
 
   (1) Commercial General Liability.  $1,000,000 general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 
 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
  


   (2) Automobile.  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.  A combined single limit policy with aggregate limits in an amount of 
not less than $2,000,000 shall be considered equivalent to the said required minimum 
limits set forth above.   
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation.  Workers' Compensation as required 
by the Labor Code of the State of California of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
   (4) Professional Liability.  $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Insurance policies required by this Agreement shall 
contain the following provisions: 
 
  1. All Policies.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall 
be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by the 
insurer or either Party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 30 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
City. 
 
  2. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages. 
 
   (1) City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, and employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as 
respects:  liability arising out of activities Service Provider performs; products and 
completed operations of Service Provider; premises owned, occupied or used by Service 
Provider; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Service Provider.  The 
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City, 
and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, or employees.   
 
   (2) Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance with respect to City, and its respective elected and appointed, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, 
and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers, shall 
apply in excess of, and not contribute with, Service Provider’s insurance. 
 
   (3) Service Provider’s insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of 
the insurer's liability. 
 
   (4) Any failure to comply with the reporting or other provisions of 
the insurance policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage 
provided to City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers. 
 







 


RIV #4829-3292-6043 v1  
  


  3. Workers' Compensation Coverage.  Unless the City Manager 
otherwise agrees in writing, the insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation 
against City, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees and 
agents for losses arising from work performed by Service Provider. 
 
 C. Other Requirements.  Service Provider agrees to deposit with City, at or 
before the effective date of this Agreement, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy 
City that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City may 
require that Service Provider furnish City with copies of original endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this Exhibit “C”.  The certificates and endorsements are to be signed 
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  City reserves the 
right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 
  1. Service Provider shall furnish certificates and endorsements from 
each sub-contractor identical to those Service Provider provides. 
 
  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by City.  At the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or the Service Provider shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, defense expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 
not be construed to limit Service Provider’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement. 
 
 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – PLANNING COMMISSION 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


 


TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03: 


City Council review of an amendment to Chapter 17.204 regulating 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) in residential zones. 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends the City Council Introduce and approve the first 
reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A STATUTORY 
EXEMPTION FROM CEQA REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 
21080.17 OF THE PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE, AND 
APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2020-03 
AMENDING CHAPTER 17.204 OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS 


BACKGROUND: 
Since 2017, the California State Legislature has made a number changes to the state 
regulations regarding granny flats/ second units, which are now referred to as “accessory 
dwelling units.”  This has been done in an effort to increase housing opportunities  and to 
create infill-development that can be affordable and will offer important housing choices 
within existing neighborhoods.  
 
The most recent state update is reflected in AB 881, AB 68 and SB 13 (Sections 65852.2 
and 65852.22 of the Government Code) which became effective January 1, 2020.  While 
staff is just getting the code amendment to the Commission and Council for review, we 
have been implementing these state regulations with each accessory dwelling unit that 
has been submitted since January 1, 2020 (around 3 -4 requests).  The new state laws 
provided that local agencies must follow the state statutes regarding ADU’s until a 
compliant local ordinance is adopted. 
  







Planning Commission Review/Action: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed ADU code amendment at its July 15, 
2020 Commission meeting.  Their review focused on the changes being mandated by the 
new state legislation that went into effect on January 1, 2020.  There were no public 
speakers either for or against the proposed code amendment. The Commission 
requested clarification if the City had a choice in adopting these new regulations.  Staff 
responded that the new state legislation is mandatory.  Based on this, the Planning 
Commission voted 5 – 0 to adopt PC Resolution No. 2020-19 recommending City Council 
approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03. 


DISCUSSION: 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03 will repeal and replace in its entirety the 
existing provisions of Chapter 17.204 of the WMC.  A copy of the “strike-out” version of 
the existing code section is provided for Commission review to see what sections are 
bring deleted and replaced (Attachment B).  A copy of the clean/proposed version is 
provided in the Council Ordinance (Attachment A). 
 
The more significant changes to the city’s current accessory dwelling unit ordinance 
resulting from the new state law is summarized below: 
 


1) Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) are now permitted in all single-family and 
multi-family residential zones if on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family 
residence. 
 


2) Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADU’s) are now permitted in all residential 
zones with its own special regulations. 


 
3) Accessory dwelling units may be attached to, or located within a proposed or 


existing primary dwelling, including conversion of attached garages, storage 
areas or similar uses. 


 
4) Where an attached accessory dwelling unit is proposed for an existing primary 


dwelling unit, the total floor area of the attached accessory dwelling unit shall not 
exceed 50% of the existing primary dwelling.  


 
5) If a garage or covered carport is demolished in conjunction with the construction 


of an accessory dwelling unit, no replacement off-street parking is required to be 
provided for those spaces. 


 
6) The proposed accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the City’s development 


impact fees for single-family residential units if it is 750 square feet or larger, and 
shall be charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary 
dwelling unit.   


 
7) An attached accessory dwelling unit shall have an independent exterior access 


separate from the primary dwelling. 







8) A lot with a junior accessory dwelling unit must be owner-occupied.  The owner 
may live in either the junior accessory dwelling unit or the primary residence.  The 
junior accessory dwelling unit cannot exceed 500 square feet in size. 


 
9) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen that includes 


cooking facilities with appliances and a food preparation counter and storage 
cabinets that are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory 
dwelling unit.  


 
10) The provision of additional off-street parking is not required for a junior accessory 


dwelling unit.  
 


11) One attached accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot is 
allowed.  One detached accessory dwelling unit and junior accessory dwelling 
unit per lot is allowed. The conversion of an existing accessory structure to an 
ADU is considered an “attached accessory dwelling unit” for the purposes of this 
limitation..  


 
12) Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily 


dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited 
to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if 
each unit complies with state building standards for dwellings, provided that the 
total number of accessory dwelling units permitted by this paragraph does not 
exceed 25% of the existing multifamily dwelling units.  


 
Staff believes the proposed amendment is consistent with the newly mandated standards 
being imposed by the State.  The ordinance has been reviewed thoroughly by the City 
Attorney’s office to confirm this.  Staff is recommending support of this code amendment. 


ENVIRONMENTAL / CEQA: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2020-03.  In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), the adoption of this Ordinance 
is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.17, 
which provides that CEQA does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city to 
implement the provisions of Government Code section 65852.2. 
 
As a result, staff is recommending the Planning Commission make a determination that 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03 has no potential to negatively impact the 
environment, and recommend to the City Council adoption of this CEQA exemption.  
 
  







FINDING OF FACT  –  ZOA NO. 2020-03: 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Planning Commission can make the following finding in support of a recommendation to 
the City Council for approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence: The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General 
Plan and Zoning Ordinance in that the proposed amendment establishes procedural 
requirements for permitting Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) in residential zones in 
compliance with Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 of the Government Code.  ADU’s 
are defined as a single family residential use which is allowed in residential zones 
and will comply with the development standards set forth herein. Further, 
construction of an ADU will meet many of the goals and polices of the Housing 
Element as it provides for affordable rental housing alternatives, and will not impact 
the public health, safety and general welfare of the residents of Wildomar.  


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with Chapter 17.04 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the Planning 
Department on July 31, 2020, published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the public hearing to be 
held by the Planning Commission on July 15, 2020 to discuss Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2020-03.  As of the date of this report, staff has not received any public 
comments either for or against the proposed amendment. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Council Ordinance 
B. Strikeout Version of Existing Chapter 17.204 
 
 
  







ATTACHMENT A 


City Council Ordinance for ZOA 2020-03 


  







ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A STATUTORY 
EXEMPTION FROM CEQA REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 
21080.17 OF THE PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE, AND 
APPROVING ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 
202020-03 AMENDING CHAPTER 17.204 OF THE WILDOMAR 
MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO ACCESSORY 
DWELLING UNITS 


WHEREAS, Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 of the Government Code, as 
amended by AB 881, AB 68 and SB 13, effective January 1, 2020, nullify local ordinances 
regulating accessory dwelling unit (“ADU”) construction if such ordinances do not comply 
with its provisions; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar desires to repeal and replace 
Chapter 17.204 with an ordinance that complies with Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 of 
the Government Code in order to retain local control over ADU construction; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the City Council has the authority to take action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 
2020-03; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a noticed public hearing on July 15, 
2020 for Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03, and adopted PC Resolution No. 
2020-19 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 
2020-03; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with the Wildomar Municipal Code, the Planning 
Department, on July 31, 2020, published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the City Council public 
hearing set for August 12, 2020 regarding Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03; 
and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code, the City Council 
conducted a duly noticed public hearing on August 12, 2020, at which time interested 
persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2020-03, and at which time the City Council received public testimony 
concerning Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03.  
  







THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  
The City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby find that the above 


referenced recitals are true and correct and material to the adoption of this Ordinance. 


SECTION 2.  CEQA DETERMINATION.   
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 


(Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), the adoption of this Ordinance is 
exempt from CEQA review pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.17, which 
provides that CEQA does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city to implement 
the provisions of Government Code section 65852.2.   


SECTION 3.  REQUIRED ZOA FINDING. 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 


City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, hereby makes the 
following finding for approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-03. 
 
B. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence: The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General 
Plan and Zoning Ordinance in that the proposed amendment establishes procedural 
requirements for permitting Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) in residential zones in 
compliance with Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 of the Government Code.  ADU’s 
are defined as a single family residential use which is allowed in residential zones 
and will comply with the development standards set forth herein.  Further, 
construction of an ADU will meet many of the goals and polices of the Housing 
Element as it provides for affordable rental housing alternatives, and will not impact 
the public health, safety and general welfare of the residents of Wildomar.  


SECTION 4.  ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT. 
Chapter 17.204 of the Wildomar Municipal Code (Accessory Dwelling Units) is 


hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“Chapter 17.204 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS  


17.204.010 Applicability. 
Accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.2), including 
junior accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.22), shall 
be a permitted use on all lots in single-family and multi-family residential zones, provided 
the accessory dwelling unit complies with the development standards of this chapter. 
Accessory dwelling units shall be constructed in compliance with the City’s single-family 
and multi-family residential objective design standards and guidelines.  Accessory 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_010&frames=on





dwelling units may be attached to, or located within a proposed or existing primary 
dwelling, including attached garages, storage areas or similar uses, (referred to herein as 
an “attached” accessory dwelling unit) or may be detached from the proposed or existing 
primary dwelling (referred to herein as a “detached” accessory dwelling unit).  Accessory 
dwelling units must be on the same lot as the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 


17.204.020 Building permit required for construction. 
An accessory dwelling unit shall not be constructed without first obtaining a building 
permit from the Building Official.  


17.204.030 Application. 
An application for an accessory dwelling unit permit shall be made in writing to the 
Building Official on forms provided by the Building Department, and shall be accompanied 
by a minor plot plan and filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code. The Building Official shall distribute the application and plot plan to the Planning 
and Engineering departments for review. The plot plan shall include the following 
information: 


A. Name and address of the applicant and the name and address of the property 
owner, if different.  If a junior accessory dwelling unit is proposed, evidence that 
the premises upon which the accessory dwelling unit is proposed is owner-
occupied shall also be provided.   


B. Assessor’s parcel number of premises upon which the accessory dwelling unit is 
proposed. 


C. Sufficient detail clearly describing the following: 


1. Physical dimensions of property; 


2. Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; 


3. Location and dimensions of all easements, wells, septic tanks, leach lines, 
existing seepage pits, drainage structures and utilities; 


4. Location, dimensions and names of all clear adjacent roads, whether public 
or private, showing the location of the street centerline and all existing 
improvements such as sidewalks, curbs, gutters and curb cuts; 


5. Setbacks from all property lines; 


6. Methods of circulation, including ingress and egress, access, yards, drives, 
parking areas, landscaping, walls or fences; and 


7. Topography of the property. 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_020&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_030&frames=on





D. A description of walls, landscaping, architectural treatments and other methods 
which will be used to ensure that the accessory dwelling unit will be compatible 
with the neighborhood. 


E. A written statement as to whether the accessory dwelling unit shall be used for 
family members or for rental purposes. 


F. Such additional information as shall be required by the Building Official to make an 
appropriate determination regarding issuance or denial of the application. 


17.204.040  Development standards for Accessory Dwelling Units. 
Except as provided in Section 17.204.060, accessory dwelling units must comply with the 
following development standards: 


A. An accessory dwelling unit shall only be permitted in residential zones and on a lot 
with an existing or proposed single-family residence, and comply with the following 
setback standards: 


1. A minimum distance of 10 feet shall be maintained between an accessory 
dwelling unit and any other structure on the lot. 


2. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two (2) acres or 
smaller: 


a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


3. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two (2) acres or 
greater: 


a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


4. An existing garage or other accessory structure that is converted to an 
accessory dwelling unit or to a portion of an accessory dwelling unit is not 
subject to these setback requirements.  This shall also apply when the 
existing accessory structure is demolished an accessory dwelling unit is 
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as the 
demolished structure. 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_040&frames=on





B. The size of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall be a maximum of 1,200 
square feet in size. 


C.  Where an attached accessory dwelling unit is proposed for an existing primary 
dwelling unit, the total floor area of the attached accessory dwelling unit shall not 
exceed 50% of the existing primary dwelling. 


D. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the following parking standards 
regardless of the zone district: 


1. One off-street parking space per accessory dwelling unit or per bedroom, 
whichever is less, shall be provided in addition to any existing off-street 
parking. 


2. The parking space may match the existing parking surface of the principal 
dwelling unit. 


3. Off-street parking shall be provided in front of the accessory dwelling unit 
which may be in the rear yard setback area and/or through tandem parking, 
unless parking in these areas is not feasible based upon specific site, 
topographical or fire safety conditions. 


4. If a garage or covered carport is demolished in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit, or is converted to an accessory 
dwelling unit, no replacement off-street parking is required to be provided 
for those spaces. 


5. The parking standards in subsections E.1 through 4 above shall not apply 
in any of the following instances: 


a. The accessory dwelling unit is located within 1/2 mile of public transit; 


b. The accessory dwelling unit is located within a state or locally 
designated historic district; 


c. The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary 
residence or an existing accessory structure; 


d. When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the 
occupant of the accessory dwelling unit; or 


e. When there is a “car-share vehicle” located within one block of the 
accessory dwelling unit. 


E. The proposed accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the City’s development 
impact fees for single-family residential units if it is 750 square feet or larger.  
However, development impact fees for accessory dwelling units that are 750 







square feet or larger shall be charged proportionately in relation to the square 
footage of the primary dwelling unit. 


F. The architectural design of the accessory dwelling unit shall match the design of 
the primary dwelling unit, including building materials, color and roofing material. 


G. The accessory dwelling unit may be rented separate from the primary residence, 
but shall not be sold or otherwise conveyed as a separate unit from the primary 
residence. 


H. The lot on which an accessory dwelling unit is located shall have an existing or 
proposed one-family detached dwelling unit on the premises. 


I. An attached accessory dwelling unit shall have an independent exterior access 
separate from the primary dwelling unit, and cannot be accessed from the interior 
of the primary dwelling unit. 
 


J. A detached accessory dwelling unit may be located in front of the primary dwelling 
unit if it is compatible with the neighborhood, provided it maintains a minimum front 
setback of 20 feet, and only where the placement of the accessory dwelling unit at 
the rear or side portion of the lot would be impractical due to the location of the of 
the primary dwelling unit or topography of the site.  
 


K. Any accessory dwelling unit placed more than 150 feet from a public right-of-way 
shall be required to provide “all-weather access” for emergency vehicles as 
required by the Riverside County Fire Department. 
 


L. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the health requirements for water and 
sewerage as required by the appropriate agency. An applicant shall also be 
required to provide verification from the appropriate water and sewerage district 
that their requirements have been complied with prior to the issuance of building 
permits. 
 


M. An applicant for an accessory dwelling unit shall be required to provide a will-serve 
letter from the Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) stating that the 
appropriate water and sewerage availability and capacity exists for the unit.  


17.204.050  Supplemental development standards for Junior Accessory Dwelling Units. 
Junior accessory dwelling units must comply with the following standards in addition to 
the standards in Section 17.204.040.  To the extent there is any conflict between the 
standards in Section 17.204.040 and the standards in this Section, this Section shall take 
precedence. 


A. One (1) junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted per lot not to exceed 500 
square feet in size.  The lot must be zoned for single-family residences and a 
single-family residence must exist or be proposed for the lot. 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_050&frames=on





B. A lot with a junior accessory dwelling unit must be owner-occupied.  The owner 
may live in either the junior accessory dwelling unit or the primary residence.  This 
requirement shall not apply if the owner is another governmental agency, a land 
trust, or a housing corporation. 


C. A deed restriction that runs with the land must be recorded and a copy filed with 
the City that includes a prohibition on the sale of the junior accessory dwelling unit 
separate from the sale of the primary residence, that this prohibition may be 
enforced against future purchasers, and that restricts the size of the junior 
accessory dwelling unit to no more than 500 square feet. 


D. A junior accessory dwelling unit must be constructed within the walls of a proposed 
or existing single-family residence.   


E. A junior accessory dwelling unit must have an independent exterior access 
separate from the main entrance to the proposed or existing primary dwelling unit, 
and cannot be accessed from the interior of the primary dwelling unit. 


F. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen that includes 
cooking facilities with appliances and a food preparation counter and storage 
cabinets that are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory 
dwelling unit. 


G. The provision of additional off-street parking is not required for a junior accessory 
dwelling unit. 


17.204.060  Exceptions 
The City shall ministerially approve an application for a building permit for an accessory 
dwelling unit that meets any of the following criteria outlined below without requiring an 
accessory dwelling unit permit or applying the standards contained in Section 17.204.040. 


A. One accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot that is within 
the proposed space of a single-family dwelling or existing space of a single-family 
dwelling or existing accessory structure if the following standards are met: 


1. For units proposed with an existing dwelling or accessory structure, there is 
no expansion of the physical dimensions of the existing structure, except 
that an expansion of up to 150 square feet may be included solely for the 
purpose of accommodating ingress and egress. 


2. The accessory dwelling unit has independent exterior access. 


3. The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 


4. For junior accessory dwelling units, it complies with the requirements of 
Section 17.204.050. 







B. One detached new construction accessory dwelling unit per lot with a proposed or 
existing single-family dwelling if the following standards are met: 


1. The side and rear setbacks are at least 4 feet. 


2. The total square footage of the accessory dwelling unit is no more than 800 
square feet. 


3. The height of the unit is no more than 16 feet. 


4. The existing or proposed single-family dwelling on the lot may contain a 
junior accessory dwelling unit that complies with paragraph A of this 
Section, but it may not contain an accessory dwelling unit that does not 
qualify as a junior accessory dwelling unit. 


C. Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling 
structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage 
rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each unit 
complies with state building standards for dwellings, provided that the total number 
of accessory dwelling units permitted by this paragraph does not exceed 25% of 
the existing multifamily dwelling units. 


D. Two detached accessory dwelling units that are located on a lot that has an existing 
multifamily dwelling, provided that the units are no higher than 16 feet and meet a 
4 foot rear and side yard setback.  


17.204.070 Prohibited areas. 
An accessory dwelling unit shall not be permitted in those areas of the City which have 
significant problems with regard to water availability or water quality, sewage disposal or 
other public health or safety concerns. The prohibited areas include, but are not limited 
to, those areas where a development moratorium has been imposed, including a 
moratorium for water or sewer, whether imposed by the City or another public agency 
with the authority to impose a development moratorium.  


17.204.080  Notice of decision. 
Upon acceptance of an accessory dwelling unit application for a lot where there is an 
existing single-family or multifamily dwelling, the Building Official shall review, approve an 
application, and issue a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit within 60 days after 
receiving a complete application provided all applicable requirements of this chapter have 
been met. The Building Official may deny the application for an accessory dwelling unit 
at the end of 60 days if the applicant has not met the requirements of this chapter. An 
application for an accessory dwelling unit permit and/or a building permit for an accessory 
dwelling unit where there is no existing single-family dwelling shall be approved or denied 
concurrently with the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling. 


  



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_070&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_080&frames=on





17.204.090  Appeal. 
An applicant or any interested person may appeal the decision of the Building Official by 
the following procedure: 


A. Initial Appeal. Within 10 calendar days of a decision by the Building Official to 
approve or deny an accessory dwelling plot plan, the applicant, or affected property 
owner, may file an appeal in writing on the form provided by the Planning 
Department and which shall be accompanied by a filing fee as set forth in Chapter 
3.44. Upon receipt of a completed appeal, the Building Official shall set the matter 
for hearing and mail notice thereof to the applicant and the appellant. Such appeals 
shall be heard by the Planning Commission. 


B. Hearing on Appeals to Planning Commission. Within 10 calendar days of a 
decision by the Planning Commission, the applicant, or affected property owner, 
may file an appeal in writing of the Planning Commission’s decision to the City 
Council, on the form provided by the Planning Department and which shall be 
accompanied by a filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44. 


C. Hearings on Appeals to the City Council. Upon receipt of a completed appeal, the 
City Clerk shall set the matter for hearing before the City Council not less than five 
days nor more than 30 days thereafter, and shall give written notice of the hearing 
to the appellant and the Planning Director. The City Council shall render its 
decision within 30 days following the close of the hearing on the appeal.  


17.204.100 Revocation of permit. 
Any accessory dwelling unit permit granted may be revoked at any time upon the findings 
and procedures outlined in Chapter 17.220 of this Code.”  


SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY 
If any Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this ordinance, and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.” 


SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City 


Council. 
  



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_090&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_100&frames=on





SECTION 8.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 


 INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 12th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg  
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      Acting City Clerk 
 
 







ATTACHMENT B 


Strike-Out Version of Section 17.204 


(Accessory Dwelling Units)  







STRIKE-OUT VERSION 
Blue Font/Italic text are additions and Red font text are strike-outs/deletions 


Chapter 17.204 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS  


17.204.010 Applicability. 


Accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.2), including 
junior accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.22), shall 
be a permitted use on all lots in the R-R, R-A, R-T and R-1 in single-family and multi-
family residential zones, provided the accessory dwelling unit complies with the 
development standards of this chapter. Accessory dwelling units shall be constructed in 
compliance with the City’s residential design guidelines.  Accessory dwelling units may 
be attached to, or located within a proposed or existing primary dwelling, including 
attached garages, storage areas or similar uses, (referred to herein as an “attached” 
accessory dwelling unit) or may be detached from the proposed or existing primary 
dwelling (referred to herein as a “detached” accessory dwelling unit).  Accessory dwelling 
units must be on the same lot as the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 


17.204.020 Building permit required for construction. 


An accessory dwelling unit shall not be constructed without first obtaining a building 
permit from the Building Official.  


17.204.030 Application. 


An application for an accessory dwelling unit permit shall be made in writing to the 
Building Official on forms provided by the Building Department, and shall be accompanied 
by a minor plot plan and filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code. The Building Official shall distribute the application and plot plan to the Planning 
and Engineering departments for review. The plot plan shall include the following 
information: 


A. Name and address of the applicant and the name and address of the property 
owner, if different. If a junior accessory dwelling unit is proposed, evidence that the 
applicant resides at and is the owner the premises upon which the accessory dwelling 
unit is proposed is owner-occupied shall also be provided.   


B. Assessor’s parcel number of premises upon which the accessory dwelling unit is 
proposed. 


C. Sufficient detail clearly describing the following: 


1. Physical dimensions of property; 


2. Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_010&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_020&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_030&frames=on





3. Location and dimensions of all easements, wells, septic tanks, leach lines, existing 
seepage pits, drainage structures and utilities; 


4. Location, dimensions and names of all clear adjacent roads, whether public or 
private, showing the location of the street centerline and all existing improvements such 
as sidewalks, curbs, gutters and curb cuts; 


5. Setbacks from all property lines; 


6. Methods of circulation, including ingress and egress, access, yards, drives, parking 
areas, landscaping, walls or fences; and 


7. Topography of the property. 


D. A description of walls, landscaping, architectural treatments and other methods 
which will be used to ensure that the accessory dwelling unit will be compatible with the 
neighborhood. 


E. A written statement as to whether the accessory dwelling unit shall be used for 
family members or for rental purposes. 


F. Such additional information as shall be required by the Building Official to make an 
appropriate determination regarding issuance or denial of the application. 


17.204.040 Development standards for detached accessory dwelling units and 
additions to accessory dwelling units. 


Except as provided in Section 17.204.060, accessory dwelling units that are detached 
from the primary dwelling unit, or created through an addition to the primary dwelling units 
or existing garage must comply with the following development standards: 


A. An accessory dwelling unit shall only be permitted in the R-R, R-A R-T and R-1 
residential zones and on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family residence, and 
comply with the following setback standards: 


1. A minimum distance of 10 feet shall be maintained between an accessory dwelling 
unit and any other structure on the lot. 


2. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two acres or smaller: 


a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 5 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


3. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two acres or greater: 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_040&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_040&frames=on





a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 5 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


4. An existing garage or other accessory structure that is converted to an accessory 
dwelling unit or to a portion of an accessory dwelling unit is not subject to these setback 
requirements.  This shall also apply when the existing accessory structure is demolished 
an accessory dwelling unit is constructed in the same location and to the same 
dimensions as the demolished structure. 


B. The size of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall be a minimum of 750 square 
feet and a maximum of 1,200 square feet.  Where an attached accessory dwelling unit is 
proposed for an existing primary dwelling unit, the total floor area of the attached 
accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 50% of the existing primary dwelling.  


C. The maximum height requirements for an accessory dwelling unit shall comply with 
the height standards of the zone district the unit is located in. 


D. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the following parking standards 
regardless of the zone district: 


1. There shall be one One off-street parking space per accessory dwelling unit or per 
bedroom, whichever is less, shall be provided in addition to any existing off-street parking. 


2. The parking space may match the existing parking surface of the principal dwelling 
unit. 


3. Off-street parking shall be provided in front of the accessory dwelling unit which 
may be in the rear yard setback area and/or through tandem parking, unless parking in 
these areas is not feasible based upon specific site, topographical or fire safety 
conditions. 


4. If a garage or covered carport is demolished in conjunction with the construction 
of an accessory dwelling unit, or is converted to an accessory dwelling unit, those parking 
spaces shall be replaced on the same lot as the accessory dwelling unit in any 
configuration and comply with all applicable standards of the zone district no replacement 
off-street parking is required to be provided for those spaces. 


5. The parking standards in subsections (D)(1) through (4) shall not apply in any of 
the following instances: 


a. The accessory dwelling unit is located within 1/2 mile of public transit; 







b. The accessory dwelling unit is located within a state or locally designated historic 
district; 


c. The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary residence 
or an existing accessory structure; 


d. When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the 
accessory dwelling unit; or 


e. When there is a “car-share vehicle” located within one block of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 


E. The proposed accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the City’s development 
impact fees for single-family residential units if it is 750 square feet or larger.  
Development impact fees for accessory dwelling units 750 square feet or larger shall be 
charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. 


F. The architectural design of the accessory dwelling unit shall match the design of 
the primary dwelling unit, including building materials, color and roofing material. 


G. The accessory dwelling unit may be rented separate from the primary residence, 
but shall not be sold or otherwise conveyed as a separate unit from the primary residence. 


H. The lot on which an accessory dwelling unit is located shall have an existing or 
proposed one-family detached dwelling unit on the premises.  


I.  An attached accessory dwelling unit shall have an independent exterior access 
separate from the primary dwelling. 


J. A detached accessory dwelling unit may be located in front of the primary dwelling 
unit if it is compatible with the neighborhood, provided it maintains a minimum front 
setback of 20 feet, and only where the placement of the accessory dwelling unit at the 
rear or side portion of the lot would be impractical due to the location of the of the primary 
dwelling unit or topography of the site.  


K. Any accessory dwelling unit placed more than 150 feet from a public right-of-way 
shall be required to provide “all-weather access” for emergency vehicles as required by 
the Riverside County Fire Department. 


L. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the health requirements for water and 
sewerage as required by the appropriate agency. An applicant shall also be required to 
provide verification from the appropriate water and sewerage district that their 
requirements have been complied with prior to the issuance of building permits. 


M.  An accessory dwelling unit shall provide living, sleeping, eating, cooking and 
sanitation facilities on the same parcel as the primary dwelling unit  An applicant for an 
accessory dwelling unit shall be required to provide a will-serve letter from the Elsinore 







Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) stating that the appropriate water and sewerage 
availability and capacity exists for the unit.  


17.204.050 Supplemental development standards for attached junior accessory 
dwelling units. 


Junior accessory dwelling units must comply with the following standards in addition to 
the standards in Section 17.204.040.  To the extent there is any conflict between the 
standards in Section 17.204.040 and the standards in this Section, this Section shall 
control. 


A. One junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted per lot.  The lot must be zoned 
for single-family residences and a single-family residence must exist or be proposed for 
the lot. 


B. A lot with a junior accessory dwelling unit must be owner-occupied.  The owner 
may live in either the junior accessory dwelling unit or the primary residence.  This 
requirement  shall not apply if the owner is another governmental agency, a land trust, or 
a housing corporation. 


C. A deed restriction that runs with the land must be recorded and a copy filed with 
the City that includes a prohibition on the sale of the junior accessory dwelling unit 
separate from the sale of the primary residence, that this prohibition may be enforced 
against future purchasers, and that restricts the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit 
to no more than 500 square feet. 


D. A junior accessory dwelling unit must be constructed within the walls of a proposed 
or existing single-family residence.   


E. A junior accessory dwelling unit must have a separate entrance from the main 
entrance to the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 


F. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen that includes 
cooking facilities with appliances and a food preparation counter and storage cabinets 
that are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 


G. The provision of additional off-street parking is not required for a junior accessory 
dwelling unit. 


17.204.060  Exceptions Development standards for accessory dwelling units 
located within an existing single-family residence. 
The City shall ministerially approve an application for a building permit for an accessory 
dwelling unit that meets any of the following criteria outlined below without requiring an 
accessory dwelling unit permit or applying the standards contained in Section 17.204.040. 


A. One accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot that is within 
the proposed space of a single-family dwelling or existing space of a single-family 
dwelling or existing accessory structure if the following standards are met: 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_050&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_050&frames=on





1. For units proposed with an existing dwelling or accessory structure, there is no 
expansion of the physical dimensions of the existing structure, except that an expansion 
of up to 150 square feet may be included solely for the purpose of accommodating ingress 
and egress. 


2. The accessory dwelling unit has independent exterior access. 


3. The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 


4. For junior accessory dwelling units, it complies with the requirements of Section 
17.204.050. 


B. One detached new construction accessory dwelling unit per lot with a proposed or 
existing single-family dwelling if the following standards are met: 


1. The side and rear setbacks are at least 4 feet. 


2. The total square footage of the accessory dwelling unit is no more than 800 square 
feet. 


3. The height of the unit is no more than 16 feet. 


4. The existing or proposed single-family dwelling on the lot may contain a junior 
accessory dwelling unit that complies with paragraph A of this Section, but it may not 
contain an accessory dwelling unit that does not qualify as a junior accessory dwelling 
unit. 


C. Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling 
structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, 
boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each unit complies with 
state building standards for dwellings, provided that the total number of accessory 
dwelling units permitted by this paragraph does not exceed 25% of the existing multifamily 
dwelling units. 


D. Two detached accessory dwelling units that are located on a lot that has an existing 
multifamily dwelling, provided that the units are no higher than 16 feet and meet a 4 foot 
rear and side yard setback.  


17.204.070 Prohibited areas. 


An accessory dwelling unit shall not be permitted in those areas of the City which have 
significant problems with regard to water availability or water quality, sewage disposal or 
other public health or safety concerns. The prohibited areas include, but are not limited 
to, those areas where a development moratorium has been imposed, including a 
moratorium for water or sewer, whether imposed by the City or another public agency 
with the authority to impose a development moratorium.  


  



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_070&frames=on





17.204.080 Notice of decision. 


Upon acceptance of an accessory dwelling unit application for a lot where there is an 
existing single-family or multifamily dwelling, the Building Official shall review, approve an 
application, and issue a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit within 120 60 days 
after receiving a complete application provided all applicable requirements of this chapter 
have been met. The Building Official may deny the application for an accessory dwelling 
unit at the end of 120 60 days if the applicant has not met the requirements of this chapter. 
An application for an accessory dwelling unit permit and/or a building permit for an 
accessory dwelling unit where there is no existing single-family dwelling shall be approved 
or denied concurrently with the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling. 


17.204.090 Appeal. 


An applicant or any interested person may appeal the decision of the Building Official by 
the following procedure: 


A. Initial Appeal. Within 10 calendar days of a decision by the Building Official to 
approve or deny an accessory dwelling plot plan, the applicant, or affected property 
owner, may file an appeal in writing on the form provided by the Planning Department 
and which shall be accompanied by a filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44. Upon receipt 
of a completed appeal, the Building Official shall set the matter for hearing and mail notice 
thereof to the applicant and the appellant. Such appeals shall be heard by the Planning 
Commission. 


B. Hearing on Appeals to Planning Commission. Within 10 calendar days of a 
decision by the Planning Commission, the applicant, or affected property owner, may file 
an appeal in writing of the Planning Commission’s decision to the City Council, on the 
form provided by the Planning Department and which shall be accompanied by a filing 
fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44. 


C. Hearings on Appeals to the City Council. Upon receipt of a completed appeal, the 
City Clerk shall set the matter for hearing before the City Council not less than five days 
nor more than 30 days thereafter, and shall give written notice of the hearing to the 
appellant and the Planning Director. The City Council shall render its decision within 30 
days following the close of the hearing on the appeal.  


  


17.204.100 Revocation of permit. 


Any accessory dwelling unit permit granted may be revoked at any time upon the findings 
and procedures outlined in Chapter 17.220 of this Code.”  


 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_080&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_090&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_100&frames=on





ATTACHMENT B 


Strike-Out Version of Section 17.204 


(Accessory Dwelling Units)  







STRIKE-OUT VERSION 
Blue Font/Italic text are additions and Red font text are strike-outs/deletions 


Chapter 17.204 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS  


17.204.010 Applicability. 


Accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.2), including 
junior accessory dwelling units (as defined by Government Code Section 65852.22), shall 
be a permitted use on all lots in the R-R, R-A, R-T and R-1 in single-family and multi-
family residential zones, provided the accessory dwelling unit complies with the 
development standards of this chapter. Accessory dwelling units shall be constructed in 
compliance with the City’s residential design guidelines.  Accessory dwelling units may 
be attached to, or located within a proposed or existing primary dwelling, including 
attached garages, storage areas or similar uses, (referred to herein as an “attached” 
accessory dwelling unit) or may be detached from the proposed or existing primary 
dwelling (referred to herein as a “detached” accessory dwelling unit).  Accessory dwelling 
units must be on the same lot as the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 


17.204.020 Building permit required for construction. 


An accessory dwelling unit shall not be constructed without first obtaining a building 
permit from the Building Official.  


17.204.030 Application. 


An application for an accessory dwelling unit permit shall be made in writing to the 
Building Official on forms provided by the Building Department, and shall be accompanied 
by a minor plot plan and filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code. The Building Official shall distribute the application and plot plan to the Planning 
and Engineering departments for review. The plot plan shall include the following 
information: 


A. Name and address of the applicant and the name and address of the property 
owner, if different. If a junior accessory dwelling unit is proposed, evidence that the 
applicant resides at and is the owner the premises upon which the accessory dwelling 
unit is proposed is owner-occupied shall also be provided.   


B. Assessor’s parcel number of premises upon which the accessory dwelling unit is 
proposed. 


C. Sufficient detail clearly describing the following: 


1. Physical dimensions of property; 


2. Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_010&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_020&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_030&frames=on





3. Location and dimensions of all easements, wells, septic tanks, leach lines, existing 
seepage pits, drainage structures and utilities; 


4. Location, dimensions and names of all clear adjacent roads, whether public or 
private, showing the location of the street centerline and all existing improvements such 
as sidewalks, curbs, gutters and curb cuts; 


5. Setbacks from all property lines; 


6. Methods of circulation, including ingress and egress, access, yards, drives, parking 
areas, landscaping, walls or fences; and 


7. Topography of the property. 


D. A description of walls, landscaping, architectural treatments and other methods 
which will be used to ensure that the accessory dwelling unit will be compatible with the 
neighborhood. 


E. A written statement as to whether the accessory dwelling unit shall be used for 
family members or for rental purposes. 


F. Such additional information as shall be required by the Building Official to make an 
appropriate determination regarding issuance or denial of the application. 


17.204.040 Development standards for detached accessory dwelling units and 
additions to accessory dwelling units. 


Except as provided in Section 17.204.060, accessory dwelling units that are detached 
from the primary dwelling unit, or created through an addition to the primary dwelling units 
or existing garage must comply with the following development standards: 


A. An accessory dwelling unit shall only be permitted in the R-R, R-A R-T and R-1 
residential zones and on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family residence, and 
comply with the following setback standards: 


1. A minimum distance of 10 feet shall be maintained between an accessory dwelling 
unit and any other structure on the lot. 


2. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two acres or smaller: 


a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 5 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


3. The following minimum setbacks shall be met for lots two acres or greater: 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_040&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_040&frames=on





a. The minimum front yard setback shall be 20 feet. 


b. The minimum side yard setback shall be 5 4 feet. 


c. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 4 feet. 


d. The maximum building height shall be 25 feet. 


4. An existing garage or other accessory structure that is converted to an accessory 
dwelling unit or to a portion of an accessory dwelling unit is not subject to these setback 
requirements.  This shall also apply when the existing accessory structure is demolished 
an accessory dwelling unit is constructed in the same location and to the same 
dimensions as the demolished structure. 


B. The size of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall be a minimum of 750 square 
feet and a maximum of 1,200 square feet.  Where an attached accessory dwelling unit is 
proposed for an existing primary dwelling unit, the total floor area of the attached 
accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 50% of the existing primary dwelling.  


C. The maximum height requirements for an accessory dwelling unit shall comply with 
the height standards of the zone district the unit is located in. 


D. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the following parking standards 
regardless of the zone district: 


1. There shall be one One off-street parking space per accessory dwelling unit or per 
bedroom, whichever is less, shall be provided in addition to any existing off-street parking. 


2. The parking space may match the existing parking surface of the principal dwelling 
unit. 


3. Off-street parking shall be provided in front of the accessory dwelling unit which 
may be in the rear yard setback area and/or through tandem parking, unless parking in 
these areas is not feasible based upon specific site, topographical or fire safety 
conditions. 


4. If a garage or covered carport is demolished in conjunction with the construction 
of an accessory dwelling unit, or is converted to an accessory dwelling unit, those parking 
spaces shall be replaced on the same lot as the accessory dwelling unit in any 
configuration and comply with all applicable standards of the zone district no replacement 
off-street parking is required to be provided for those spaces. 


5. The parking standards in subsections (D)(1) through (4) shall not apply in any of 
the following instances: 


a. The accessory dwelling unit is located within 1/2 mile of public transit; 







b. The accessory dwelling unit is located within a state or locally designated historic 
district; 


c. The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary residence 
or an existing accessory structure; 


d. When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the 
accessory dwelling unit; or 


e. When there is a “car-share vehicle” located within one block of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 


E. The proposed accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the City’s development 
impact fees for single-family residential units if it is 750 square feet or larger.  
Development impact fees for accessory dwelling units 750 square feet or larger shall be 
charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. 


F. The architectural design of the accessory dwelling unit shall match the design of 
the primary dwelling unit, including building materials, color and roofing material. 


G. The accessory dwelling unit may be rented separate from the primary residence, 
but shall not be sold or otherwise conveyed as a separate unit from the primary residence. 


H. The lot on which an accessory dwelling unit is located shall have an existing or 
proposed one-family detached dwelling unit on the premises.  


I.  An attached accessory dwelling unit shall have an independent exterior access 
separate from the primary dwelling. 


J. A detached accessory dwelling unit may be located in front of the primary dwelling 
unit if it is compatible with the neighborhood, provided it maintains a minimum front 
setback of 20 feet, and only where the placement of the accessory dwelling unit at the 
rear or side portion of the lot would be impractical due to the location of the of the primary 
dwelling unit or topography of the site.  


K. Any accessory dwelling unit placed more than 150 feet from a public right-of-way 
shall be required to provide “all-weather access” for emergency vehicles as required by 
the Riverside County Fire Department. 


L. An accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the health requirements for water and 
sewerage as required by the appropriate agency. An applicant shall also be required to 
provide verification from the appropriate water and sewerage district that their 
requirements have been complied with prior to the issuance of building permits. 


M.  An accessory dwelling unit shall provide living, sleeping, eating, cooking and 
sanitation facilities on the same parcel as the primary dwelling unit  An applicant for an 
accessory dwelling unit shall be required to provide a will-serve letter from the Elsinore 







Valley Municipal Water District (EVMWD) stating that the appropriate water and sewerage 
availability and capacity exists for the unit.  


17.204.050 Supplemental development standards for attached junior accessory 
dwelling units. 


Junior accessory dwelling units must comply with the following standards in addition to 
the standards in Section 17.204.040.  To the extent there is any conflict between the 
standards in Section 17.204.040 and the standards in this Section, this Section shall 
control. 


A. One junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted per lot.  The lot must be zoned 
for single-family residences and a single-family residence must exist or be proposed for 
the lot. 


B. A lot with a junior accessory dwelling unit must be owner-occupied.  The owner 
may live in either the junior accessory dwelling unit or the primary residence.  This 
requirement  shall not apply if the owner is another governmental agency, a land trust, or 
a housing corporation. 


C. A deed restriction that runs with the land must be recorded and a copy filed with 
the City that includes a prohibition on the sale of the junior accessory dwelling unit 
separate from the sale of the primary residence, that this prohibition may be enforced 
against future purchasers, and that restricts the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit 
to no more than 500 square feet. 


D. A junior accessory dwelling unit must be constructed within the walls of a proposed 
or existing single-family residence.   


E. A junior accessory dwelling unit must have a separate entrance from the main 
entrance to the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 


F. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen that includes 
cooking facilities with appliances and a food preparation counter and storage cabinets 
that are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 


G. The provision of additional off-street parking is not required for a junior accessory 
dwelling unit. 


17.204.060  Exceptions Development standards for accessory dwelling units 
located within an existing single-family residence. 
The City shall ministerially approve an application for a building permit for an accessory 
dwelling unit that meets any of the following criteria outlined below without requiring an 
accessory dwelling unit permit or applying the standards contained in Section 17.204.040. 


A. One accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot that is within 
the proposed space of a single-family dwelling or existing space of a single-family 
dwelling or existing accessory structure if the following standards are met: 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_050&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_050&frames=on





1. For units proposed with an existing dwelling or accessory structure, there is no 
expansion of the physical dimensions of the existing structure, except that an expansion 
of up to 150 square feet may be included solely for the purpose of accommodating ingress 
and egress. 


2. The accessory dwelling unit has independent exterior access. 


3. The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 


4. For junior accessory dwelling units, it complies with the requirements of Section 
17.204.050. 


B. One detached new construction accessory dwelling unit per lot with a proposed or 
existing single-family dwelling if the following standards are met: 


1. The side and rear setbacks are at least 4 feet. 


2. The total square footage of the accessory dwelling unit is no more than 800 square 
feet. 


3. The height of the unit is no more than 16 feet. 


4. The existing or proposed single-family dwelling on the lot may contain a junior 
accessory dwelling unit that complies with paragraph A of this Section, but it may not 
contain an accessory dwelling unit that does not qualify as a junior accessory dwelling 
unit. 


C. Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling 
structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, 
boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each unit complies with 
state building standards for dwellings, provided that the total number of accessory 
dwelling units permitted by this paragraph does not exceed 25% of the existing multifamily 
dwelling units. 


D. Two detached accessory dwelling units that are located on a lot that has an existing 
multifamily dwelling, provided that the units are no higher than 16 feet and meet a 4 foot 
rear and side yard setback.  


17.204.070 Prohibited areas. 


An accessory dwelling unit shall not be permitted in those areas of the City which have 
significant problems with regard to water availability or water quality, sewage disposal or 
other public health or safety concerns. The prohibited areas include, but are not limited 
to, those areas where a development moratorium has been imposed, including a 
moratorium for water or sewer, whether imposed by the City or another public agency 
with the authority to impose a development moratorium.  


  



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_070&frames=on





17.204.080 Notice of decision. 


Upon acceptance of an accessory dwelling unit application for a lot where there is an 
existing single-family or multifamily dwelling, the Building Official shall review, approve an 
application, and issue a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit within 120 60 days 
after receiving a complete application provided all applicable requirements of this chapter 
have been met. The Building Official may deny the application for an accessory dwelling 
unit at the end of 120 60 days if the applicant has not met the requirements of this chapter. 
An application for an accessory dwelling unit permit and/or a building permit for an 
accessory dwelling unit where there is no existing single-family dwelling shall be approved 
or denied concurrently with the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling. 


17.204.090 Appeal. 


An applicant or any interested person may appeal the decision of the Building Official by 
the following procedure: 


A. Initial Appeal. Within 10 calendar days of a decision by the Building Official to 
approve or deny an accessory dwelling plot plan, the applicant, or affected property 
owner, may file an appeal in writing on the form provided by the Planning Department 
and which shall be accompanied by a filing fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44. Upon receipt 
of a completed appeal, the Building Official shall set the matter for hearing and mail notice 
thereof to the applicant and the appellant. Such appeals shall be heard by the Planning 
Commission. 


B. Hearing on Appeals to Planning Commission. Within 10 calendar days of a 
decision by the Planning Commission, the applicant, or affected property owner, may file 
an appeal in writing of the Planning Commission’s decision to the City Council, on the 
form provided by the Planning Department and which shall be accompanied by a filing 
fee as set forth in Chapter 3.44. 


C. Hearings on Appeals to the City Council. Upon receipt of a completed appeal, the 
City Clerk shall set the matter for hearing before the City Council not less than five days 
nor more than 30 days thereafter, and shall give written notice of the hearing to the 
appellant and the Planning Director. The City Council shall render its decision within 30 
days following the close of the hearing on the appeal.  


  


17.204.100 Revocation of permit. 


Any accessory dwelling unit permit granted may be revoked at any time upon the findings 
and procedures outlined in Chapter 17.220 of this Code.”  


 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_080&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_090&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_204-17_204_100&frames=on





 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 Update and 
provide direction as desired. 


DISCUSSION: 
Departments will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to 
COVID-19 and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 


Submitted & Approved by:      
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager       


ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.2 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Public Right of Way Enhancement Program 
 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 


1. Receive and comment on the Public Right of Way Enhancement Program; and, 
2. Direct the City Engineer to final the Public Right of Way Enhancement Program 


and bring back to the City Council for adoption. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City Council on April 10, 2010 approved Policies and Procedures for implementation 
of the Unpaved Roadway Enhancement Program.  Staff prepared a Priority Ranking 
analysis as presented to the City Council on May 11, 2011 for three projects including 
Valencia Street; Shoemaker Drive and Cash Lane; and, Windsong Lane.  The projects 
did not move forward because lack of full funding. 
 
The City Council on May 8, 2019 received and filed the January 2019 Pavement 
Management Program.  A discussion item at that City Council meeting directed staff to 
seek options and review the policies and procedures of the Unpaved Roadway 
Enhancement Program.  During Future Agenda Items at the January 15, 2020 City 
Council meeting Councilmember Benoit provided further clarification on the review and 
options pertaining to the Unpaved Roadway Enhancement Program.  With concurrence 
from the City Council the future agenda item is entitled Public Right of Way 
Enhancements which considers adding public service elements to the program. 
 
DISCUSSION SUMMARY: 
A final draft of the Public Right of Way Enhancement Program is attached.  The primary 
modifications to the Unpaved Roadway Enhancement Program (attached) included in the 
final draft Public Right of Way Enhancement Program includes construction and/or 
maintenance for: 


1. Adds funding options for improvement costs. 







2. Modifies the double Chip Seal roadway to be either an Asphalt Rubber Aggregate 
Membrane (ARAM) or Chip Seal. 


3. Adds a preferred Rural Road Asphalt/Aggregate Base Pavement Standard. 
4. Adds an Engineered Gravel Street Standard acceptable as an Emergency Vehicle 


drivable surface. 
5. Adds a Dirt Road standard. 
6. Adds public service elements which include street lighting, street sweeping, 


walkways, landscaping, drainage improvements and specialty signage. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact with the review and comment of the Public Right of Way 
Enhancement Program.  Fiscal impacts to HUTA Gas Tax, SB1 Gas Tax, Measure A 
Sales Tax, and Measure AA Sales Tax may be considered during review and 
appropriation of the Operating Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. 2020 Public Right of Way Enhancement Program 
B. 2010 Unpaved Roadway Enhancement Program 


 
 







ATTACHMENT A 







1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY ENHANCEMENT 
PROGRAM 


Policies and Procedures 


Background: 


According to the January 2019 Pavement Management Report presented to the City 
Council on May 8, 2019, the city has 175 centerline miles of public access roadways.  
The City’s Roadway Maintenance System maintains 125 centerline miles of mostly 
paved streets.  The city also maintains Cottonwood Canyon Road and Lost Road which 
are dirt roads.  The remaining 50 centerline miles of streets that are not maintained are 
public access streets that are primarily dirt and were never accepted into the City’s 
Roadway Maintenance System. 


The County of Riverside established parameters for a street to be included into the 
Roadway Maintenance System which continues to be the guiding practice for the City. 


1. The street right of way is to be offered to the City for public use;
2. The street is to be improved to a City Standard;
3. The City accepts the right of way and street improvements into the Roadway


Maintenance System; and,
4. Since 2013, the costs associated with on-going maintenance of newly improved


streets and public service elements (e.g. streetlights, street sweeping, walkways,
drainage, landscape, etc.) are paid for annually by the benefitting property
owners.


Policy: 


Implement a Program to improve and maintain public access streets that are either 
private or public but have not been built to a City Standard nor accepted into the City’s 
Roadway Maintenance System.  The Program improves the street to a City Standard 
and requires the street to be within the Public Right of Way in order to be included in the 
Roadway Maintenance System. 


Offer street maintenance and/or program element(s) that add public service(s) to be 
provided to a community and maintained by the city within improved and accepted 
public right of way and paid for by the community through a Maintenance District. 







2 


Establish a priority ranking system to assist the City during the annual operating budget 
process to determine the streets to be improved and maintained and become a part of 
the City’s Roadway Maintenance System and/or add public service elements to the 
street facilities.  


Procedure: 


Improvements: 


The City Engineer develops, adopts and updates City Standards for streets to be 
accepted and maintained into the Roadway Maintenance System. In addition to a 
Rural Road standard including subgrade preparation, aggregate base and 
asphalt structural sections, the City Standards will consider a graded dirt road 
section, an Asphalt Rubber Aggregate Membrane (ARAM)/chip seal section, and 
an engineered gravel road section.  The frequency of maintenance services is 
dependent on the improved street section selected based on traffic type, number 
of residences, a soils report/determination and the type of street the community 
desires.   


Public Service Elements: 


Property owners submit a Petition Application to annex into a financing District 
for public service elements.  Public service elements include street lighting, street 
sweeping, walkways, landscaping, drainage and specialty signage.  Public 
service elements will be considered within dedicated public right of way.  Street 
sweeping services require a paved road with curbing or raised berms. 


Rights-of-Way: 


The City Engineer prepares and records with the County of Riverside Legal 
Description and Plats for properties to be dedicated as public access streets.  In 
order for a street to be improved, maintained, accepted into the Roadway 
Maintenance System, and to provide public service elements, the street shall be 
within an accepted public right of way.  Depending on existing encumbrances 
over the right of way to be dedicated and accepted, the City Engineer will 
determine whether the right of way will be by easement or grant deed. 


Maintenance 
The City will maintain streets and public service elements that the community 
petitions, votes and agrees to pay annual Maintenance District costs. 







3 


Budget Appropriation: 


The City Engineer prepares annually as part of the 5-year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) a list of projects and preliminary budgets for streets to be 
considered for the Public Right of Way Enhancement Program.  Due to funding 
availability; right of way disposition; and, size and complexity of improvements 
the line item budget recommendation for each project may include full funding or 
partial funding over subsequent years until adequate funds are appropriated to 
complete the project including surveying, engineering, plan preparation, right-of-
way dedication, environmental clearance and, construction, as applicable.  


The City Engineer prepares annually a Public Right of Way Enhancement 
Program line item budget as part of the Operating Budget (different than Project 
Specific CIP Budget) to be used for administration, Petition Application review 
and assistance, research, conceptual plans, property owner coordination and 
district formation.  The revenue to offset the costs to the Operating Budget is 
from the Application Processing Fee. 


Establishing Priorities 


The City Engineer prepares and/or updates a standardized Priority Ranking 
Form.  Annually, the City Engineer prepares a list of projects and ranks each 
project based on the current Priority Ranking Form.  Projects may be prioritized 
for funding based on the following: 


1. Public Right of Way has been dedicated to and accepted by the City;
2. All property owners along a public access agree to dedicate public right of


way;
3. Match-grade improvements are not required outside the public right of


way;
4. Environmental constraints and/or Regulatory Permits are not required;
5. Installation of drainage infrastructure is not required;
6. The project is fully funded.  Improvements that are paid through an


“Improvement and Maintenance” district receive the highest rank for this
Priority Ranking category;


7. A 2/3rd’s majority of the property owners agree by petition and mail ballot
to form or annex into an “Improvement and Maintenance” district.


Other factors that may be considered include improved Emergency Vehicle 
access, impacted postal service delivery, hard to service areas for solid waste 
collection, roadway network connectivity and number of residents or properties 
served. 


The Priority Ranking of projects shall guide the City Engineer’s recommendation 
on projects to be considered during the Budget Appropriation process. 







4 


Petition Application 


The City Engineer prepares a Petition Application for property owners’ execution.  
The Petition Application requires signatures of at least 2/3rds of the properties 
within the community.  There are two types of Districts, an “Improvement and 
Maintenance” District or a “Maintenance” District.  At a minimum, a 2/3rds 
majority of the property owners must agree to annexing into a Maintenance 
District to cover all annual costs.   


Refer to Establishing Priorities, a community that agrees to join an “Improvement 
and Maintenance” District will be prioritized over those that do not.  Joining an 
“Improvement and Maintenance” District agrees to pay for the costs for the 
Improvement annualized over a seven-year period. 


The Petition Application shall include the following information: 


• Description or street name and length of road segment
• Property owner’s information with Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
• Property owners of record signature (A renter’s signature is not eligible)
• Application processing fee covering costs for administration, Petition


Application review and assistance, research, conceptual plans, property
owner coordination and district formation.  Subject to district formation
some of the costs may be deferred in seven equal annual payments to be
included in the annual district tax.


Forms 
Place Holder (to be prepared for Final Program) 
Priority Ranking Form 
Petition Application(s) 


• Annex into Maintenance District
• Annex into Improvement and Maintenance District


Cost Worksheet 
• Application Fee
• Improvement Costs
• Maintenance Costs







5 


Implementation: 


Month Activity 
March Deadline to receive Petition Application for a Project to be 


considered in the ensuing Fiscal Year (FY) Budget 
April City Engineer conducts research, preliminary engineering, cost 


estimates on a short list of Roadway Enhancement Project(s)  
May City Engineer completes First Draft Priority Matrix of Projects. 


City Engineer prepares CFD Annexation Package and Draft Report 
June Conduct Property Owner Community Meeting #1. 


City Council consider Resolution setting a Public Hearing for CFD 
annexation. 
City Engineer updates Final Priority Matrix of Projects. 
City Council consider FY Budget Appropriation for Roadway 
Enhancement Projects and adds Projects to the 5-Year CIP 


July Public Hearing and Mail Ballot for CFD Annexation 
August City Engineer commences Survey, Right of Way, Geotechnical R-


Value, Environmental and Engineering 
September Conduct Property Owner Community Meeting #2. 
October 2nd Quarter FY Budget review and adjustments based on 90% 


complete Engineering and Right of Way cost estimates. 
November City Engineer completes Right of Way Acquisition, Right of Entry 


Letters and Construction Documents 
December - 
January 


Advertise for Construction Bids; 
Bid Opening and review of Contractors documents 


February City Council Award Construction contract 
City Council accepts Right of Way dedication 


March - 
June 


Conduct Property Owner Community Meeting #3 (Pre-Construction) 
Construct Project Improvements 


July City Accepts Street into the Roadway Maintenance System 


The above Activity Schedule is a guiding plan based on a simple project that is fully 
funded prior to start of construction; that qualifies for a CEQA Exemption; that does not 
require Regulatory Permits; that does not require eminent domain of rights-of-way; that 
has received all rights of entry letters from the property owners and that can be 
designed in-house by the City’ Engineering Department.  More complex projects will 
delay when a project is ready to advertise for construction bids.  The Activity Schedule 
includes steps for a CFD Annexation.  In the event a project listed on the Priority Matrix 
is not fully funded, the project will be placed in the 5-Year CIP Program in future years 
and reviewed annually during the FY Budget process.  







ATTACHMENT B 







1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 


Policy, Process and Procedures for the Unpaved Roadway Enhancement 


Program – CIP 0013 


Policy: 


This project is being provided as a method of slowly integrating private unpaved streets 
within the City into the City’s street program.  Utilizing limited Measure A funding, the 
City will annually provide minimal pavement improvements where residents have 
petitioned and are willing to dedicate the street right-of-way (ROW) to the City.  The 
residents must also be willing to provide long term funding for the maintenance of the 
petitioned street segment.  Where multiple requests exceed the available funding, 
petitions will be evaluated based on a series of priority measures and ranked in order of 
priority.  The City Council will have final authority in approving the final rankings. 


Project Description: 


Improvements: 


Improvements to the petitioned streets will be to provide an approximate 5-8 year 
life pavement surface.  Grading will be minimized by following the existing 
contours and retaining existing drainage flows.  Driveway culverts and minimal 
surfacing of the driveway approaches will be provided within the ROW.  Sub-
base will be re-compacted and graded to provide a solid, clean surface for the 
new pavement.  Imported base material is not being considered for this project. 


Improvement specifics include: 


Provide a minimum level of pavement for the conversion of existing dirt 
road(s) into City maintenance program 


Minimum pavement level defined as a two-coat chip seal on a compacted 
sub-base of existing in-place soil. 


Where existing soil is alluvial/high clays, use compacted cement stabilized 
soil as sub-base material. (Cement is introduced into existing sub-base 
material, mixed and then re-compacted.  The cement and soil mixture 
becomes more stable, providing a better surface to pave and drive on.) 


Pavement width established at 26-feet wide, allowing two lanes of traffic. 


Streets placed into city’s pavement management system and maintained 
along 5-8 year cycles. 







2 


Project Costs: 


Project costs are estimated based upon the criteria above and are in 2010 
dollars.  Annual increases in these base costs are anticipated.   


$19.20 per lineal foot of pavement – costs include rip, grade and re-
compact existing dirt road as base, 2-layer Type II Chip Seal, signing, 
striping, 10% project/construction management costs and a 15% 
contingency. 


Substitute $21.70 per lineal foot of pavement on poor soil roads – the 
$2.50 allowance is added for the delivery, mixing and compacting of the 
cement stabilized soil mix. 


Revolving 5-year maintenance costs of $0.40 per lineal foot of pavement. 


Compares to $84.60 per foot of new asphalt paved road meeting minimum 
County standards for Local Road. 


Establishing Priorities 


Funding is limited for this program and may not meet the number of petitions 
submitted annually.  Establishment of priorities is necessary to establish a 
ranking of each request.  The suggested priorities list is below: 


Petition 


1. 100% participation of property owners along road segment.
2. Less than 100% participation of property owners with participating


owners carrying non-participants’ maintenance cost share.


ROW 


1. 100% existing ROW dedications previously accepted to vest title,
not for maintenance


2. 100% existing ROW dedications, either rejected or accepted to vest
title only


3. 100% participation with petitioners providing all dedication
documents


4. 100% participation with City providing dedication documents at
petitioners’ expense


5. All others







3 


Street Connectivity 


1. Street segment connects two or more existing paved city
maintained streets


2. Street segment connects one city maintained street to other
unpaved road segment(s)


3. Cul-de-sacs with turnaround
4. Stub street
5. All others


Zoning 


1. Residential – single family
2. Multi-family/higher densities
3. Commercial – limited number of trucks
4. Industrial and high volume commercial not eligible


Application and Process 


Application 


An application for the inclusion of each roadway segment will be required to be 
submitted by the owners of the properties adjacent to the road segment.  
Submittals must be received prior to April 1st of each year for inclusion into the 
upcoming fiscal year’s project rankings.  The application will require the following 
information: 


Description or street name and length of road segment 


All adjacent lots property owners information and APN 


Signature of all property owners of record on application 


Signed petitions from all property owners requesting formation of 
maintenance district for long term maintenance 


Road segment ownership information (city-vested title, rejected offers of 
dedication, wholly private, combination of any/all) and whether owners will 
provide final dedication documents or requesting city to provide. 


Application fee equal to the cost of district formation plus $67.00 for 
application processing. 


May be submitted at any time during year but considered for inclusion only 
during adoption of Annual Capital Improvement Program. 


Process 


Throughout the year, property owners that would like to have the dirt roads 
adjacent to their property improved can obtain an application, obtain the 
information requested and submit it for review by City staff.  The process of 







4 


taking applications through to recommending a specific stretch of road as the 
preferred project is as follows: 


Application and processing fee received  


Application reviewed for completeness – accepted or returned for 
additional information 


Annually on April 1st, staff will evaluate all application against each other, 
establish a priority list and number of applications to be approved based 
upon street lengths and budget for the next fiscal year.   


Submit to City Council for approval of priority list and authorization to 
proceed with maintenance district formation for recommended 
applications. 


Form maintenance district(s) 


Complete design of selected street segments. 


Bid project during 3rd quarter of fiscal year. 


Construct project in 4th quarter of fiscal year (spring construction). 


Cost to Property Owners 


Property owners will be responsible for the cost of the formation of the 
maintenance district, the application processing fee and the annual assessment 
place upon their property tax. 


Formation costs – TBD 


Application Processing Fee - $67.00/property 


Annual maintenance assessment of $0.40/linear foot of property frontage 
along the road segment ($0.80/ft divided by 2 sides of the street).  Where 
no property receiving benefit is on one side of the street, assessment for 
that single property will increase up to $1.60 per lineal foot of frontage. 


Assessments will increase by a cost index factor to be determined at the 
time of formation of the maintenance district. 







Public Right of Way 
Enhancement Program


August 12, 2020







Un-Paved Roadway Program


Petition 
(25%)


Right of Way 
(25%)


Connectivity 
(25%)


Zoning (25%) Total


Street Weighted
Score


Weighted
Score


Weighted
Score


Weighted
Score


Weighted
Score


Rank


Valencia 1.25 1 0.75 1.25 4.25 1


Shoemaker
/Cash


1.25 0.75 0.75 1.25 4 2


Windsong 0.25 1 0.75 1.25 3.25 3







SAMPLE CHIP SEAL ROAD


SAMPLE CHIP SEAL ROAD







Public Right of Way Enhancement Program


Public Service Elements
Maint. CFD
• Streetlights
• Street Sweeping
• Walkways
• Drainage
• Landscape
• Signage


POLICY
50 C/L mi unmaintained
Imprv./Maint. CFD
• Select Street Std
• R/W dedication
• Budget Approp.
• Estab. Priorities
• Implementation







SAMPLE ARAM ROAD







SAMPLE RURAL ROAD







SITE LOCATION
VALENCIA STREET







Cost Comparisons
per Parcel Costs for Valencia Street Example







NEXT STEPS


• Comments and Direction on Draft Policy
• Staff finalizes Policy, Petition Forms, Priority Matrix
• City Council Adopt Final Policy
• Education/Inform
• Petitions through March 15th ea. FY
• Operating Budget and CIP Program







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.3 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, Acting City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: League of California Cities Annual General Business Meeting Voting 


Delegate and Alternate(s) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council ratify Mayor Nigg as the Voting Delegate and 
Council Member Benoit as one alternate and consider appointing one other Council 
Member as another Alternate for the League of California Cities Annual General 
Business Meeting.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
From October 7-October 9, 2020, the League of California Cities will hold their annual 
conference. Due to COVID-19, their conference will be held virtually this year. On the 
last day of the conference, the annual General Business Meeting is held in which each 
city will have a Voting delegate representing their city. At this meeting the League 
membership considers and takes action on resolutions that establish League policy.  
 
Last December, during the annual appointments to the various Boards, Committees, 
and Commissions, the City Council appointed Mayor Nigg as the Voting Delegate and 
Council Member Benoit as the Alternate. More information will be released regarding 
the conference at a later date; however, the Designation of Voting Delegates and 
Alternates is due back to the League by September 30th so it is recommended that the 
Council ratify the Voting Delegate and consider appointing a second Alternate.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact to vote; however, there is cost to register for the meeting. None. 
  
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Janet Morales     Gary Nordquist 
Acting City Clerk     City Manager 



















ITEM #4.1 
 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


July 8, 2020 
 
CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Regular meeting of July 8, 2020, of the Wildomar Cemetery District was 
conducted electronically pursuant to the provisions of Governor’s Executive 
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by Chair Nigg at 9:15 p.m.  
 
District Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Trustees Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Moore, 
Chair Nigg. 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff in attendance: General Manager Nordquist, Assistant General Manager York, 
District Counsel Jex, Acting Clerk of the Board Morales, Planning Director Bassi, 
Administrative Services Director Riley, Finance Manager Howell, Intern II Luna and 
Economic Development Director Davidson, Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
Chair Nigg asked for the Approval of the Agenda as presented. 
 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chair Moore seconded by Trustee Benoit, to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION carried, 5-0, by the following vote: 
YEA:  Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Moore, Chair Nigg 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery District Minutes 
July 8, 2020 


 


2 


  
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
Chair Nigg asked for an Approval of the Consent Calendar. 
 
A MOTION was made Trustee Benoit, seconded by Trustee Swanson, to approve 
the consent calendar. 
 
MOTION carried, 5-0, by the following vote: 
YEA:  Benoit, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Moore, Chair Nigg 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
4.1 Minutes – June 10, 2020 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 06-04-2020 in the amount of $1,671.67; 
2. Warrant Register dated 06-10-2020 in the amount of $485.85; 
3. Warrant Register dated 06-17-2020 in the amount of $433.17; 
4. Warrant Register dated 06-25-2020 in the amount of $8,247.50. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for May 2020. 
 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were no items scheduled. 


 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


  
6.1 Cemetery Master Development and Business Plan Final Draft Report 


Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Assistant General Manager York and Lees & Associates presented the Staff 
Report. 
 
Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery District Minutes 
July 8, 2020 


 


3 


  
 


Council reviewed and commented on the Final Draft of the Cemetery Master 
Development and Business Plan and directed staff to finalize the Cemetery 
Master Development and Business Plan and return the plan to the Board 
for adoption. 
 


 
GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
There was no report given. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no items. 
 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT   
There being no further business Chair Nigg declared the meeting adjourned at 
9:51 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Acting Clerk of the Board   Chair 
 
 







      WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant Register 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 
 


For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
 


1. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $81.97; 
2. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $1,070.16; 
3. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $9,140.00; 
4. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $6,055.00. 


 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 


5. Warrant Register dated 07-02-2020 in the amount of $989.40; 
6. Warrant Register dated 07-09-2020 in the amount of $109.98; 
7. Warrant Register dated 07-16-2020 in the amount of $7,749.12; 
8. Warrant Register dated 07-23-2020 in the amount of $664.68; 
9. Warrant Register dated 07-30-2020 in the amount of $255.35. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks.  The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2019/20 and 2020/21 Budgets. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Finance Manager      General Manager 
 
 







ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 07/02/2020 (2)  Voucher List 07/23/2020 (2) 
Voucher List 07/09/2020 (2)  Voucher List 07/30/2020 (2) 
Voucher List 07/16/2019  







07/02/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:47:22AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212543 7/2/2020 000088  ACE HARDWARE 305253/3 CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES  7.84


Total :  7.84


 212544 7/2/2020 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4054568868 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


Bank total :  81.97 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 81.97Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







07/02/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:48:03AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212545 7/2/2020 000941  FRONTIER 61920 06/19/20-07/18/20 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 129.40


Total :  129.40


 212546 7/2/2020 000434  PONTEM SOFTWARE BY RIA 8752 07/02/20-07/01/21 CEMETERY 


MANAGEMENT SO


 860.00


Total :  860.00


Bank total :  989.40 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 989.40Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:39:13PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212567 7/9/2020 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10525215 05/18/20-06/18/20 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 1,070.16


Total :  1,070.16


Bank total :  1,070.16 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,070.16Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







07/09/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:39:37PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212568 7/9/2020 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4055171169 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 212569 7/9/2020 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 601290 CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  99.94


-64.09CREDIT:  CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL 


SUPPLIES


601304


Total :  35.85


Bank total :  109.98 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 109.98Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







07/16/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:49:42PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212596 7/16/2020 000342  FENCE MASTERS 20287 0000285 INSTALL 450' OF 6'  CHAINLINK WITH TOP R  7,749.12


Total :  7,749.12


Bank total :  7,749.12 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 7,749.12Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:02:43PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212631 7/23/2020 001036  D'S R TREES INC 61220 CEMETERY TREE SERVICE CONSULT  150.00


Total :  150.00


 212632 7/23/2020 001509  E LEES & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING, LTD5479 CEMETERY MASTER DEVELOPMENT CIP 


067


 8,990.00


Total :  8,990.00


Bank total :  9,140.00 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 9,140.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







07/23/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 1:04:16PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212633 7/23/2020 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4055860897 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE4056440108


Total :  148.26


 212634 7/23/2020 000011  CR&R INC. 325220 JULY 2020 WASTE SERVICES - 3 YD 


COMMERCI


 146.94


Total :  146.94


 212635 7/23/2020 000186  RIGHTWAY 265662 07/06/20-08/02/20 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 357.25


Total :  357.25


 212636 7/23/2020 000790  SPARKLETTS 71820 CEMETERY DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


07/01/20


 12.23


Total :  12.23


Bank total :  664.68 4 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 664.68Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 4







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:06:00AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212663 7/30/2020 001509  E LEES & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING, LTD5432 CEMETERY MASTER DEVELOPMENT CIP 


067


 6,055.00


Total :  6,055.00


Bank total :  6,055.00 1 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 6,055.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1







07/30/2020


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


11:06:50AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 212664 7/30/2020 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4057041675 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 212665 7/30/2020 001338  DEANZA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC535257B PEST CONTROL 7/27/20  50.50


Total :  50.50


 212666 7/30/2020 000941  FRONTIER 71920 07/19/20-08/18/20 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 130.72


Total :  130.72


Bank total :  255.35 3 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 255.35Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 3







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  August 12, 2020 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  James R. Riley, Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Robert Howell, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for May 
2020. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of May 2020.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   
  
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
James R. Riley      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director    General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 







PERCENT


OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 262,057.00 $ 262,057.00 $ 262,057.00 100.00% 0 0.000%


$ 262,057.00 $ 262,057.00 $ 262,057.00 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED


BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 259,610.50 $ 2,446.85                $ 0.00 $ 262,057.35 0.000%


$ 259,610.50 $ 2,446.85                $ 0.00 $ 262,057.35


$ 262,057.35             


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT


   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO


June 2020


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL


TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as Administrative Services Director for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that 


sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


James R. Riley 8/5/2020
James R. Riley Date





		08-12-20 Agenda

		1.2 Minutes 06-10-20

		1.3 Minutes 06-24-20

		1.4 Warrant Reg July 2020

		Meeting Date: August 12, 2020



		1.4 Warrant Register Detail

		070220 fy 20

		070220 fy 21

		070920 fy 20

		070920 fy 21

		071620 fy 20

		071620 fy 21

		072320 fy 20

		072320 fy 21

		073020 fy 20

		073020 fy 21

		July 2020 wt



		1.5 Treasurers Report June 2020

		1.5 Treasurers Report June 2020 Detail

		1.6 Staff Report Construction Award - CIP 041

		Meeting Date: August 12, 2020



		1.6 Attachments (combined)

		Attach. A - Cover

		Attach. A - Project Plans

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_39-04

		scan_2018_04-04_19_40-30



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_42-21



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_48-15



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_49-41



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_50-46



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_52-03



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_52-43



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Ped Head & Crosswalks CIP 041.opt

		scan_2018_04-04_19_53-43



		CIP 041 - 100% Plans (05-27-2020) (greyscale)

		Blank Page



		Attach. B - Cover

		Attach. B - Bid Proposal

		4224_001

		4225_001

		4226_001



		Attach. C - Cover

		Attach. C - PW Contract



		1.7 Outdoor Dining Staff Report-Resolution 8-12-2020

		1.8 SR City Council Measure AA Audited Financial Report FY 2018-19

		1.8 FINAL 2019 MEASURE AA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

		1.9 SR  and Reso Weed Abatement.final

		Meeting Date: August 12, 2020

		SECTION 1. PUBLIC NUISANCE.

		SECTION 2. SPECIFIC PROPERTIES.

		SECTION 3. FIRE CHIEF.

		SECTION 4. HEARING.

		SECTION 5. NOTICES.

		SECTION 6. NOTICE BY MAIL.





		1.9 Reso Exh A List of Properties

		Sheet1



		1.9 Attachment Weed Abatement Procedures

		1.10 SR Calvert HR2956 Support

		1.10 Attachments HR 2956

		Attachment A

		Support Letter HR2956

		Attachment B

		Calvert HR2956.2019

		Attachment C

		Boundary_of_WRC_National_Wildlife_Refuge



		1.11 SR and Reso Tr 31353 Improvements Acceptance

		1.12 SR SWAG Contract 8-12-20

		1.12 SWAG Contract-8-12-2020

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

		(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. ...



		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement f...

		(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, material...

		(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s corre...

		(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider.



		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled che...

		(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copie...

		(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, requi...



		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability o...

		(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and control.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, emplo...

		(c) Neither Service Provider , nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly waives any...



		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service...

		(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is ...

		(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be cons...



		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall no...

		(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testi...

		(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provide...



		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Cit...

		(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of it...

		(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involv...

		(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissi...



		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress.

		(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City.

		(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.

		(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work...



		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that comm...



		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.



		2.1 - ZOA 2020-03 - Final CC Report-Ordinance 8-12-20

		2.1 - Attach B - Strikeout Version of Section 17.280

		3.1 COVID-19 Update

		3.2 SR Right of Way Enhancment Program

		3.2 Attachments Public Right of Way Enhancement

		Attachments 1-4

		attachment

		Unpaved Roadway Enhancement Project Policy 080910





		3.2 Slides Right of Way Enhancement Program

		Public Right of Way Enhancement Program

		Slide Number 2

		SAMPLE CHIP SEAL ROAD

		Public Right of Way Enhancement Program�

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Cost Comparisons�per Parcel Costs for Valencia Street Example

		NEXT STEPS



		3.3 LOCC Attachment

		3.3 SR LOCC Delegate

		4.1 Minutes 07-08-2020

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM July 2020

		4.2 CEM Warrant Register Detail

		070220 cemetery district fy 20

		070220 cemetery district fy 21

		070920 cemetery district fy 20

		070920 cemetery district fy 21

		071620 cemetery district fy 21

		072320 cemetery district fy 20

		072320 cemetery district fy 21

		073020 cemetery district fy 20

		073020 cemetery district fy 21



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM June 2020

		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM June 2020 Detail








